SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees: Joshua Barrow - President, Ida Green - Vice President, Debra Turner - Clerk, Thomas Newmeyer,
Caroline Van Alst
Superintendent: Will McCoy

Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda for the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. Academy
200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, CA 94965

Tuesday, January 9, 2018

5:30 p.m. Open Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King Jr. Multi-Purpose Room
5:31 p.m. Closed Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King School Conference Room
6:00 p.m. Open Session — Bayside/Martin Luther King Jr. Multi-Purpose Room

1

. OPEN SESSION - Call to Order

2. CLOSED SESSION — AGENDA
2.01 - Conference with Legal Counsel — (Gov. Code section 54959.9(d)(2)): One Case

3. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION - Depending upon completion of Closed Session items,
the Governing Board intends to convene in open Session at 6:00 p.m. to conduct the remainder
of the meeting, reserving the right to return to Closed Session at any time.

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 2 minutes
3. AGENDA REORGANIZATION/APPROVAL

Are there any requests from the Board to move any agenda item to a different location? 2 minutes
4. BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 10 minutes
5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 30 minutes

Because the Board has a responsibility to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient way, the following procedures shalt
regulate public presentations to the Board. The Board is asking that members of the public wishing to speak fill out a form located on
the counter/table, stating their name and address; the agenda item; and the topic to be discussed.

The Governing Board is prohibited from taking any action on any item raised in this section unless the item is specifically agenized.
Members of the Governing Board may ask a question for clarification, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting on any matter or take action directing staff to place a matter of
business on a future agenda. Governing Board members may make brief announcements or briefly report on his/her own activities as
they related to school business.

State open meeting laws allow members of the public to lodge public criticism of District policies, procedures, programs, or services.
However, those same laws include specific provisions designed to protect the liberty and reputational interests of public employees by
providing for the non-public hearing of compiaints or charges against employees of the District. Under these laws, it is the employee
subject to complaints or charges who is provided the right to choose whether those complaints or charges will be heard in open or
closed session. It is therefore the desire of the Sausalito Marin City School District that complaints against an employee be put in
writing, and that when the Board hears complaints or charges against an employee it do so in closed session unless the employee
requests an open session. Consistent with the law and the opinion of the State Attorney General’s Office, please submit any
complaints against an employee in writing, to the administration, in accordance with the district's complaint procedure. This procedure
is designed to allow the District to address complaints against employees while at the same time respecting their legitimate privacy
rights and expectations.

6. CORRESPONDENCE 5 minutes

7. DISTRICT REPORTS
7.01 Superintendent 30 minutes
- Update on the Annex Project
- Update on District's Goals
- Update on the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence and the Community Advisory Committee

Entire board packet on www.smesd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes
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7.02 Site Leadership — David Finnane 10 minutes

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

186.

7.03 Willow Creek Academy 5 minutes
STANDING BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

8.01 Willow Creek Academy Oversight (Barrow, Turner) 5 minutes
DISCUSSION ITEMS 15 minutes
9.01 Governance Review

9.02 Local Control & Accountability Plan — Board Input for Spring
9.03 Receipt of Willow Creek Academy First Period Interim Report

CONSENT AGENDA 5 minutes

10.01  Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

10.02 Payment of Warrants — Batches 22-25

10.03 Minutes of the December 5 and December 14, 2017 Board Meetings

ACTION ITEMS - items Removed from the Consent Agenda: Any item removed 15 minutes

from the Consent Agenda may be discussed and acted upon individually

11.01  Appointment of District Trustee Representative to the Marin County School Board Association

11.02 Consider Approval of a Request for Change of Scope Application to the Office of Public School
Construction (OPSC)

11.03  Consider Approval of a Contingency Plan if the "Change in Scope" with OPSC Is Denied

11.04  Consider Approval of the Sausalito Marin City School District 2016-2017 Audit Completed by Christy

11.05

White and Associates

Appointment of Trustee Representatives to work with the District Team as part of the CSBA Policy
Workshop -January 22-24, 2018

PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS

POLICY DEVELOPMENT 5 minutes
13.01 Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities — Action

13.02 Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education — Action

13.03 Administrative Regulations 1312.3 and 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures - Action

13.04 Board Policy 1330 — Use of School Facilities - Action

13.05 Administrative Regulation 3230 — Federal Grant Funds - Action

13.06 Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3311 — Bids - Action

13.07 Board Policy 3312 — Contracts - Action

13.08 Board Policy 3470 ~ Debt Issuance and Management — Action

FUTURE MEETINGS
14.01 The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees will be on Tuesday, February 13, 2018 in the
Bayside/Martin Luther King School Multi-Purpose Room

The next two Special Meetings of the Board of Trustees will be a Corrective Actions Workshop on Thursday,
February 1, 2018 and a Budget Workshop on Monday February 5, 2018

FUTURE TOPICS

ADJOURNMENT

Entire board packet on www.smesd.org/School Board/Meeting Agendas and Minutes
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 9.01 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence [ ] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

I [ >

ltem Requires Board Action: [ ] ltem is for Information Only: [X]
ltem: Governance Review
Background:
As a best practice for school governance, trustees are asked to review their agreements and practices, and to

update and revise as necessary.

Recommendation:
Attachment:

Board Bylaws
Draft Statement of Vision, Mission and Values
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DRAFT
Our Vision

All students are academically and socially prepared and inspired to thrive in their lifelong education journey.

Our Mission

Our mission is to create a culture that is safe, welcoming, and motivated to provide students with a rigorous
education that embraces the whole child and nurtures a spirit of curiosity, compassion, and personal and civic
responsibility.

Our Core Values

We value...

§ Education and we believe that all students can learn and must be encouraged to achieve their own
unique potential.

§ Students who are empowered and inspired to own their learning and know the value of an education.
§ Curiosity and critical thinking so that our students can put their minds and knowledge to work.

§ A spirit of excellence in our students and staff.

§ Celebration of successes across academics, activities, and our social interactions.

§ Personalized learning to ensure that we meet students where they are at and strive to help them
achieve their own unique potential.

§ Safe and welcoming learning and working environments which accept that mistakes are opportunities
to learn.

§ Diversity which allows us to nurture empathy, compassion, and respect for all others.

§ Community engagement and support to help our district achieve its vision, mission, and goals.

§ Innovation and a can-do spirit.

Process for Community Review

Employee and public meetings held at the District office/Bayside MLK to share the statement and values and
collect community input.

§ Employees — first meeting to be held with staff (administrative, certificated and classified)
§ Public — announce through media, social media, other routine modes of communication with
stakeholder groups
Z Target audiences should include:
- Parents/Guardians
- City Council
- Chamber of Commerce

- Community groups and organizations
- Charter school community, including board members and parents
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Sausalito Marin City SD

Board Bylaw
Role Of The Board

BB 9000
Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees has been elected by the community to provide leadership and citizen
oversight of the district. The Board shall ensure that the district is responsive to the values,
beliefs, and priorities of the community.

The Board shall work with the Superintendent to fulfill its major responsibilities, which include:

1. Setting the direction for the district through a process that involves the community,
parents/guardians, students, and staff and is focused on student learning and achievement

2. Establishing an effective and efficient organizational structure for the district by:
a. Employing the Superintendent and setting policy for hiring of other personnel

b. Overseeing the development and adoption of policies

C. Establishing academic expectations and adopting the curriculum and instructional
materials

d. Establishing budget priorities and adopting the budget
e. Providing safe, adequate facilities that support the district's instructional program

f. Setting parameters for negotiations with employee organizations and ratifying collective
bargaining agreements

3. Providing support to the Superintendent and staff as they carry out the Board's direction
by:

a. Establishing and adhering to standards of responsible governance

b. Making decisions and providing resources that support district priorities and goals

c. Upholding Board policies

d. Being knowledgeable about district programs and efforts in order to serve as effective
spokespersons
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4. Ensuring accountability to the public for the performance of the district's schools by:

a. Evaluating the Superintendent and setting policy for the evaluation of other personnel
b. Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of policies
c. Serving as a judicial (hearing) and appeals body in accordance with law, Board policies,

and negotiated agreements

d. Monitoring student achievement and program effectiveness and requiring program
changes as necessary

e. Monitoring and adjusting district finances
f. Monitoring the collective bargaining process
5. Providing community leadership and advocacy on behalf of students, the district's

educational program, and public education in order to build support within the local community
and at the state and national levels

The Board is authorized to establish and finance any program or activity that is not in conflict
with, inconsistent with, or preempted by law. (Education Code 35160)

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2014 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Bylaw

Governance Standards

BB 9005
Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees believes that its primary responsibility is to act in the best interests of
every student in the district. The Board also has major commitments to parents/guardians, all
members of the community, employees, the state of California, laws pertaining to public
education, and established policies of the district. To maximize Board effectiveness and public
confidence in district governance, Board members are expected to govern responsibly and hold
themselves to the highest standards of ethical conduct.

The Board expects its members to work with each other and the Superintendent to ensure that a
high-quality education is provided to each student. Each individual Board member shall:

1. Keep learning and achievement for all students as the primary focus
2. Value, support and advocate for public education
3. Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the Board and among staff,

students, parents and the community

4. Act with dignity, and understand the implications of demeanor and behavior
5. Keep confidential matters confidential
6. Participate in professional development and commit the time and energy necessary to be

an informed and effective leader

7. Understand the distinctions between Board and staff roles, and refrain from performing
management functions that are the responsibility of the Superintendent and staff

8. Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole and not with individuals
Board members also shall assume collective responsibility for building unity and creating a
positive organizational culture. To operate effectively, the Board shall have a unity of purpose
and:

1. Keep the district focused on learning and achievement for all students

2. Communicate a common vision
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3. Operate openly, with trust and integrity

4, Govern in a dignified and professional manner, treating everyone with civility and
respect

5. Govern within Board-adopted policies and procedures

6. Take collective responsibility for the Board's performance

7. Periodically evaluate its own effectiveness

8. Ensure opportunities for the diverse range of views in the community to inform Board
deliberations

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2014 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City SD

Board Bylaw
Limits Of Board Member Authority

BB 9200
Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees recognizes that the Board is the unit of authority over the district and that
a Board member has no individual authority. Board members shall hold the education of
students above any partisan principle, group interest, or personal interest.

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes)
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)

(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Unless agreed to by the Board as a whole, individual members of the Board shall not exercise
any administrative responsibility with respect to the schools or command the services of any
school employee. Individual Board members shall submit requests for information to the
Superintendent. Board members shall refer Board-related correspondence to the Superintendent
for forwarding to the Board or for placement on the Board's agenda, as appropriate.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

Individual Board members do not have the authority to resolve complaints. Any Board member
approached directly by a person with a complaint should refer the complainant to the
Superintendent or designee so that the problem may receive proper consideration and be handled
through the appropriate district process.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

A Board member whose child is attending a district school should be aware of his/her role as a

Board member when interacting with district employees about his/her child. Because his/her
position as a Board member may inhibit the performance of school personnel, the Board member
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should inform the Superintendent or designee before volunteering in his/her child's classroom.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide a copy of the state's open meeting laws (Brown
Act) to each Board member and to anyone who is elected to the Board but has not yet assumed
office.

Board members and persons elected to the Board who have not yet assumed office are
responsible for complying with the requirements of the Brown Act. (Government Code
54952.1)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination

7054 Use of district property

35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules
35100-35351 Governing boards, especially:

35160-35184 Powers and duties

35291 Rules

35292 Visits to schools (Board members)

51101 Rights of parents/guardians

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54962 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54952.1 Member of a legislative body of a local agency
54952.7 Copies of chapter to members of legislative body

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Boardsmanship, 1996
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Bylaw

Conflict Of Interest

BB 9270
Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that
decisions are made in the best interest of the district and the public. In accordance with law,
Board members and designated employees shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as
necessary, shall abstain from participating in the decision.

The Board shall adopt a resolution that specifies the terms of the district's conflict of interest
code, the district's designated positions, and the disclosure categories required for each position.

Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the district's conflict of
interest code and submit any changes to the code reviewing body.

When a change in the district's conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed
circumstances, such as the creation of new designated positions, changes to the duties assigned to
existing positions, amendments, or revisions, the amended code shall be submitted to the code
reviewing body within 90 days. (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing the district's conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide officers, employees, consultants, and members of the community
adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their views. (Government Code 87311)

Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic
Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the district's conflict
of interest code. A Board member who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves
district employment shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time
between the closing date of the last statement and the date of leaving office or district
employment. (Government Code 87302, 87500)

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act

A Board member or designated employee shall not make, participate in making, or in any way
use or attempt to use his/her official position to influence a governmental decision in which
he/she knows or has reason to know that he/she has a disqualifying conflict of interest. A
conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably foreseeable material financial
effect" on one or more of the Board member's or designated employee's "economic

interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally or the
Board member's or designated employee's participation is legally required. (Government Code
87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18709)
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A Board member or designated employee makes a governmental decision when, acting within
the authority of his/her office or position, he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates

or commits the district to any course of action, or enters into any contractual agreement on behalf
of the district. (2 CCR 18702.1)

A Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be
heard in an open meeting of the Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. He/she may
remain on the dais, but his/her presence shall not be counted towards achieving a quorum for that
matter. A Board member with a disqualifying conflict of interest shall not be present during a
closed session meeting of the Board when the decision is considered and shall not obtain or
review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 18702.1)

Additional Requirements for Boards that Manage Public Investments

A Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 and
who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a conflict or potential conflict of
interest and immediately prior to the consideration of the matter, do all of the following:
(Government Code 87105; 2 CCR 18702.5)

1. Publicly identify each financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict
of interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that disclosure of the exact
street address of a residence is not required.

2. Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter, or otherwise acting in
violation of Government Code 87100. The Board member shall not be counted toward
achieving a quorum while the item is discussed.

However, the Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public
speaks on it and may leave the dais to speak from the same area as members of the public.
He/she may listen to the public discussion of the matter with members of the public.

3, Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is
concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for
uncontested matters.

If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member must recuse himself/herself
from discussing or voting on that matter, but the Board member is not required to leave the room
during consideration of the consent calendar.

4, If the Board's decision is made during closed session, disclose his/her interest orally
during the open session preceding the closed session. This disclosure shall be limited to a
declaration that his/her recusal is because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government Code
87100. He/she shall not be present when the item is considered in closed session and shall not
knowingly obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the Board's
decision.
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Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090

Board members, employees, or district consultants shall not be financially interested in any
contract made by the Board on behalf of the district, including in the development, preliminary
discussions, negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations
for bids. If a Board member has such a financial interest, the district is barred from entering
into the contract. (Government Code 1090; Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App. 4th
469)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her
interest is a "noninterest” as defined in Government Code 1091.5. One such noninterest is when
a Board member's spouse/registered domestic partner has been a district employee for at least
one year prior to the Board member's election or appointment. (Government Code 1091.5)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if he/she has
only a "remote interest" in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if the remote
interest is disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes. The
affected Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other
Board member to enter into the contract. (Government Code 1091)

Even if there is not a prohibited conflict of interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on
personnel matters that uniquely affect his/her relatives. However, a Board member may vote on
collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which
his/her relative belongs. Relative means an adult who is related to the Board member by blood
or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in an
adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents,
great-grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles,
nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner
unless the individual is widowed or divorced.

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which his/her private or personal
interest may conflict with his/her official duties.

Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation
Ona case—by—case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a Board member with a financial
interest in a contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or

legally required participation applies pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18708.

If a conflict exists under the PRA, the district may still enter into a contract if the rule of
necessity or legally required participation applies. In general, this rule will permit a district to
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acquire an essential supply or service.
Incompatible Offices and Activities

Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is
inconsistent with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member's duties
as an officer of the district. (Government Code 1099, 1126)

Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and
limitations specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitation on gifts does not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals
on birthdays, holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not
substantially disproportionate in value. (Government Code 89503)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gift limitation
except as described in Government Code 89506.

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and
designated employees. (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as
any payment made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any
public or private gathering, in accordance with law. (Government Code 89501, 89502)

The term honorarium does not include: (Government Code 89501)

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide
business, trade, or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade, or
profession is making speeches

2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to

the donor or delivered to the district for donation into the general fund without being claimed as
a deduction from income for tax purposes

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: May 13, 2014 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City SD

Board Bylaw
Actions By The Board

BB 9323.2

Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees shall act by a majority vote of all of the membership constituting the
Board, unless otherwise required by law. (Education Code 35164)

An "action” by the Board means: (Government Code 54952.6)

1. A collective decision by a majority of the Board members

2. A collective commitment or promise by a majority of the Board members to make a
positive or negative decision

3. A vote by a majority of the Board members when sitting as the Board upon a motion
proposal, resolution, order, or ordinance

£

The Board shall not take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. (Government
Code 54953)

Actions taken by the Board in open session shall be recorded in the Board minutes. (Education
Code 35145)

Action on Non-Agenda Items

After publicly identifying the item, the Board may take action on a subject not appearing on the
posted meeting agenda under any of the following conditions: (Government Code 54954.2)

1. When a majority of the Board determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined
for emergency meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956.5

2. When two-thirds of the members present, or if less than two-thirds of the members are
present then by a unanimous vote of all members present, determine that the need to take

immediate action came to the district's attention after the agenda was posted

3. When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting that
occurred not more than five days earlier

Challenging Board Actions

The district attorney's office or any interested person may file an action in court to stop or
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prevent the Board's violation or threats of violations of the Brown Act, to determine the
applicability of the Brown Act to ongoing or future threatened Board actions, to determine the
validity, under California or federal law, of any Board rule or action to penalize any of its
members or otherwise discourage the member's expression, or to compel the Board to audio
record its closed sessions because of its violation of any applicable Government Code provision.
(Government Code 54960)

The district attorney or any interested person may present a demand that the Board cure and
correct a Board action which he/she alleges is in violation of law regarding any of the following:
(Government Code 54960.1)

1. Open meeting and teleconferencing (Government Code 54953)

2. Agenda posting (Government Code 54954.2)

3. Closed session item descriptions (Government Code 54954.5)

4. New or increased tax assessments (Government Code 54954.6)

5. Special meetings (Government Code 54956)

6. Emergency meetings (Government Code 54956.5)

Any demand to "cure and correct” an alleged violation shall clearly describe the challenged
action and the nature of the alleged violation and shall be presented to the Board in writing
within 90 days of the date when the action was taken. If the alleged violation concerns action
taken in an open session but in violation of Government Code 54954.2 (agenda posting), the
written demand must be made within 30 days of the date when the alleged action took place.

(Government Code 54960.1)

Within 30 days of receiving the demand, the Board shall do one of the following: (Government
Code 54960.1)

1. Cure or correct the challenged action and inform the demanding party in writing of its
actions to cure or correct.

2. Determine not to cure or correct the alleged violation and inform the demanding party in
writing of its decision to not cure or correct.

3. Take no action. If the Board takes no action within the 30-day review period, its inaction
shall be considered a decision not to cure or correct the action.

In addition, the district attorney's office or any interested party may file an action in court to

determine the applicability of the Brown Act to any past Board action not specified in
Government Code 54960.1, if the following conditions are met: (Government Code 54960.2)
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1. Within nine months of the alleged violation, a cease and desist letter is submitted to the
Board, clearly describing the past Board action and the nature of the alleged violation.

2. The time for the Board to respond has expired and the Board has not provided an

unconditional commitment to cease and desist from and not repeat the past action alleged to have
violated the Brown Act.

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: June 10, 2014 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Bylaw

Board Self-Evaluation

BB 9400
Board Bylaws

The Board of Trustees shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate
accountability to the community and ensure that district governance effectively supports student
achievement and the attainment of the district's vision and goals.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent)

The evaluation may address any areas of Board responsibility, including but not limited to Board
performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy, collective
bargaining and community relations. The evaluation also may address objectives related to
Board meeting operations, relationships among Board members, relationship with the
Superintendent, understanding of Board and Superintendent roles and responsibilities,
communication skills, or other boardsmanship skills.

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

The Board shall be evaluated as a whole. Individual Board members also are encouraged to use
the evaluation process as an opportunity to privately assess their own personal performance.

Each year the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent, shall determine an evaluation
method or instrument that measures a reasonable number of previously identified performance
objectives. Videotape of a Board meeting may be used as an evaluation tool only with the
consent of all Board members.

Any discussion of the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session. At the request
of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. The Board may

invite the Superintendent or others to provide input into the evaluation process.

Following the evaluation, the Board shall develop strategies for strengthening Board
performance and shall establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation.

(cf. 9230 - Orientation)
(cf. 9240 - Board Development)
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Legal Reference:
GOVERNMENT CODE
54950-54963 Brown Act; board self-evaluations not covered

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Professional Governance Standards, 2000
Maximizing School Board Leadership, 1996
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Bylaw SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 11, 2010 Sausalito, California
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 9.02 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence ] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

OOOOnOXOC

ltem Requires Board Action: [ ] ltem is for Information Only:

Iltem: Local Control & Accountability Plan — Board Input for Spring

Background:

As part of the LCAP process, the Board is encouraged to respond to the update received at the December 14,
2017 board meeting, as well as the PowerPoint presentation provided by Pecolia Manigo of Parent Leadership

Action Network (PLAN). The primary emphasis of the discussion should be on the activities and progress made
toward the achievement of our goals.

Recommendation:

Attachment:
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 9.03 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence [] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

0 <

ltem Requires Board Action: [ ] ftem is for Information Only:

ltem:  Receipt of Willow Creek Academy First Period Interim Report

Background:

WCA is required to submit this report to the District no later than December 15 each year. The District's
Administrative team is in the process of review, which will be completed no later than January 15.

Recommendation:

Attachment:
WCA First Interim Report
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?)ULllow C reqk

December 13, 2017

Amy Prescott

Sausalito Marin City School District
200 Phillips Drive

Sausalito, CA 94965

Subject: 2017/18 First Interim Budget Submission

Enclosed are the First Interim Budget Submission documents for Willow Creek
Academy. The submission includes the following items as required by the State of
California:

e Charter Schools Enterprise Fund, Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
{Form 621)

Average Daily Attendance (Form Al)

Cashflow Worksheet (CASH)

Charter School Certification (CI)

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet (ICR)

No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures (NCMOE)

Also included are the following items requested by the County:

¢  WCA 17-18 Multi-Year Budget

We again appreciate your careful review of our programmatic and financial operations,
and we look forward to working with you and your staff on any issues that you may wish
to discuss.

Sincerely,

Qo ol

Tara Seekins
Head of School
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Willow Creek Academy, assumptions for the budget, year ending June 30, 2018

Enrollment is currently estimated at 411.

State Aid, EPA and In-Lieu revenues are projected based on MCOE’s current
LCFF funding model.

Federal and State revenues reflect the latest available information, including
$55,189 for one-time Discretionary funding.

Private Revenues from sources consistent over past years are budgeted based on
current information.

Salaries reflect a 2% COLA, the addition of one new classified student support
coordinator and the elimination of the food services director position. Fringe

benefit calculations reflect the latest available information.

Services/Operating expenditures $30k increase, including a $22k increase in Staff
Development.

The above generate a budgeted Net Decrease for the year of $33,566.

Assumptions for the Multi Year Budget Projection:

Enrollment is currently projected 412 in years 18/19 and 19/20.

State Aid, EPA and In-Lieu revenues are projected based on MCOE’s current
LCFF funding model.

Other Local Revenue grants that are historically received each year have been
carried forward to future years.

Food Service and After School Revenue and Expenses were calculated using an
estimated per pupil utilization and estimated in-house Food Service and After
School costs.

Certificated and Classified salaries for year 18/19 were calculated to reflect a
2.00% cost of living adjustment and a reduction of 1.0 certificated FTE. Year
19/20 salaries reflect a 2.00% cost of living adjustment.

Instructional Materials and Other Materials were increased slightly for year 18/19
and decreased slightly for year 19/20.

415.331.7530 . Fax: 415.331.1622 . www.willowereekacademy.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94965
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e The above generate a budgeted Net Increase for the year of $15,134 for year
18/19 and $21,558 for year 19/20.

415.331.7530 . Fax: 415.331.1622 . www.willowcreekacademy.org
636 Nevada Street, Sausalito, CA 94965
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2165474 6118491
Marin County Form TCI
‘ G = General Ledger Data; S = Supplemental Data
Data Supplied For:
201718
Board
2017-18 Approved 2017-18 2017418
Original Operating Actuals to Projected

Form _ Description Budget Budget Date Totals

01l General Fund/County School Service Fund

111 Adult Education Fund

121 Child Development Fund

131 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

141 Deferred Maintenance Fund

151 Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund

171 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Qutlay Projects

181 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund

191 Foundation Special Revenue Fund

201 Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits

211 Building Fund

251 Capital Facilities Fund

301 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund

351 County School Facilities Fund

401 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outiay Projects

481 Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

511 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

521 Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units

531 Tax Qverride Fund

56! Debt Service Fund

571 Foundation Permanent Fund

61! Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

621 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund G G G G

631 Other Enterprise Fund

66l Warehouse Revolving Fund

671 Self-Insurance Fund

71l Retiree Benefit Fund

73! Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

Al Average Daily Attendance S S S

CASH Cashflow Worksheet S

CHG Change Order Form

Cl Interim Certification S

ESMOE _Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort GS

ICR Iindirect Cost Rate Worksheet S

SIAl Summary of Interfund Activities - Projected Year Totals

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: tci (Rev 04/5/2017) Page hpfd56

Printed: 12/12/2017 10:01 AM



Willow Creek Academy 2017-18 First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 21 65474 6118491
Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
Y Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Originat Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Yotals {ColBE& D) B&D
Description Resource Codas __ Object Codes) {A) 8 {C) o) 3] [F}
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sourcas 8010-8089 3,305,653.00 3,305,653.00 872.065.00 3,254,538.00 {51,115.00) -1.5%
2) Federal Revenug 8100-8299 146,134.00 146.134.00 20,708.65 153,472.00 7.338.00 5.0%;
3} Other State Revenue B8300-8599 148,581.00 148,581.00 2734.16 212,869.00 64,288.00 43.3%)|
4) Qther Local Ravenue 8600-8799 537,628.00 §37,628.00 48.455.00 $27,740.00 . ~1.8%]
5} TOTAL, REVENUES 4,137.996.00 4,137.996.00 943.963.81 4,146.619.00
B. EXPENSES
1) Oediﬁcat.ed Salaries 1000-1969 1,721,002.00 1,721.802.00 475,.320.08 1,709,641.00 12.261.00 8.7%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,064,659.00 1.064,659.00 289.834.58 1.101,022.00 {36,363.00) -3.4%}
3) Employee Beneflits 3000-3999 474,140.00 474,140.00 137,725.89 483,430.00 {9,280.00) -2.0%;
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4939 316.128.00 316.128.00 114.397.61 313,112.00 3.016.00 ) 1.0%!
5) Services and Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 526,590.00 §26,580.00 83,717.62 566.630,00 {30,040.00} -5.7%
6) Depreciation £000-6999 17.817.00 17.817.00 0.00 18.349.00 {632.00) -3.0%}
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Quigo - Transfers of indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 L 000 0.0%}
) TOTAL, EXPENSES 412123600 4,121.236.00 1,100,995.79 4,182,184 .60
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER B
| FINANCING SOURCES AND USES {AS5 -89 16,760.00 16,760.00 {157,031.98) {33,565.000] -
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCESIUSES
1} Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
BT Cut 7600-7629 0.00 0:00 000 000 000 0.0%!
2) Other SourcesiUses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b} Uses 7630-7698 980 . 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.60 0.0%
3) Contributions assosass |5 i pen o n i iieee] oh e T Y aee) o gsed
4} TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0,00 ago

Caitornia Degt of Education 29 of 256
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Willow Creek Academy 2017-18 First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 21 65474 6118491
Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 821
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {ColB & D) Ba&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes {A) (B) {€) {0}
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN i
NET POSITION (C + D4) 16,760.00 16,760.00 {157,031.98)| (33, sssmgl
F. NET POSITION : s
1) Beginning Net Position B
) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 856,363.00 856,363.00 |’ 1,116,708.00 260,345.00 30.4%
b) Audit Adjustments o793 000 ogol 0.00 0.00
) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 856,363.00 856,363.00 |- 1,116,708.00
d} Other Restatements 9745 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
e} Adjusted Beginning Net Position {Fic+ F1d) 856,353.00 856 3683.00 | 1,116.708.00 :
2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + Fle) 873,123.00 873.123.00 1.083,143.00 |
Components of Ending Net Position
a) Net investment in Capital Assels 9798 0.00 000} . 0.00
b) Restricted Net Position o707 31.470.00 347000 b 11741000 |
|_.c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 841.653.00 841,853.00 ' L $65,733.00

Cahfornia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Scfware - 2017.2.0 3 Q Qf 2 5 6 )
File: tundi-b (Rev 040712017} 996 Printed: 121272017 1:01AM



Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary

2017-18 First Interim
Charter Schools Enterprise Fund

21 65474 6118491

Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 62}
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budgat Operating Budget Actuais To Date Totals {ColBE& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes {A} {8) {C}) {D) {E} {F}
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Appartionment
State Aid - Current Year 8011 284,893.00 284.893.00 88,536.00 273,174.00 {11,719.00) -4.1%
Education Protection Account Stais Aid - Current Year 8012 79,230.00 79,230.00 18,731.00 78,090.00 {1,140.00)} -1.4;6!
State Aid - Prior Years 8018 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.0%,
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricted L.CFF Transfers - Current Year 0000 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 080 0.00 0.0%|
All Other LCFF Transfers - Curent Year AR Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 D.O%j
_ Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 2,841,530.00 2.941,530.00 764,798.00 2.803,274.00 {38,256.00) ~1.3%
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%,
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 090 0.00 0.0%}
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 3,305,653.00 3,305,653.00 872,065.00 3,254,538.00 {51,115.00) -1.5%!
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.0%
Special Education Entitlement 818t 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 08.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nuliition Programs 8220 76,714.00 76.714.00 287365 74,281.00 {2,433.00) =3.2%]
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%:
Interagency Coniracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
Titie I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 $9,702.00 59,702.00 14,873.00 58,497.00 (29_5_.0_0ﬁ -0.2%
Title {, Part D, Loca! Definquent Program 3025 8290 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Title fi, Pant A, Educator Quality 4035 8290 979.00 979.00 2,478.00 9.813.00 8,934.00 9126%
Title IIi, Part A, immigrant Education Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 485.00 1,938.00 1.938.00 N\e_v_«l
T I PE R BRGNS L e S
Program . 4203 - 8290 8,739.00 8,738.00 0.00 7,843.00 {896.00}} =30.3%|
Yitle V, Pan B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) (NCLB} 4810 8290 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3012-3020, 3030-3199,
Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Acts 4036-4126, 5510 8250 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
Alf Other Federal Revenue All Cther 8250 0.00 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 146,134.00 146,134.00 20,709.65 153.472.00 7,338.00 5.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
Special Education Master Plan
Current Year B500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Curent Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years Ali Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 6.179.00 6,179.00 276.47 5,300.00 {879.00) -14.2%
Costs Reimb 8550 532300 5323.00 Q.00 £0,512.00 §5,189.00 1036.8%
Lotiery - Unrestricled and i Material 8560 77.679.00 77,679.00 245769 82,192.00 4,513.00 5.8%)
After Schoo! Education and Safety (ASES) 8010 8590 59,400.00 59.400.00 0.00 £4.865.00 5.465.00 9.2%;

Cafiformia Dept of Education
SACS Financis! Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
Fite; furek-b (Rev 0407T/2017)
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Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary

2017-18 First Interim
Charter Schools Enterprise Fund

21 65474 6118491

Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {CotB & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes) {A} 8 (=) {0} (3] £}
Charter School Facility Gran! 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 £00 0.00 0.0%|
Drug/AleoholTobacco Funds 6690 8580 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Califomnia Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 000 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Career Technical Education Incentive
Grant Program 6387 8590 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Specialized Secondary 7370 8580 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8580 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Common Cora State Standards Implementation 7405 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%].
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 148.581.00 148.581.00 2734.16 212,868.00 §4.288.00 433‘;}
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sale of EquipmentSupplies 8631 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
Food Service Sales 8634 115.278.00 115,278.00 30,260.30 105.000.00 (10.278.00)¢ -8.93;1
All Gther Sales 8839 .00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.0%!
Interest 8660 350.00 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.0%;
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Valua of Invesiments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Fees and Contracts
Child Development Parent Fees 8673 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8875 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Interagency Services 8877 0.00 Q.00 0.00 400 06.00 0.0%!
All Other Fees and Contracls 2889 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0;}
Other Locat Revenue
Alt Other Local Revenuve 8699 422.000.00 422.000.00 18,194.70 422,380.00 380.00 0.1%;
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Al Other Transfers in 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Apportionments
. Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%;
From County Offices 8500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schaols All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs Al Other 8743 0.00 0.00 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Alt Other Transfers In from All Others 8789 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 537.628.00 537,628.00 48,455.00 §27,740.00 {8 888100), —1.8%
[roraL, RevenuEs 4,137,996.00 4,137,986.00 943,963.81 4,148,619.00 e

Catfora Degk of Educaton
SACS Financiat Reporting Sofware - 2017.2.0
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Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary

2017-18 First Interim
Charter Schools Enterprise Fund

2165474 6118491

Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 82t
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {ColBR D} B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Codas| {A} {8} (2] {E} {F}
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Centificated Yeachers' Salanes 1100 1,517,520.00 1,817,520.00 416,825 54 1,522,521.00 {5,001.00} -0.3%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Certificated Supervisors’ and Administralors’ Salaties 1300 204,382.00 204,382.00 58,494.54 187,120.00 17,262.00 8.4%
Other Certificated Salaries 1500 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 Q.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,721,802.00 1.721.802.00 475,320.08 1,709,641.00 12,261.00 0.7%
[CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 584,061.00 584.061.00 161,065.68 596,222.00 {12,161.00) -2.1%!
Classified Support Salaries 2200 311,479.00 311,479.00 77,519.14 328,819.00 {17,340.00} -5.6%;
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salanes 2300 68,000.00 68,000.00 16,633.23 69.445.00 {1,445.00} 2.1%|
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 101,119.00 101,119.00 34.112.54 101,731.00 (612.00} ~0.6%|
Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 504.00 4,805.00 (4.805.00) N
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1.064,659.00 1.064,659.00 289.834.50 1.101,022.00 {36,363.00) ~3A§
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
PERS 3201.3202 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 600 0.0%
OASDIMedicarefAltemative 3301-3302 213,173.00 213.173.00 57.082.33 215.016.00 {1.843.00) -0.9%
Health and Welfare Benefils 3401.3402 144,990.00 144 930.00 47,368.89 159,715.00 {14,725.00) -102%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5.394.00 5.334.00 382,57 5.405.00 {11.00) -0.2%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 34,830.00 34,830.00 6.835.39 25,577.00 9.253.00 26.6%
OPEB, Alocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%;
OPEB. Active Empl 3751-3752. 000 0.00. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%(.
Othar Employes Banefits 3801-3902 78,753.00 75,753.00 26,066.71 77,717.00 {1,964.00) -2.6%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 474,140.00 474,140.00 137,725.88 483,430.00 9.290.00; -2.0%{
{BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 35,000.00 35.000.00 34,047.85 39.000.00 {4,000.00) -11.4%
Books and Olher Reference Materials 4200 8,000.00 8,000.00 855,00 4,000.00 4,000.00 50.0%:
Materials and Supplies 4300 118128 00 119,128.00 35,806.66 122,159.00 {3,031.00} -2.5%|
Noncapifalized Equipment 4400 34,000.00 34,000.00 18,811.83 37,853.00 {3,953.00) ~11.6%;
Food 4700 120,000.00 120,000.00 23,73627 110.000.00 10,000.00 8.3%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 316,128.00 316,128.00 114,.397.61 31311200 3016.00 1.0%
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Travet and Conferences 5200 0,08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
Dues and Memberships 5300 3,685.00 3,685.00 2,081.04 59875.00 {2,290.00} 62.1%:
insurance 5400-5450 16,182.00 16,182.00 493400 16,570.00 {378.00) -2.3%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized mprovements 5600 33 300.00 33,300.00 10,217.05 33,300.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 ) 0;00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%}
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
ProfessionalfConsulting Services and
Operating Expenditures 5800 465,713.00 465.713.00 66.085.15 493,085.00 (27,372.00} -5.9%
Communications 5500 7,700.00 7.700.00 410.38 7,700.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 526,590.00 §26,590.00 83,717.62 556,630.00 (3004_0_0_2) -5,7;.‘
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Willow Creek Academy 2017-18 First Interim
Sausalito Marin City Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 21 65474 6118481
Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Form 621
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Qriginal Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Oblect Codes! (A} (8} (%] {8} {E) {F}
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation Expense 6800 17,817.00 17.817.00 0.00 18,349.00 {532.00) -3.0%
TOTAL, DEPRECIATION 17,.817.00 17.817.00 0.00 18,348.00 {532.00) -3.03
OTHER OUTGO of Costs)
Tuition
Tuition for Under istri A 7110 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%%
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 £.00 0.0%
Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to JPAs 7143 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 08.0%
Other Transfers Qut
All Other Transfers 7281.7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7289 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
Debt Service
Debt Servica - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO {excluding Transfers of Indirect Cosis) 0.00 0.007 0.90 /0‘00 0.0%
OTHER QUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS - f . : ’ A3
Teansfers of Indirect Costs 7310 k ooo ' ‘o.oo‘ oot " 0.0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs - interfund 7350 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 . .00 0.0%,
TOTAL, EXPENSES 4,121.235.00 4,121,236 00 1,100,955 79 418218400 [
Caiforua Dept of Educaton

SACS Flnandiat Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04072017)
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Willow Creek Academy 2017-18 First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 2165474 6118491
Marin County Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Fomm 621
Yo Diff
Board Approved X Projected Year Difference Caolumn
Original Sudget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {CoiB& D) Ba&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| A 8) {c} {D) {E), (3]
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers in 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.0%]
(3} TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0Q
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7618 .00 0.60 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
| (b) TOTAL. INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 900 0.00 0.0%!
[OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
‘Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Recrganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Alt Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
_{c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7698 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 {d) TOTAL, USES 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%,

CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted R B0 | el ot v aenl b Y 000} 000 - oou|
Conlributions from Restrictad R sao0 [l ape} i wil geed L E Seiaee i U et i ee

| (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS LS 000 v 000): o ceopelociiiioo e00f S o oool o oou

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
{a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 000

California Dagt of Education 35 of 256
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 21 654746118491
Marin County Exhibit: Restricted Net Position Detail i Form 621
2017118
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
6230 117,410.00
Total, Restricted Net Position 117,410.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) Page 1 Printed: 12/12/2017 10:01 AM
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Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

2017-18 First Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

2165474 6118491
Form Al

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B}

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT
ADA
Projected Year|
Totals
(€)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENCE
{Col. D-B)
{E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
{Col. E/ B)
(F)

A.

DISTRICT

(2]

(23

1.

Total District Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home 8
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuatior
Education, Special Education NPS/LC!
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Smali Schoo
ADA)

Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
includes Opportunity Classes, Home 8
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuatior
Education, Special Education NPS/LCi
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above]

. Total Basic Aid Open Enroliment Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuatior
Education, Special Education NPS/LC!

and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA notincluded in Line A1 above;

. Total, District Regular ADA

{Sum of Lines A1 through A3}

. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County Community Schools

Special Education-Special Day Class
Special Education-NPS/A.CI

Special Education Extended Yeai
Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day

b.
c.
d.
e.

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

Q.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

Q.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%,

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondan
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natura
Resource Conservation Schools
County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380

. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
{Sum of Lines A5a through A5f)

-~

-]

. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

{Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g)

. Aduits in Correctional Facilities
. Charter School ADA

{Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: adai (Rev 03/10/2017) Printed: 12/12/2017 10:01 AM
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Willow Creek Academy

2017-18 First interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 21 65474 6118491
Marin County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals (Col. D -B) (Col. E/B)
Description (A) ({B) {C) (D} (3] {F)
B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or {c) [EC 2574(c){4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education
ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through Bic} 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
2. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380} 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
{Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
{Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
5. County Operations Grant ADA
6. Charter School ADA
{Enter Charter School ADA using .
Tab C. Charter School ADA}

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Printed: 12/12/2017 10:01 AM
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Willow Creek Academy

2017-18 First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 2165474 6118491
Marin County Form Al
ESTIMATED .
FUNDED ADA| ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year] Projected | DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals {Col.D-B) (Col. E/B)
|Description (A) (B) {C) (D) {E) (F}
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA
FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01
1. Total Charter School Reguiar ADA 396.15 l 396.15 396.15 390.45 (5.70) 1%
2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupile 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelied per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(C)(4)(A). 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
{Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Yeal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondan
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natura
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%,
4, TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 396.15 396.15 396.15 390.45 {5.70) ~1%
FUND 09 or 62;: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 08 or Fund 62
5. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 I 0.00 ’ 0.00 I 0.00 0.00 0%
6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
¢. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A); 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through Céc) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondan
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natura
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
{Sum of Lines C7a through C7¢) 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
{Sum of Lines C5, C8d, and C7f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
(Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 396.15 396.15 396.15 390.45 {5.70) 1%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: adai (Rev 03/02/2017) Printed: 12/12/2017 10:01 AM
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Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

A. BEGINNING CASH

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF
Enter Month Name)]

D: BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

B. RECEIPTS
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
Property Taxes 8020-8079
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 |
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 |
Other State Revenue 8300-8599
Other Locai Revenue 8600-8789
interfund Transfers In 8910.8929
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
TOTAL RECEIPTS
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-1899
Classified Salarles 2000-2999
Employee Benefits 3000-3998 |
Bocks and Supplies 4000-4999
Services 5000-5999
Capital Ouflay 6000-6599
Other Qutgo 7000-7499 |
interfund Transfers Qut 7600-7629

All Other Financing Uses
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

7630-7699

Assets and Defe; tlows
Cash Not In Treasury
Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Stores
Prepaid Expenditures
Other Current Assets
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
SUBTOTAL
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable
Due To Other Funds
Current Loans
Uneamed Revenues
Deferred Inflows of Resources
SUBTOTAL
Neonoperating
Suspense Clearing
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET {TEMS
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B-C +
F. ENDING CASH (A + E)

9111-9199
9200-9299
2310
9320
9330
9340
9490

9500-9599
9810
9640
9650
9690

9910

First Interim

2017-18 INTERIM REPORT

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)

21 65474 6118491
Form CASH

753,349.00

i

JACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
Fite: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)

583,469.00 £90,508.00 651,624.00 861,096.00 817,959.00 793,524.00

15,810.00 15.810.00 47,189.00/ 28,458.00 28,458,00 47.189.00 28,458.00 19,853.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 176,492.00 352,984.00 235,322.00] 235,322.00 218,141.00 218,141.00 218,141.00

0.00 0.00 2,478.00 18.232.00 9,861.00 9,833.00 16,303.00 5.200.00

0.00 0.00 2,458.00 276.00 6.001.00 24,415.00 46,967.00 371.00

0.00 8,107.00 25,963.00 14,385.00 38,074.00 15,234.00 23,914.00 19.574.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15,810.00 200.409.00 431,072.00, 296 673.00 315,716.00 314,812.00 333,783.00 263,139.00

9.427.00 1§9.018.00 154,136.00 152,740,00 154,290.00 154,290.00 154,290.00 154,290.00

11,322.00 79,575.00 101,444.00 $7,493.00 101,399.00 101,399.00 101,389.00 101,399.00

15,407.00 41,521.00 38,857.00 41,941.00 43,213.00 43,213.00 43,213.00 43,213.00

20,071.00 29,267.00 36,190.00 28,870.00 24,839.00 24,839.00| 24,839.00 24,839.00

14,553,00 24,670.00 21,227.00 23,267.00 46,718.00 46,718.00, 46,718.00 46,718.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

70,780.00 334,051.00 351,854.00 344.311.00 370,459.00 370,453.00 370,459.00 370,459.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

589,110.00 306.583.00 8,933.00 19,384.00 2,843.00 248,432.00 419.00 419.00 419.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

32,338.00 13.453.00 (1,969.00) 219.00] 3,371.00 3,010.00 374.00 106,00 56.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

621,448.00 320.036.00, 6.964.00 19,603.00 6.214,00 251,442.00 793.00 525.00 475.00

331,951.00 317,508.00 (9,240.00) (8,219.00) {2,638.00) (12.773.00) (11,716.00) (11.716.00) (11,716.00)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

331,951.00 317,508.00 (8.240.00) (8,219.00) {2,539.00) {12,773.00) (11,716.00) (11,716.00) (11,716.00)

1.00 (1.00) (1.00) 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00

289.487.00 2,529.00 16,203.00 27.821.00 8.754.00 264,215.00 12,510.00 12,241.00 12,191.00

i 2 (62,441.00) (117,439.00) 107,039.00 {38,884.00) 209,472.00 (43,137.00) {24,435.00) (95,129.00)

i » 700,908.00 583 469.00! 690,508.00 651,624.00 861,006.001 817 959.00 793,624.00 8 395.00
, 0 o
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Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary

Marin County

2017
Cashflow \

First Interim

18 INTERIM REPORT

Vorksheet - Budget Year (1)

21 65474 6118491
Form CASH

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH
JACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)

Page 2 of 2

41 of 256

Object Accruals Adlustments
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF;
£ A W Sl T
A. BEGINNING CASH 688,395.00 1,018,637.00 948,128.00
B. RECEIPTS
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 40.918,00 19,853.00 18,853.00 38,415.00 0.00] 0.00 351,264.00 351,264.00
Property Taxes 8020-8079 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00/ 0.00. 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 416,243.00 208,122.00 208,122.00 208,122.00 208,122.00] 0.00 2,903,274.00 2,903,274.00
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 45.655.00 6,685.00 9,657.00 20,937.00} 8,631.00 0.00 153.472.00 153,472.00
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 2,238.00 24,446,00 33,674.00 32,809.00 39,113.00 0.00 212,869.00 212.869.00;
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 170,004.00 19,574.00 180,394.00 14,517.00 0.00 0.00 527,740.00 527.740.00
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00; 0.00 0.00! 0.00,
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL RECEIPTS 675,059.00 218,680.00 451,700.00 315,800.00 255,866.00 0.00 4,148,619.00 4,148.619.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-1989 154,290.00 154,290.00 154,290.00 154,290.00 0.00 0.00 1.709,641.00 1,708,641.00
Classified Salarles 2000-2998 101,399.00 101,389.00 101,398.00 101,395.,00 0.00 0.00 1,101,022.00] 1,101,022.00
Employee Benefits 3000-3989 43.213.00 43,213.00 43,213.00 43,213.00 0.00: 0.00. 483.430.00 483,430.00
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 24,839.00 24,839.00 24,839.00 24,841.00 0.00; 0.00 313,112.00] 313,112.00
Services 5000-5998 46.718.00 46.718.00 46,718.00 46.717.00, $9,170.00; 0.00 - 556,630.00 556,630.00
Capital Outlay 8000-6599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00; 0.00 0.00:
Other Outgo 7000-7498 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00! 0.00 0,00
Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00} 0.00 0.00
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 370,459.00 370,459.00 370,459.00 370.456.00 98,170,001 0.00 4.163,835.00,
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS o
Assets and Deferred Qu S
Cash Not in Treasury 9111-9199 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accountis Receivable 9200-9298 419.00 419.00 419.00 419.00 0.00; 0.00
Due From Other Funds 9310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9320 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00; 0.00 A
Prepaid Expenditures 9330 3.506.00 10,136.00 56.00 23.00 0.00] 0.00 32,341.00
Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.008
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9480 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.004%
SUBTOTAL 3,925.00 10,555.00 475.00 442.00 0.00 0.00 621.449.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable 9500-9589 (11,716.00) (11,716.00) {11,716.00) (11.716.00) 129,229.00] 0.00 331,954.004:
Due To Other Funds 8610 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00i
Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unearned Revenues 9650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00 0.00
SUBTOTAL (11,716.00) (11,716.00) {11,716.00} {11,716.00) 128,229.00 0.00 331,954.00
Nonoperating S
Suspense Clearing 95810 1.00 0.00 {1.00) 2.00 {1.00) 0.00 2.003
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 15,642.00 22.271.00. 12,190.00 12,160.00 §129,230.00) 0.00 289.497.00%
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B-C +D) 320,242.00 {69,508.00) £3.431.00 {42,396.00; 27,466.00 0.00 274,281.00
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 1.018,637.00. 949.129.001 1,042,560.00 1,000,164, e

Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM



Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

Cashflow Worksheet -~ Budget Year (2)

First Interim
2017-18 INTERIM REPORT

2165474 6118491
Form CASH

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH

{ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)

1,000 164.00
=

Page 1 0of 2

42 of 256

Object s Jul Qctober December Janua
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF e o i%» L S ey - - i
Enter Month Name)d October [ Dy i L i o e i L
A. BEGINNING CASH R a 1,000,184.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000,164.00
B. RECEIPTS o .
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources | o .
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 .
Property Taxes 8020-8079 .
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 -1
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 {1 ¢ <
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | Ll f 0
Other Local Revenue B8600-8799 “
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929 I
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 [
TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS e
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 {0
Classified Salaries 2000-2999
Employee Benefits 3000-3998
Books and Supplies 4000-4989 |
Services 5000-5999 £
Capital Qutlay 6000-6599 12
Other Outgo 7000-7499 ||
Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 {iii
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Quiflows
Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9189
Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
Due From Other Funds 9310
Stores 9320
Prepaid Expenditures 9330
Other Current Assets 9340
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabitities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable 9500-8599
Due To Other Funds 9610
Current Loans 9640
Uneamed Revenues 9650
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9680
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Suspense Clearing 9910
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/IDECREASE (B-C + D) 0.00
F. ENDING CASH (A + E}
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‘Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary
Marin County

Cashflow \

2017

First Interim

18 INTERIM REPORT
Norksheet - Budget Year (2)
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Form CASH

Object

ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF

i s £
1,000,164.00 1,000,

i

184.00

Adjustments

BUDGET
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File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)
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B. RECEIPTS
L.CFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8018 0.00
Property Taxes 8020-8079 0.00
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 0.00
Federal Revenue 8100-8289 0.00;
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929 0.00
Ali Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 0.00
TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00] 0.00 0.00] 0.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-199¢ 0.00
Classified Salaries 2000-2998 0.00
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00
Books and Supplies 4000-4993 0.00
Services 5000-5989 0.00!
Capital Qutlay 6000-6599 0.00!
Other Quigo 7000-7489 0.00
tnterfund Transfers Oul 7600-7629 0.00
Alf Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Assets and Deferred Qutflows
Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
Due From Other Funds 9310
Stores 9320
Prepaid Expenditures 9330
Other Current Assets 9340
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 9490
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabllities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable 9500-9599
Due To Other Funds 9610
Current Loans 9640
Unearned Revenues 9650
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9680
SUBTOTAL 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00; 0.00] 0.00:
Nonoperating
Suspense Clearing 9910
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B-C + D) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 1,000.164.00 1.000,164.00 1,000,164.00 1,000.164.00,

1,000.164.00}
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim 2165474 6118491
Sausalito Marin City Elementary Fiscal Year 2017-18 Form Cl
Marin County Charter School Certification
Charter Number: 351
To the chartering authority and the county superintendent of schools {or only to the county superintendent of
schools if the county board of education is the chartering authority):
2017-18 CHARTER SCHOOL INTERIM REPORT: This report is hereby filed by the charter school pursuant to
Education Code Section 47604.33(a).
Signed: QQ" V}Q\@\ Date: \2( \% / \ 7
Charter School Official
(Original signature required)
Printed
Name: Tara Seekins Title: Head of School
For additional information on the interim report, please contact:
Charter School Contact:
Donna Strong
Name
Business Service Manager
Title
530-647-1733
Telephone
donnas@adminres.com
E-mail Address
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - Version 2017.2.0 )
File: chi-cs (Rev 03/22/2017) Page 1 Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary 2017-18 Projected Year Totals 21 65474 6118491
Marin County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2017-18
Section | - Expenditures Goals Functions | Objects Expenditures
A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All Al 1000-7999 4,182,184.00
B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 363,533.00
C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1. Community Services All 5000-5999 | 1000-7999 0.0Q
. All except | All except
2. Capital Outlay 7100-7198 | 5000-5999 | 6000-6999 18,349.00
5400-5450,
5800, 7430-
3. Debt Service Al 9100 7439 0.00
4. Other Transfers Out Al 9200 7200-7299 0.00
5. Interfund Transfers Out : Al 9300 7600-7629 0.00
9100 7699
6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00
All except
5000-5998,
7. Nonagency 7100-7199 | 9000-9999 | 1000-7999 0.00
8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received) Al Al 8710 0.00
9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not include
Presidentially declared disaster expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or 0.00
D2. .

10. Total state and local expenditures not
allowed for MOE calculation

(Sum lines C1 through C9) 18,349.00
1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services minus
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) Alt Al 8000-8699 0.00
X i e Manually entered. Must not include
2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities _expenditures in fines A or D1. 0.00
E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 3,800,302.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 06/28/2017) Page 1 Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary

2017-18 Projected Year Totals

2165474 6118491

Marin County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
2017-18
Annual ADA/

Section Il - Expenditures Per ADA Exps. Per ADA
A. Average Daily Attendance

(Form Al, Column C, Line C9)* 396.15
B. Expenditures per ADA (Line LE divided by Line HL.A) 9,593.09
Section Il - MOE Calculation {For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE} Total Per ADA
A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures extracted from prior year ‘

Unaudited Actuals MOE Calculation)

(Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, in its final determination, CDE will ¢

adjust the prior year base to 80 percent of the preceding prior year amount

rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.) -1 3,675.311.00 9,813.91

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A 1) 3,675,311.00 9,813.91
B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 3,307,779.90 8,832.52
C. Current year expenditures (Line |.E and Line {[.B) 3,800,302.00 9,593.08
D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00
E. MOE determination

(if one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met

is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If

- either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is

incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero
- (Line D divided by Line B)
(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2019-20 may
be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

*Interim Periods - Annual ADA not available from Form Al. For your convenience, Projected Year Totals

Estimated P-2 Report ADA has been preloaded. Manual adjustment may be required to reflect estimated Annual ADA.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 06/28/2017) Page 2
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary 2017-18 Projected Year Totals 2165474 6118491
Marin County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures {used in Section lli, Line A.1)
Total Expenditures
Description of Adjustments . Expenditures Per ADA
Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2. 0
File: esmoe (Rev 06/28/2017) Page 3 Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim
Sausalito Marin City Elementary 2017-18 Projected Year Totals 2165474 6118491
Marin County indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR

Part | - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The
calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

occupied by general administration.

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
{Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 0.00
2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroli
a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a
contract, rather than through payroli, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 8000, Object 5800. 0.00
b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

All General Administrative duties are performed off-site by a Contracted Service Provider.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll {(Funds 01, 08, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 8000) 3,294,093.00

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration
(Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part lll, Lines A5 and AB) 0.00%

Part Il - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal” or "abnormal
or mass" separation costs.

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs

“may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool.

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

A. Normal Separation Costs {optional)
Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource {0000-1889) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part il from base costs to the indirect cost pool. 0.00
Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged {o
unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be
moved in Part Il from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017) P4$S 06356 Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM



Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary

First Interim
2017-18 Projected Year Totals

21 65474 6118491

Marin County - Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part lll - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)
A. Indirect Costs
1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line BS) 171,170.00
2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 0.00
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7130, resources 0000-1888,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 0.00
4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
{Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 0.60 -
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 0.00
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part li, Line A) 0.00
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part 1], Line B) 0.00
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 171,170.00
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part [V, Line F) 5,075.14
10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 176,245.14
B. Base Costs
1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 2,720,663.00
2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 547,255.00
3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5989 except 5100) 502,059.00
4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 99,473.00
5. Community Services {Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5899 except 5100) 0.00
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5998,
minus Part ill, Line Ad4) 0.00
8. External Financial Audif - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7180-7197,
objects 5000-5399, minus Part lil, Line A3) 11,000.00
9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 2000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
10. Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or speciﬁc. goals only)
(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5989) 0.00
11.  Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part [li, Line A5) 107,215.00
12. Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part lil, Line A6) 5,000.00
13.  Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Less: Normal Separation Costs {(Part Ii, Line A) 0.00
b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part i, Line B) 0.00
14.  Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
15, Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
16. Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61, functions 1000-6899, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100} 0.00
17. Foundation (Funds 19 and 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
18. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B17, minus Line B13a) 3,992,665.00
C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment
(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
{Line A8 divided by Line B18) 4.29%
D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate
{For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2019-20 see www.cde.ca.gov/fglaclic)
{Line A10 divided by Line B18) 4.41%

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2. O
File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017)

3,08 436

Printed: 12/12/2017 10:02 AM




Willow Creek Academy First interim

21 65474 6118491
Form ICR

Sausalito Marin City Elementary 2017-18 Projected Year Totals
Marin County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment
The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the
approved rate was based.
Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.
A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part lil, Line A8)
B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)
1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year
2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any
C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year
1. Under-recovery: Part lil, Line AB, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (4.16%) times Part lll, Line B18); zero if negative
2. Over-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (4.16%) times Part lli, Line B18) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (0%) times Part liI, Line B18); zero if positive
D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2)
E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year
Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.
Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part lil, Line D} if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation:
Option 2.  Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part lif, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years:
Option 3.  Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part ill, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years:
LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3
F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part lll, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
Option 2 or Option 3 is selected)

171,170.60

0.00

0.00

5,075.14

0.00

5,075.14

not applicable

not applicable

not applicable

6.075.14

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0

File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017) P56 35f P56
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Willow Creek Academy First Interim

Sausalito Marin City Elementary 2017-18 Projected Year Totals 2165474 6118491
Marin County Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR
Approved indirect cost rate: 4.16%
Highest rate used in any program: 0.00%
Eligible Expenditures
(Objects 1000-5999 Indirect Costs Charged Rate
Fund Resource except Object 5100) {Objects 7310 and 7350) Used

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 03/16/2012) Page 1 of 1
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SACS2017ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
12/12/2017 10:02:59 AM 21-65474-6118491
First Interim
2017-18 Original Budget
Technical Review Checks
Willow Creek Academy
Sausalito Marin City Elementary Marin County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
o} - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHECKFUND - (F) - All FUND codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK-FUNDO9-ACTIVITY ~ (F) - There is no activity in Fund 09. PASSED
CHECKRESOURCE - (W} - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK-RS-LOCAL-DEFINED - (F) - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to
a CDE defined resource code. PASSED
CHECKGOAL - (F) - All GOAL codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKFUNCTION ~ (F) - All FUNCTION codes must be valid. - PASSED
CHECKOBJECT ~ (F) - All OBJECT codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxOBJECT ~ (F) ~ All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FDxRS87690x8590 - (¥F) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590,
All Other State Revenue, must be used in combination with Resource 7690, STRS-
On Behalf Pension Contributions. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxRESOURCE - (W) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations
should be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (W) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-A - (W) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73)
and FUNCTION account code combinations should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK~FUNDxFUNCTION-B - (F) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19,
57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid. PASSED

CHK-RESOURCEXOBJECTA - (W) -~ All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through

9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED
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21-65474-6118491-Willow Creek Academy-First interim 2017-18 Original Budget
12/12/12017 10:02:59 AM :

CHK-RESQURCExOBJECTB -~ {(0) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT ({(objects 9791, 9793, and
9795) account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK-RES6500x0BJ8091 - (F) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special
Education) with Object 8091 (LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue
Limit Transfers-Prior Years). PASSED

CHK-FUNCTIONXOBJECT ~ (F) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations
must be valid. PASSED

CHK~-GOALXFUNCTION~-A -~ (F) - Goal and function account code combinations (all
goals with expenditure objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5939)
must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the GOALXxFUNCTION table (0000,
2000-33599, 6000-6989, 7100-7199, 7210, BO00-8999) are not checked and will pass
the TRC. PASSED

CHK~GOALXFUNCTION-B -~ (F) - General administration costs (functions 7200-~7999,
except 7210) must be direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County

Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or 8600-8699). PASSED
SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (F) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions

{resources 3300-3405, and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a
Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110, Nonagency-Educational. This

technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3312,
3318, and 3332, PASSED

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

INTERFD-DIR-COST - (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs -~ Interfund (Object 5750)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs -~ Interfund (Object 7350)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object
7350) must net to zero by function. PASSED

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (W) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910-8929) must equal
Interfund Transfers Out (objects 7610-7629). PASSED

LCFF-TRANSFER - (W) - LCFF Transfers (objects 8091 and 8099) must net to =zero,
individually. PASSED

INTRAFD~-DIR-COST ~ (F) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD~INDIRECT - (F) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to
zerco by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT~-FN - (F) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net
to zero by function. PASSED

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (F) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues {Object
8980) must net to zero by fund. PASSED

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (F) ~ Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990)
must net to zero by fund. PASSED
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EPA-CONTRIB - (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8899) to the
Education Protection Account (Resource 1400). PASSED

LOTTERY-CONTRIB ~ (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to
the lottery (resources 1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional
Materials (Resource 6300). PASSED

PASS-THRU-REV=EXP - (W) - Pass~-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287,

8587, and 8697) should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other

agencies {objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for Resource 3327), by resource.
PASSED

SE~PASS-THRU-REVENUE - (W) - Transfers of special education pass-through
revenues are not reported in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a
Special Education Local Plan Area. PASSED

EXCESS~ASSIGN-REU ~ (F) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780)
and/or Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create
a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated (Object 9790) by fund and
resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 73). PASSED

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (F) - Unassigned/Unappropriated balance (Object 9790)
must be zero or negative, by resocurce, in all funds except the general fund and
funds 61 through 73. PASSED

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG - (F) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9790), in
restricted resources, must be zero or negative, by resource, in funds 61
through 73. PASSED

RS-NET~POSITION-ZERO - (F) ~ Restricted Net Position (Object 8797), in
unrestricted resources, must be zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 73.
: ' PASSED

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z) should be positive
by resource, by fund. PASSED

OBJ~-POSITIVE - (W) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by
resource, by fund. PASSED

REV-POSITIVE - (W) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions (objects 8000-
8979) should be positive by resource, by fund. PASSED

EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - Expenditure amounts {objects 1000-7999) should be positive
by function, resource, and fund. PASSED

CEFB-POSITIVE - (F) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects
9700-9789, 9796, and 9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.
PASSED

SUPPLEMENTAIL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

CHK-DEPENDENCY - (F) - If data have changed that affect other forms, the
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affected forms must be opened and saved. PASSED

Checks Completed.
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Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHECKFUND - (F) - All FUND codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK-FUNDOS~ACTIVITY - (F) -~ There is no activity in Fund 09. PASSED
CHECKRESOURCE - (W) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK-RS-LOCAL-DEFINED -~ (F) - All locally defined resource codes must rollkup to
a CDE defined resource code. PASSED
CHECKGOAL - (F) - All GOAL codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKFUNCTION - (F) - All FUNCTION codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKOBJECT - (F) - All OBJECT codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK~-FUNDxOBJECT -~ (F) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be
valid. PASSED

CHK~FDxRS7690x8590 - (F) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590,
All Other State Revenue, must be used in combination with Resocurce 7690, STRS-
On Behalf Pension Contributions. PASSED

CHK~FUNDxRESOURCE - (W) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations
should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (W) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED

CHK~FUNDXFUNCTION-A - (W} - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73)
and FUNCTION account code combinations should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK~FUNDxFUNCTION-B -~ (F) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19,
57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid. PASSED

CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTA - (W) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through

9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED
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CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (0O} - A1l RESOURCE and OBJECT {objects 9791, 9793, and
9795) account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK~RES6500x0BJ8091 - (F) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special
Education) with Object 8091 (LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue
Limit Transfers-~Prior Years). PASSED

CHK-FUNCTIONxOBJECT ~ (F) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations
must be valid. PASSED

CHK~GOALXFUNCTION-A - (F) - Goal and function account code combinations (all
goals with expenditure objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000~199% and 4000-5999)
must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the GOALXxFUNCTION table (0000,
2000-3999, 6000-6999, 7100-7199, 7210, 8000-B999) are not checked and will pass
the TRC. PASSED

CHK-GOALXFUNCTION-B ~ (F) - General administration costs (functions 7200-7999,
except 7210) must be direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County
Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or 8600-8699). PASSED

SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (F) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions
{(resources 3300-3405, and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a
Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110, Nonagency-Educational. This
technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3312,
3318, and 3332. PASSED

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

INTERFD-DIR-COST -~ (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-IRDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs -~ Interfund (Object
7350) must net to zero by function. PASSED

INTERFD~IN-OUT - (W) ~ Interfund Transfers In (objects 83910-8929) must equal
Interfund Transfers Out (objects 7610-7629). PASSED

LCFF-TRANSFER - (W} - LCFF Transfers {(objects 8091 and 80983) must net to zero,
individually. PASSED

INTRAFD-DIR-COST - (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN ~ (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs {Object 7310) must net
to zero by function. PASSED

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (W) -~ Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object
8980) must net to zero by fund. PASSED

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (W)} - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990)
must net to zero by fund. PASSED
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EPA-CONTRIB - (W) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to the
Education Protection Account (Resource 1400). PASSED

LOTTERY~-CONTRIB -~ (W) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8399) to
the lottery (resources 1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional
Materials (Resource 6300). PASSED

PASS-THRU~-REV=EXP - (W) - Pass-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287,

8587, and 8697) should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other

agencies {objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for Rescurce 3327), by resource.
PASSED

SE-PASS-THRU-REVENUE -~ (W) - Transfers of special education pass-through
revenues are not reported in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a
Special Education Local Plan Area. PASSED

EXCESS-ASSIGN-REU - (W) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780)
and/or Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create
a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated (Object 9790) by fund and
resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 73). PASSED

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (F) - Unassigned/Unappropriated balance {Object 9790)
must be zero or negative, by resource, in all funds except the general fund and
funds 61 through 73. PASSED

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG - (F) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9780}, in
restricted resources, must be zero or negative, by resource, in funds 61
through 73. PASSED

RS-NET~-POSITION-ZERO ~ (F) - Restricted Net Position (Object 9797}, in
unrestricted resources, must be zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 73.
) ' PASSED

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z} should be positive
by resource, by fund. PASSED

OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by
rasource, by fund. PASSED

REV-POSITIVE - (W) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions ({cbjects 8000-
83879) should be positive by resource, by fund. PASSED

EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - Expenditure amounts (objects 1000-7999) should be positive
by function, resource, and fund. PASSED

CEFB-POSITIVE - (W) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects

9700-9789, 9796, and 9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.
PASSED

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

CHK-DEPENDENCY - (F) - If data have changed that affect other forms, the
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affected forms must be opened and saved. PASSED

Checks Completed.
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Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
e} - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHECKFUND ~ (F) - All FUND codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK-FUNDO9-ACTIVITY -~ (F) - There is no activity in Fund 09. PASSED
CHECKRESOURCE - (W) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. PASSED
CHK~-RS~LOCAL-DEFINED - (F) - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to
a CDE defined resource code. PASSED
CHECKGOAL - (F) - All GOAL codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKFUNCTION - (F)‘— All FUNCTION codes must be valid. - PASSED
CHECKOBJECT ~ (F} - All OBJECT codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxOBJECT - (F) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be
valid. ) PASSED

CHK-FDxRS7690x8590 - (F) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590,
All Other State Revenue, must be used in combination with Resource 7690, STRS-
On Behalf Pension Contributions. PASSED

CHK~FUNDXRESOURCE - (W) -~ All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations
should be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxGOAL ~ (W) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be
valid. ’ PASSED

CHK~-FUNDXFUNCTION~A - (W) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73)
and FUNCTION account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK~FUNDxFUNCTION-B ~ (F) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19,
57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid. PASSED

CHK-~RESOURCEXOBJECTA -~ (W) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through

9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED
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CHK-RESOURCEXOBJECTBE - (0) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (cbjects 9791, 9793, and
9795) account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK~RES6500x0BJ8091 - (F) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special
Education) with Object 8091 (LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 80939 (LCFF/Revenue
Limit Transfers-Prior Years). PASSED

CHK-FUNCTIONXOBJECT - (F) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations
must be valid. PASSED

CHK-GOALXFUNCTION~A - (F) -~ Goal and function account code combinations (all
goals with expenditure objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5999)
must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the GOALxFUNCTION table (0000,
2000-3999, 6000~6999, 7100-7199, 7210, 8000-8998) are not checked and will pass
the TRC. PASSED

CHK-GOALXFUNCTION-B ~ (F) - General administration costs {(functions 7200-7998,
except 7210) must be direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County
Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or 8600-8693). PASSED

SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (F) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions
(resources 3300~3405, and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a
Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110, Nonagency-Educational. This
technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3312,
3318, and 3332. PASSED

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

INTERFD-DIR-COST ~ (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750)
must net to. zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (W) -~ Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object
7350) must net to zero by function. PASSED

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (W) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910-8929) must equal
Interfund Transfers Out (objects 7610-7629). PASSED

LCFF-TRANSFER - (W) - LCFF Transfers (objects 8091 and 8099) must net to zero,
individually. PASSED

INTRAFD~DIR~-COST -~ (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net
to zero by function. PASSED

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (W) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object
8980) must net to zero by fund. PASSED

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV ~ (W) - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8390)
must net to zero by fund. PASSED
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EPA-CONTRIB - (W) - There should be no contributions {(objects 8880-899839) to the
Education Protection Account (Resource 1400). PASSED

LOTTERY-CONTRIB -~ (W) - There should be no contributions (objects 8580-8999) to

the lottery (resources 1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional
Materials (Resource 6300). PASSED

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

CHK-DEPENDENCY -~ (F) ~ If data have changed that affect other forms, the
affected forms must be opened and saved. PASSED

Checks Completed.
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Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required) :
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHECKFUND - (F) - All FUND codes must be wvalid. PASSED
CHK~FUNDOS-ACTIVITY - (F) - There is no activity in Fund 09. PASSED
CHECKRESOQURCE - (W) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK~RS-LOCAL-DEFINED - (F} - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to

a CDE defined resource code. PASSED
CHECKGOAL ~ (F) - All GOAL codes must be valid. ; PASSED
CHECKFUNCTION - (F) ~ All FUNCTION codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKOBJECT -~ (F) -~ All OBJECT codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK~FUNDXOBJECT ~ (F) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FDxRS7690x8590 ~ (F) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590,
All Other State Revenue, must be used in combination with Resource 7680, STRS-
On Behalf Pension Contributions. PASSED

CHK-FUNDXRESOURCE - (W) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations
should be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (W) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-A - (W) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73)
and FUNCTION account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-B - (F) - All FUND- (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19,
57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION account code combinations must be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-RESOURCEXOBJECTA - (W) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through

9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED
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CHK~RESOURCEXOBJECTB ~ (0) ~ All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and
9795) account code combinations should be valid. PASSED

CHK-RES6500x0BJ80S81 ~ (F) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special
Education) with Object 8091 (LCFF Transfers-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue
Limit Transfers~Prior Years). PASSED

CHK~FUNCTIONXOBJECT - (F) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations
must be valid. ) PASSED

CHK~GOALXFUNCTION-A ~ (F) - Goal and function account code combinations (all
goals with expenditure objects 1000~7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5989)
must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the GOALXFUNCTION table (0000,
2000-3999, 6000-6999, 7100-719%8, 7210, 8000-8999) are not checked and will pass
the TRC. PASSED

CHK~GOALxFUNCTION-B ~ (F) - General administration costs (functions 7200-7999,
except 7210) must be direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County
Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or 8600-8699). PASSED

SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (F) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions
(resources 3300-3405, and 6500-6540, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to a
Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110, Nonagency-Educational. This
technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3312,
3318, and 3332. PASSED

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

INTERFD-DIR-COST -~ (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750}
nust net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund {Object 7350)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN ~ (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object
7350) must net to zero by function. PASSED

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (W) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910~8929) must equal
Interfund Transfers Out (objects 7610-7629). PASSED

LCFP-TRANSFER - (W) - LCFF Transfers {(objects 8091 and 8099) must net to zero,
individually. PASSED

INTRAFD-DIR~-COST - (F) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710} must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (F) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN - (F) ~ Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net
to zero by function. PASSED

CONTRIB-UNREST~REV - (F) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object
8980} must net to zero by fund. PASSED

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (F) - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990)
must net to zero by fund. PASSED
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EPA-CONTRIB -~ (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to the
Education Protection Account (Resource 1400). PASSED

LOTTERY-CONTRIB - (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to
the lottery (resources 1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional
Materials (Resouxrce 6300). PASSED

PASS~-THRU-REV=EXP - (W) - Pass-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287,

8587, and 8697) should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other

agencies (objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for Resource 3327), by resource.
PASSED

SE-PASS-THRU-REVENUE —'(W) - Transfers of special education pass-éhrough
revenues are not reported in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a
Special Education Local Plan Area. PASSED

EXCESS-ASSIGN-REU - (F) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780)
and/or Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create
a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated (Object 9790} by fund and
resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 73). PASSED

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (F) - Unassigned/Unappropriated balance (Object 9790)
must be zero or negative, by resource, in all funds except the general fund and
funds 61 through 73. PASSED

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG -~ (F) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9780), in
restricted resources, must be zero or negative, by resource, in funds 61
through 73. PASSED

RS~NET~-POSITION-ZERC - (F) - Restricted Net Position (Object 9797), in
unrestricted resources, must be zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 73.

PASSED -

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z) should be positive
by resource, by fund. PASSED

OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by
resource, by .fund. PASSED

REV-POSITIVE - (W) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions (objects 8000-
8979) should be positive by resource, by fund. PASSED

EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - Expenditure amounts (objects 1000~7999) should be positive
by function, resource, and fund. PASSED

CEFB-POSITIVE - (F) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position ({(objects

9700~9789, 9796, and 9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.
PASSED

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

EXPORT CHECKS

CHK-UNBALANCED-A - (W) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms
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should be corrected before an official export is completed. PASSED

CHK~UNBALANCED-B ~ (F) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms
must be corrected before an official export can be completed. PASSED

CHK-DEPENDENCY - (F) -~ If data have changed that affect other forms, the

affected forms must be opened and saved. PASSED

Checks Completed.
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Export Log
Period: First Interim
Type of Export: Official

LEA: 21-65474-6118491 Willow Creek Academy

Official Check for LEA: 21-85474-6118491 is good

Export of USER General Ledger started at 12/12/2017 9:59:38 AM

OFFICIAL Header for LEA: 21-65474-6118491 Willow Creek Academy

VERSION 2017.2.0

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Actuals to Date
Number of records exported in group 1: 117

Fiscal Year: 2017-18 .
Type of Data: Board Approved Operating Budget
Number of records exported in group 2: 122

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Original Budget
Number of records exported in group 3: 122

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Projected Totals
Number of records exported in group 4: 130

Export USER General Ledger completed at 12/12/2017 9:59:38 AM

Export of Supplementals (USER ELEMENTS) started at 12/12/2017 9:59:38 AM

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Actuals to Date
Number of records exported in group 5: 2

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Board Approved Operating Budget
Number of records exported in group 6: 55

Fiscal Year: 2017-18

Type of Data Original Budget
Number of records exported in group 7. 55

Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Projected Totals
Number of records exported in group 8: 1307

Export of Supplementat (USER ELEMENTS) completed at 12/12/2017 9:53:40 AM

Export of Explanations started at 12/12/2017 9:59:40 AM
No records to Export for Explanations.

Export of TRC Log started at 12/12/2017 9:59:40 AM
Fiscal Year: 2017-18
Type of Data: Actuals to Date
Number of records exported in group 9: 33

Fiscal Year: 2017-18

Type of Data: Board Approved Operating Budget

Number of records exported in group 10: 44

Fiscal Year: 2017-18

Type of Data: Original Budget

Number of records exported in group 11: 44

Fiscal Year: 2017-18

Type of Data: Projected Totals

Number of records exported in group 12: 46
Export of TRC Log completed at-12/12/2017 9:59:40 AM
OFFICIAL END for LEA: 21-65474-6118491 Willow Creek Academy

Exported to file: C:ASACS2017ALL\Official\2165474611849111.DAT

End of Official Export Process
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Valenzuela/ CAHSEE Lawsuit Settlement

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186(d)]

District: Sausalito Marin City
Person completing this form: William McCoy Title: —Superintendent
Quarterly Report Submission Date: July 2017
<  October 2017
L
7 January 2018
April 2018

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting of January 9, 2018

Please check the box that applies:

X No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter
indicated above.

Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter indicated
above. The following chart summarizes the nature and resolution of these

complaints.
General Subject Total #.of # Resolved # Unresolved
Area Complaints
Textbooks and 0
Instructional
Materials
Teacher Vacancy or 0
Misassignment
Facilities Conditions 0
CAHSEE Intensive 0
Instruction and
Services
TOTALS 0
William McCoy
Print Name of District Superintendent
1/9/2018
Signature of District Superintendent Date
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Payment of Warrants
1/9 , 2018

Attached warrants include:

Batch 22 Fund 01 in the amount of $5,133.08
Batch 23 Fund 01 in the amount of $26,408.45
Batch 23 Fund 13 in the amount of $799.45
Batch 24 Fund 01 in the amount of $12,810.53
Batch 24 Fund 13 in the amount of $3,600.00
Batch 24 Fund 01 in the amount of $196,916.54
Batch 25 Fund 13 in the amount of $1,739.20

Prepared by Vida Moattar
Sausalito Marin City School District Business Office
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MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/P.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415)491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

Date /C;/E}//}L

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment
of vendor payments inthe total of $ S [ 23, DX

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER . AMOUNT
O] Lo S /3308
/

[
Authorized Signature (MZ /Z/
4
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APY250 L.00.05 . Marin County 0ffice of Education ' 12/12/17 PAGE 45
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2017
BATCH: 0022 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
20182876 070308/ CDH-G
P0-180150 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-7150-700-000-000 KXM9939 75.78
P0-180151 1. 01-6500-0-4400.00-5770-1110-700-000-000 KzZC3004 242.22
WARRANT TOTAL $318.00
20182877 070192/ COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.
P0-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-12006 2,158.75
HARRANT TOTAL $2,158.75
20182878 070977/ MONIQUE DOUGLAS
P0-180141 1. 01-9474-0-5840.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 11-12/17 300.00
WARRANT TOTAL $300.00
20182879 071050/ SHANEEKA DUNCAN
P0-180142 1. 01-9474-0-5840.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 11-12/17 300.00
WARRANT TOTAL $300.00
20182880 002890/ LOUIS EDNEY
PV-180244 01-9772-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 Bulletin Board 10.98
WARRANT TOTAL $10.98
20182881 071025/ DAVID FINNANE
PV-180243 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 School Supplies 16.23
WARRANT TOTAL $16.23
20182882 070968/ SHANNON KERR
PV-180241 01-0000-0-4319.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 Family Night Dinner Supplies 72.00
WARRANT TOTAL $72.00
20182883 070988/ VANESSA LYONS
P0-180085 1. 01-9471-0-5800.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 11/17 Garden Work 1,680.00
WARRANT TOTAL $1,680.00
20182884 071054/ DEENA THOMPSON
PV-180242 01-0000-0-4319.00-1110-1010-104-0006-000 Family Night Dinner Supplies 34.69
WARRANT TOTAL $34.69
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APY250 L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

BATCH: 0022 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT)
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

12/12/17

FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/13/2017

DEPOSIT TYPE

ABA NUM

ACCOUNT NuM
DESCRIPTION

PAGE 46

20182885 002172/

PV-180240

*** FUND

TOTALS ***

*kk BATCH TOTALS ***

**% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

Printed: 12/12/2017 13:46:29

WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY

01-0000-0-4319.00-1110-1010-104-0600-000

WARRANT TOTAL

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 10
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 10
TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 10
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 10
TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 10
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 10
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Food for family night dinner

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

242.43
$242.43

$5,133.08*
$.00*
$.00*
$5,133.08*

$5,133.08*
$.00*
$.00%
$5,133.08*

$5,133.08*
$.00%
$.00%
$5,133.08*



MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/R.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY

marincoe@marinki2.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

415)472-4110
FAX (415)491-6625

Date /&//3//7’

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

o ——————

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment
of vendor payments in the total of § <L + ) 9407 F GO

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
O/ SE) b, Gof, K
/3 >3 739 9

& / /
Authorized Signature _J/'/jf% W@( (e
g 7 /

s FF Y i .
Harin County DFFce of Education B e Forn o 5 QNG STUDENT AT A TIME



APY250

DISTRICT:
BATCH:

FUND

WARRANT

20183230

20183231

20183232

20183233

20183234

20183235

20183236

20183237

20183238

12/14/17 PAGE 39

AMOUNT

95.77
$95.77

128.00
$128.00

360.81
$360.81

647.34
$647.34

1,500.00
$1,500.00

53.84
$53.84

352.66
$352.66

705.79
$705.79

L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/15/2017
0023 GENERAL FUND
: 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
070329/ AT&T CALNET 3
P0-180001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 11/17
WARRANT TOTAL
001811/ STATE OF CALIFORNIA
PV-180246 01-0000-0-5821.00-0000-7200~-725-000-000 271285
WARRANT TOTAL
070983/ CAMPUS AGENDAS
P0-180038 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 1340302
WARRANT TOTAL
070935/ CINTAS CORPORATION
P0-180056 1. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 626156083, 626158598
WARRANT TOTAL
002711/ CSBA C/0 WESTAMERICA BANK
PV-180245 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-7200-700~000-000 35749-14S3N4
WARRANT TOTAL
070263/ FEDEX
PV-180247 01-0000-0-5960,00-0000-2700-104-000-000 6-018-68368
WARRANT TOTAL
002270/ FISHMAN SUPPLY CO.
P0-180108 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8210~104-000-000 1109495
WARRANT TOTAL
071027/ MAC TO SCHOOL
P0-180152 1. 01-6500-0-4400.00-5770-1110-700-000-000 MT568336
WARRANT TOTAL
000047/ MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DST
P0-180010 1. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-103-000-000 10-12/17 HCA

2. 01-0000-0-5535.00-0000-8200-104-000-000 10-12/17 BMLK
WARRANT TOTAL
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2,744.94

1,591.92
$4,336.86



12/14/17 PAGE 40

AMOUNT

1,042.00
$1,042.00

4,486.26
$4,486.26

3,456.00

8,064.00
$11,520.00

290.50
$290.50

888.62
$888.62

$26,408.45*
$.00*
$.00*

APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/15/2017
BATCH: 0023 GENERAL FUND
FUND 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y 0BJT S0 GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20183239 070326/ MARIN SANITARY SERVICE
P0-180002 1. 01-0000-0-5550.00-0000-8200~104-000-000 11/17
WARRANT TOTAL
20183240 071015/ MCeDe
P0-180049 1. 01-9472-0-5840.00-0000-2495-104-000-000 Younger 12/17
WARRANT TOTAL
20183241 070406/ SILYCO
P0-180016 1. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7716-104-000-000 0C72017 -1
2. 01-0000-0-5849.00-0000-7716~700-000-000 0CT2017-2, NOV 2017
WARRANT TOTAL
20183242 070677/ LYDIA TUVESON
P0-180131 1. 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000 04LT2017-2018
WARRANT TOTAL
20183243 070525/ US BANCORP EQUIP. FINANCE INC
P0-180012 1. 01-0000-0-5605.00~0000-7200-700-000-000 11/17
WARRANT TOTAL
*%% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 14 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 14 TOTAL AMOUNT:
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$26,408.45*



12/14/17

PAGE 41

178.19
$178.19

561.26
$561.26

60.00
$60.00

$799.45%
$.00*
$.00*
$799.45*

$27,207.90*
$.00*
$.00*
$27,207.90*

$27,207 .90*
$.00*
$.00*%

APY250  L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/15/2017
BATCH: 0023 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
20183244 070841/ ECOLAB
P0-180050 1. 13-5310-0-5605.00-0000-37006-700-000-000 7843707
WARRANT TOTAL
20183245 070816/ UNFI
PV-180248 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 10328325-003
WARRANT TOTAL
20183246 070799/ VERITABLE VEGETABLE INC.
PV-180249 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000 1190472
WARRANT TOTAL
**% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 3 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 3 TOTAL AMOUNT:
Fhk BATCH TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 17 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 17 TOTAL AMOUNT:
*** DISTRICT TOTALS *%% TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 17 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
17 TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL PAYMENTS:

Printed: 12/14/2017 10:17:23
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MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/R.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE (415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 MARIN COUNTY FAX (415)491-6625
marincoe@marin.k12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

pete__ s /18 /1y

District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments in the total of $ I(a{ o &

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBER - AMOUNT
O] QA Y L, K/0,£3
IVD\ ;l_Lf’ t%%:c:)(:» (L)

/"’\ . /
Authorized Signature Wd%%ﬂ 1% Zé/L
7/
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APY250 L.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

Marin County Office of Education

COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2017

BATCH: 0024 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR
REQ#

NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE
REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

12/19/17 PAGE 49

AMOUNT

20183673 070192/

20183674 000701/

20183675 002345/

20183676 000016/

20183677 070913/

20183678 071036/

COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.

PO-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

HYDREX PEST CONTROL

P0-180014 2. 01-0000-0-5525.00-0000-8200-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

KONE INC.

P0-180006 2. 01-8150-0-5840.00-0000-8110-104-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

OFFICE DEPOT

PV-180251 01-0000-0-4300,00-0000-7200-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

SEAGATE BRIDGEWAY ASSOCIATES

PV-180252 01-0000-0-5555.00-0000-7150-725-000~-000
WARRANT TOTAL

STAFFING OPTIONS & SOLUTIONS

P0-180107 1. 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL

**% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:

6
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 6
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17-08102, 09072, 12034

12/17 BMLK

12/17 BMLK

964660561001 Lost check

1/2018 Rent

21921

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

5,729.48
$5,729.48

85.00
$85.00

131.28
$131.28

317.77
$317.77

5,317.00
$5,317.00

1,230.00
$1,230.00

$12,810.53*
$.00%
$.00%
$12,810.53*

Y



APY250  1.00.05

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT
BATCH: 0024 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND

WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE

REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y 0BJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP

20183679 071055/ GUILLAUME PFAHL
PV-180250
WARRANT TOTAL

**% FYND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:

TOTAL PAYMENTS:

o -

falaid BATCH TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:

TOTAL PAYMENTS:

- o o~

*%% DISTRICT TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:

TOTAL PAYMENTS:

~N O O

Printed: 12/19/2017 11:26:35

79 of 256

ABA NUM

13-5310-0-5840.00-0000-3700-700-000-000

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 12/20/2017

ACCOUNT NUM
DESCRIPTION

Training for MLK Staff

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

12/19/17 PAGE 50

3,600.00
$3,600.00

$3,600.00*
$.00*
$.00*
$3,600.00*

$16,410.53*
$.00*
$.00*
$16,410.53*

$16,410.53*
$.00*
$.00*
$16,410.53*




MARIN COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1111 LAS GALLINAS AVENUE/R.O. BOX 4925 MARY JANE BURKE k {415)472-4110
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94913-4925 ‘ MARIN COUNTY FAX (415)491-6625
marincoe@marink12.ca.us SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
VENDOR PAYMENT CERTIFICATION
Date_ (/3 / [¥
District Name SAUSALITO MARIN CITY District No. 47

The Governing Board of the District named hereon hereby authorizes and directs payment

of vendor payments inthetotal of§ 15, LSS, Y .
/

FUND NUMBER BATCH NUMBéR - AMOUNT
O DAY 196, V16, S
/3 QY [ 13 9.0

Authorized Signature W[/LM 4 W

inasg Form Ho

Marin County OFfi f Educati . 118
arin County OFFice of Educat o o THE FUTURESQ. ofGNESTUDENT AT A TIME

w:
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APY250 L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education 01/04/18 PAGE 45
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/05/2018
BATCH: 0025 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM  ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
20184723 070873/ ADVANCED SECURITY SYSTEMS
P0-180023 2. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-104-000-000 Replace door contacts 247.06
2. 01-0000-0-5840.00-0000-8300-104-000-000 Door Sensor Service 238.15
WARRANT TOTAL $485.21
20184724 070329/ ATAT CALNET 3
P0-180001 1. 01-0000-0-5970.00-0000-2700-104-000-000 12/17 928.54
WARRANT TOTAL $928.54
20184725 070513/ BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB
P0-180010 2. 01-0000-0-5840.00-1110-8500-104-000-000 1271 2,911.00
1. 01-6010-0-5840.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 1271 9,374.00
WARRANT TOTAL $12,285.00
20184726 070711/ BRIGHT PATH THERAPISTS
PV-180266 01-6500-0-5835.10-5770-1182-700-000-000 6695, 6708 1,028.97
WARRANT TOTAL $1,028.97
20184727 000608/ BURKELL PLUMBING
PV-180262 01-8150-0-5600.00-0000-8110-104-000-000 49405 350.00
WARRANT TOTAL $350.00
20184728 070192/ COMMUNIQUE INTERPRETING INC.
P0-180095 1. 01-6500-0-5840.00-5770-1132-700-000-000 17-12071 2,303.75
WARRANT TOTAL $2,303.75
20184729 002270/ FISHMAN SUPPLY CO.
P0-180108 1. 01-0000-0-4300.00-0000-8210-104-000-000 1104076, 51112429 926.58
WARRANT TOTAL $926.58
20184730 071038/ JULIE FREDERICK
PV-180259 01-1100-0-4300.00-1110-1010-104-000-114 Classroom Supplies 79.34
WARRANT TOTAL $79.34
20184731 070876/ GATEWAY LEARNING GROUP
PV-180261 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000 1098961 135.00
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APY250
DISTRICT:

BATCH:
FUND

WARRANT

20184732

20184733

20184734

20184735

20184736

20184737

20184738

20184739

20184740

1.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/05/2018
0025 GENERAL FUND
: 01 GENERAL FUND
VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ#  REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
WARRANT TOTAL
071041/ LESHAWN HOLCOMB
pPV-180258 01—1100-0-4300.00-1110—1010-104-000—118 Classroom Supplies
WARRANT TOTAL
000039/ KAISER FOUNDATION
pPV-180254 01—0000-0-9526.00-0000-0000—000-000-000 578-0002
01—0000-0—9526.00—0000-0000-000-000-000 16734-0001
WARRANT TOTAL
071057/ LEARNING ALLY
P0-180153 1. 01—6500—0—5849.00-5770-1100-700—000-000 65546
WARRANT TOTAL
070988/ VANESSA LYONS
pPO-180085 1. 01-9471—0-5800.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 12/17 Garden Work
WARRANT TOTAL
000899/ MICHAEL'S TRANSPORTATION SERV
p0-180147 1. 01-9473-0-5819.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 100717
WARRANT TOTAL
000015/ MSIA DENTAL
pPV-180255 01—0000-0-9528.00—0000-0000-000—000—000 1/18
WARRANT TOTAL
000117/ MSIA VISION
PV-180256 01-0000—0—9529.00-0000-0000-000-000-000 1/18
WARRANT TOTAL
000016/ OFFICE DEPOT
P0-180155 1. 01-0000~0-4300.00—0000-2700-104-000-000 Trestle Tables
WARRANT TOTAL
070384/ FLORA SANCHEZ
pV-180264 01-0000-0-5230.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 12/17 Mileage
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$135.00

140.61
$140.61

13,821.00

13,891.21
$27,712.21

1,599.00
$1,599.00

1,440.00
$1,440.00

1,362.50
$1,362.50

3,071.77
$3,071.77

370.31
$370.31

232.41
$232.41

36.06




APY250

DISTRICT: 047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/05/2018
BATCH: 0025 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 01 GENERAL FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE ABA NUM ACCOUNT NUM
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP DESCRIPTION
WARRANT TOTAL
20184741 002397/ SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL
PV-180263 01-0000—0-4300.00-0000—2495—104-000-000 Reimb. check to F. Younger
WARRANT TOTAL
20184742 070789/ SCHOOL FACILITY CONSULTANTS
PV-180260 01—0000—0-5840.00-0006-7206—700-000-000 11378
WARRANT TOTAL
20184743 071036/ STAFFING OPTIONS & SOLUTIONS
P0-180107 1. 01-6500-0-5835.00-5770-1182-700-000-000 20761, 21013
WARRANT TOTAL
20184744 071058/ MICHAEL STERN
PV-180257 01-1100—0-4300.00—1110-1010—104-000-127 Classroom Supplies
WARRANT TOTAL
20184745 070915/ WILDCARE
PV-180265 01-9473-0-5819.00-1110-1010-104-000-000 Edney Field Trip 4/18
WARRANT TOTAL
20184746 002172/ WILLOW CREEK ACADEMY
CL-170067 01-0000-0-7299.00-0000-9200-103-000—000 170067
WARRANT TOTAL
*x% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 24 TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0 TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 24 TOTAL AMOUNT:

L.00.05 Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
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772.50
$772.50

4,305.00
$4,305.00

128.93
$128.93

78.40
$78.40

136,778.00
$136,778.00

$196,916.54*
$.00*
$.00*
$196,916.54*




APY250

DISTRICT:

BATCH: 0025 GENERAL FUND
FUND : 13 CAFETERIA FUND
WARRANT VENDOR/ADDR NAME (REMIT) DEPOSIT TYPE
REQ# REFERENCE LN FD RESC Y OBJT SO GOAL FUNC LOC ACT GRP
20184747 070841/ ECOLAB
P0-180050 1. 13-5310-0-5605 . 00-0000-3700-700-000-000
PV-180253 13—5310-0~5605.00-0000-3700-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
20184748 070827/ MARIN SUN FARMS
PV-180269 13-5310-0-4700.00—0000-3700-700—000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
20184749 070973/ ROCK ISLAND REFRIGERATED
PV-180267 13-5310-0-4700.00-0000-3700-700-000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
20184750 070816/ UNFI
PV-180268 13-5310-0—4700.00—0000-3700-700—000-000
WARRANT TOTAL
*x% FUND TOTALS *** TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS:

1.00.05

dokk

*x% DISTRICT TOTALS ***

047 SAUSALITO SCHOOL DISTRICT

BATCH TOTALS ***

Marin County Office of Education
COMMERCIAL WARRANT REGISTER
FOR WARRANTS DATED 01/05/2018

TOTAL ACH GENERATED:
TOTAL EFT GENERATED:
TOTAL PAYMENTS:

o o

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 28

TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 28
TOTAL NUMBER OF CHECKS: 28
TOTAL ACH GENERATED: 0
TOTAL EFT GENERATED: 0
TOTAL PAYMENTS: 28

Printed: 01/04/2018 12:53:06
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ACCOUNT HUM
DESCRIPTION

7861782

7861782

425542

1070329, 1081109

10338491-004

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHECKS:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ACH:
TOTAL AMOUNT OF EFT:
TOTAL AMOUNT:

01/04/18 PAGE 48

AMOUNT

77.94

58.00
$135.94

601.43
$601.43

330.20
$330.20

671.63
$671.63

$1,739.20%
$.00%
$.00%
$1,739.20*%

$198,655.74*
$.00*
$.00*
$198,655.74*

$198,655.74%
$.00*
$.00*
$198,655.74*




SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
December 5, 2017
ATTENDANCE
Board Members Present: Joshua Barrow, Ida Green, Debra Turner
Absent: Thomas Newmeyer, Caroline Van Alst
Superintendent: Will McCoy

The meeting was called to order at 5:05 p.m.

AGENDA

M/s/c /Turner/Green to approve the agenda
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

The governance Workshop was facilitated by Lisa Mori and Terilyn Finders of Fagen, Friedman and
Fulfrost. Trustees reviewed the current mission and values of the district and proposed changes. The
Superintendent said that he would bring those suggestions to the next regular board meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

M/s/c Green/Turner to Adjourn at 7:25 p.m.
Avyes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

Signature/Date

Title
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING MINUTES
December 14, 2017

ATTENDANCE

Board Members Present: Joshua Barrow, Ida Green, Debra Turner, Caroline Van Alst
Absent: Thomas Newmeyer

Superintendent: Wili McCoy

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Green led the pledge of allegiance.

ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS

Board President

Trustee Green nominated trustee Barrow for the office of Board President
M/s/c Green/Van Alst to elect Trustee Barrow as Board President

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

Board Vice President
Trustee Turner nominated trustee Green for the office of Board Vice President
M/s/c Turner/Barrow to elect Trustee Green as Board Vice President

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

Board Clerk
Trustee Green nominated trustee Turner for the office of Board Clerk
M/s/c Green/Van Alst to elect Trustee Turner as Board Clerk

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

Appointment of Board Secretary — Will McCoy
M/s/c Van Alst/Green to Appoint Superintendent Will McCoy as Board Secretary

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

Adjournment of Organizational Meeting

M/s/c Green/Van Alst to Adjourn the Organizational Meeting at 6:09 p.m.
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer 86 of 256



OPEN SESSION — Regular Meeting
The regular meeting convened at 6:10 p.m.

REORGANIZATION OF AGENDA

Trustee Van Alst said that concerns have been raised by the County Superintendent that she has a common law
conflict of interest in decisions that affect the relationship between the district and the charter school, arising
from the fact that she has children attending the charter school. She continued: Although | do not believe that a
conflict exists, given the nature of the allegations and the ongoing investigation of the district by the Attorney
General, | am recusing myself from several items on the agenda: 4.01-3 Correspondence, 5.01-3, District
Reports, 6.01, WCA Oversight Committee Report, 7.02, Presentation by the Friends of the Creek, 9.02, First
Interim Budget Approval, 11.01-8, Policy Development. She asked that these items, except for 7.02, be moved to
the end of the agenda.

M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to Re-order the Agenda as Outlined

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

BOARD COMMUNICATIONS

Trustee Turner said that she attended the Governance Workshop and found the discussion about the vision and
mission of the district useful and instructive. She also came to Student Recognition Day and saw several fine
performances.

Trustee Green shared that she lost her youngest brother on November 14 to valley fever.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
Sonja Hanson gave an update on the Bridgeway tunnel lighting project. She said that a contractor will soon be
selected and is slated to complete the work by mid March.

Referring to trustee recusals, Marilyn Mackel said that the underlying reason for the Attorney General’s
investigation is not that some trustees have children at Willow Creek Academy, but the failure to exercise
fiduciary care for the school for which one is responsible.

REPORTS

Student Recognition

Principal David Finnane recognized the following middle school students for placement on the merit roll:
Jasmine Salas Gonzalez

Charlee Dorhan

Jonathan Hernandez Estrada

Fermin Valladares

Terrell Rollins

Erislam Malikov
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He also praised the performance of the following students who were placed on the Honor Roll for the trimester-
Natalie Nong

Narottam Hammari

Elena Caldwell

Miracle Hamilton

Principal Finnane said that the art open studios have been taking place regularly since September. He thanked
the Center for Excellence for its financial contributions and work on behalf of the children. He announced that
he is continuing his work with community mental health care experts to have more consistency in staffing in the
counseling program.

He said that he has met with Tamalpais High School staff to put together a transition program for the 8
graders. Students will spend 3-4 days there to learn more about the school’s various programs. This year,
registration for Tam will take place in the Bayside MLK Jr. Academy multi-purpose room.

While some components of the Freedom School model are in place, he said that he wants to expand the
incorporation of culturally relevant literature in the curriculum. Enrollment is at 124.

WCA

Head of School Tara Seekins said all staff members have set their professional goals keyed to the LCAP and
Strategic Plan. At the December Parent Council meeting, the school’s support strategies for students with
disabilities, families in crisis or transition, homeless students, English Learners, and immigrant students and
families were laid out.

The 2018-19 Academic Calendar has been approved. The winter MAP testing window started last week; the data
will be analyzed as part of the ELA and Math Deep Dives. Four of seven current paraprofessionals are in the
process of obtaining their teaching credentials. Enroliment is at 409.

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB

Michelle Edwards of the Boys and Girls Club of Sonoma County gave a report on the activities of her
organization. At BMLK, the plan is to add a senior program director and increase the site director’s position to
full time. The goal is to serve 100 students by next semester, about 20 more than the current count. Outcome-
driven club experiences include 34 academic programs, as well as sports and fitness and life choice programs.
She said that the hope is to offer intramural sports leagues to the middle school students, academic
intervention, more program specialists and teen late nights in 2018.

At 7.09 trustee Van Alst left the meeting

FRIENDS OF THE CREEK

Steve Moore of Friends of the Creek said that this educational non-profit was formed seven years ago. The
proposed day-lighting of the creek involves removing fire hazards, restarting a well and irrigation system,
treating parking lot storm drainage runoff and ideally an educational enhancement component. He said that
the organization hopes to enhance foundation donations with State funds and will need the district’s
permission to construct improvements on the property as well as a letter of support from the district to the
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State Coastal Conservancy. He emphasized the benefits of the project: outdoor classrooms, aesthetic benefit,
improved water quality, a wildlife corridor and a better connection to the community.

Jennifer Conway said that the WCA Parent Council fully supports this project. It is good for the environment,
community and students, she told the Board.

Marcella Alexis-Adde thanked Mr. Moore for his work on the project. She said that currently, children play in a
swamp when it rains.

At 7: 45, trustee Van Alst returned to the meeting.

Roll Call Turner/Green to Approve the Following Consent Agenda items:
Payment of Warrants — Batches 18-21
Minutes of the November 9, 2017 Board Meeting

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

Revised 2017-2018 Board Meeting Calendar
M/s/c Van Alst/Turner to Approve the Revised 2017-2018 Board Meeting Calendar

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner, Van Alst
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer

At 8:00 pm, trustee Van Alst left the meeting.

CORRESPONDENCE

Superintendent McCoy informed the Board that the district has received a letter from the Marin County Office
of Education regarding its 2016-2017 Unaudited Actuals. He also discussed the Willow Creek Academy letter
regarding facilities and the district response to Willow Creek Academy’s Proposition 39 request.

Approval of the Agreement with Marin County Office of Education for CBO Services through June 30, 2018
M/s/c Turner /Green to Approve the Agreement with Marin County Office of Education for
CBO Services through June 30, 2018

Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner
Noes: None
Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

ANNEX BUILDING UPDATE

Superintendent McCoy thanked Walt Buster and Terena Mares of MCOE, as well as Joshua Barrow and Marilyn
Mackel, for their help in developing options for the annex building. He said that so far, the paramount concern
in the decision making process has been the October 2018 deadline for the $374K seismic improvement grant
from the State. He said that he will bring several options to the Board in January, which include retrofitting or
demolishing the building, as well as a combination of options. It has been determined that the district can ask
the State for a change order, allowing the grant money to be applied solely to classroom replacement, and
removing the original language regarding demolit'gg.df Q‘%change order is approved - since the district has



already spent far in excess of the necessary 50% of the grant toward the construction of the modular classrooms
~ the entire sum can go into the district’s general fund and possibly be used to reduce the original MLK Jr.
Academy construction loan.

The other financial consideration is the $3 million in insurance payments to the district for the loss of the
building at 33 Buchanan in the September 2015 fire. The insurance payment must be used to rebuild the district
office, but this does not preclude us from assigning additional space within the building for counseling offices
and storage.

Trustee Barrow said that it should be noted that approximately $1.6 million of this money has already been paid
to the district and some of it has been spent. He also asked about contingency plans in case the change order is
not approved. Superintendent McCoy said that such plans will be brought to the Board for consideration in
January. In addition, the relevant item in the January agenda will ask the Board to discuss the merits of a retrofit
vs. new construction.

Local Control & Accountability Plan Progress Report

Superintendent McCoy acknowledged Pecolia Manigo of Parent Leadership Action Network for her work on the
LCAP update. He then discussed the most current State Dashboard which shows a snapshot of the district’s
numbers as they affect our students. Metrics for absenteeism and suspensions show that we still have a lot of
work to do to make this a school that our children and the community deserve. Terena Mares added that
although State metrics do not show any schools in the county of Marin as eligible for targeted assistance, the
County Office of Education is taking the lead in designating some schools in Novato, San Rafael and Sausalito-
Marin City as eligible. She said that MCOE will be able to explain what this designation means for this district in
more concrete terms in the next two months.

Facilities Winter Work Update
The HVAC upgrade at Bayside MLK Jr. Academy has been completed and heat is back on in the main building as
well as the multi-purpose room.

STANDING BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

Willow Creek Academy Oversight (Barrow, Turner)

Superintendent McCoy said that he made an oversight visit to WCA and district staff must now conduct a review
of the relevant documents.

2017-2018 First Interim Budget Report

Interim CBO Amy Prescott said this is a first look at the budget since its adoption in June. She said that it is
recommended that the Board approve the report with a qualified certification, as the district can meet its
financial obligations for this fiscal year and the next, but has a shortfall of the minimum 5% economic reserve
requirement for fiscal 2019-2020. The district had an overall increase in revenues of $303,889 due to a rise in
property taxes, donations, grants, and the recognition of the STRS “On Behalf Pension Contributions.” The STRS
On Behalf was added to the budget in the amount $136,403 {revenue always equals expenses). This amount
reflects the District's unfunded liability for STRS and PERS.
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In expenses, there was a decrease in certificated and classified salaries of $114,084, partially offset by an
increase in contracted services.

M/s/c Turner/Green to Approve the 2017-2018 First Interim Budget Report
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

POLICY DEVELOPMENT
The following policies were brought to the Board for a second read:

Board Policy 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities

Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education

Administrative Regulations 1312.3 and 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
Board Policy 1330 - Use of School Facilities

Administrative Regulation 3230 - Federal Grant Funds

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3311 - Bids

Board Policy 3312 — Contracts

Board Policy 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management

ADJOURNMENT

M/s/c Turner/Green to Adjourn at 10:17 p.m.
Ayes: Barrow, Green, Turner

Noes: None

Absent: Newmeyer, Van Alst

Signature/Date

Title
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Sausalito Marin City School District
Agenda ltem: 11.02 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence [] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction
Policy Development

Public Hearings

I < I

ltem Requires Board Action: ltem is for Information Only: [ ]

ltem:  Change of Scope Application to the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC)

Background:

The proposed action before the Board is to submit a "Change in Scope" document to the Office of Public School
Construction (OPSC) in order to remove the demolition of the Annex from the Seismic Mitigation Grant. If
approved, this will allow the District to utilize the Grant money to pay down the Certificate of Participation (COP)
loan that was acquired in order to build the modular classrooms for the primary classrooms at Bayside MLK.

Recommendation:
Approve

Attachment:
Draft letter to OPSC
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Date

XXX
Project Manager

Office of Public School Construction
707 3© Street

West Sacramento, CA 95605

Subject: Sausalito-Marin City Elementary School District
Martin Luther King Jr. Academy Seismic Project
Application Number 58/65474-00-001
Project Modification Confirmation

Dear xx:

The Sausalito-Marin City Elementary School District (District) would like to make a
modification to the Martin Luther King Jr. Academy Seismic Project. Due to unforeseen
circumstances, the District would like to remove the demolition of the Annex Building
from the project.

The District received rehabilitation funding for the replacement of the Annex Building at
the Martin Luther King Jr. Academy school site. The project consisted of replacing the
Annex classroom building, a Most Vulnerable Category 2 Building, with a new
classroom building. The cost estimates to seismically retrofit the Annex building was
below the 50% Current Replacement Cost threshold, therefore the District only qualified
to receive rehabilitation funding for the project.

The District would like to remove the demolition of the Annex Building from the project.
Subsequent to filing the project with the Office of Public School Construction the
District's Administrative Offices (located at another site) burned down. Instead of
demolishing the Annex Building, the District would like to seismically retrofit the building
and convert it to the District's Administrative Offices.

Per the School Facility Program (SFP) Handbook, deletion of non-classroom, non-
Minimum Essential Facility Area is permitted if:

e CDE and DSA have approved the change - the District will seek appropriate
approvals from CDE and DSA regarding this modification.

e The project meets the 60 percent commensurate requirement - the project will
continue to meet the 60 percent commensurate requirement. The District
received $356,745 in State funding for the project. Combined with the District
match, the total project funding is $713,490. The cost for the new replacement
building alone was $1,215,000, well exceeding the project funding.
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Please provide written confirmation that the project modification described above is
permitted. The remaining Seismic project will continue to meet all the criteria outlined in
the SFP Handbook as the classrooms have already been replaced in a new building
and the Annex Building will no longer pose an unacceptable risk of injury to its
occupants in a seismic event. Furthermore, the modification will not alter the funding
received by the District for this project.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you.

Sincerely,

William McCoy
Superintendent
Sausalito-Marin City Elementary School District
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 11.04 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence [] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures
Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

CODXOOCOL

ltem Requires Board Action: [X] ltem is for Information Only: [_]
ltem: Consider Approval of the Sausalito Marin City School District 2016-2017 Audit
Background:

Christy White and Associates prepared and submitted the 2016-2017 audit to the county and state on December
15, 2017. The audit includes examining evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the District's
financial statements. It also assesses the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Heather Daud of Christy White and Associates will be present to discuss the audit in general and answer any
questions from the Board.

Fiscal Impact: $27,010 - Paid by Base Funds (Contract Approved by Board in Spring 2017). This
- expense was included in the District's Adopted Budget.

Recommendation: Approve
Attachments:

e 2016-2017 Audit
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christy

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sausalito Marin City School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Sausalito Marin City School District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Sausalito Marin City School District, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding
progress for OPEB benefits, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of District
contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Sausalito Marin City School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the
table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, which is required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2017 on our
consideration of Sausalito Marin City School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Sausalito Marin City School District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

San Diego, California
December 14, 2017
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INTRODUCTION
Our discussion and analysis of Sausalito Marin City School District’s (District) financial performance provides an

overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. It should be read in conjunction
with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P The District’s total net position was $2,629,955 at June 30, 2017. This was an increase of $269,589 from the
prior year net position.

»  Overall revenues were $8,051,467 which exceeded expenses of $7,781,878.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Components of the Financials Section

Management's Basic Financial Required
Discussion & Supplementary
. Statements .
Analysis Information
Government-Wide Fund Financial Notes to the
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements
Summary < > Detail
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

This annual report consists of three parts — Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive overview
of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial
information from different perspectives:

»  Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

P Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more detail. The
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

b Governmental Funds provide a detailed shori-term view that helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs.

»  Fiduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or frustee of the funds, such as
Associated Student Bodies and pension funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary
information that further explain and support the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government's assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is one
way to measure the District’s financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. All of the District’s basic

services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District’s net position was $2,629,955 at June 30, 2017, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount, ($2,483,861)
was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and

enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day operations.

Governmental Activities

2017 2016 Net Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 5,718390 $ 4944687 $ 773,703
Capital assets 21,497,938 22,310,793 (812,855)
Total Assets 27,216,328 27,255,480 (39,152)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,059,133 1,688,465 370,668
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 1,392,862 142,149 1,250,713
Long-term liabilities 24,479,137 25,530,079 (1,050,942)
Total Liabilities 25,871,999 25,672,228 199,771
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 773,507 632,351 141,156
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,948,012 2,568,879 (620,867)
Restricted 3,165,804 1,693,900 1,471,904
Unrestricted (2,483,861) (1,902,413) (581,448)
Total Net Position $ 2629955 $ 2,360,366 $% 269,589
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)

Changes in Net Position

The results of this year’s operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. The table
below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges slightly, so you can see our total revenues and

expenses.

Governmental Activities

2017 2016 Net Change
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 679 § - % 679
Operating grants and contributions 1,059,642 1,144,016 (84,374)
Capital grants and contributions - 356,847 (356,847)
General revenues
Property taxes 3,875,745 3,733,723 142,022
Unrestricted federal and state aid 1,341,529 1,369,240 (27,711)
Other 1,773,872 759,605 1,014,267
Total Revenues 8,051,467 7,363,431 688,036
EXPENSES
Instruction 3,272,346 3,704,283 (431,937)
Instruction-related services 793,859 712,812 81,047
Pupil services 480,915 448,300 32,615
General administration 982,302 791,638 190,664
Plant services 776,384 934,078 (157,694)
Ancillary and community services 5,000 - 5,000
Debt service 734,853 695,721 39,132
Other Outgo 736,219 511,295 224,924
Total Expenses 7,781,878 7,798,127 (16,249)
Change in net position 269,589 (434,696) 704,285
Net Position - Beginning 2,360,366 2,795,062 (434,696}

Net Position - Ending

The cost of all our governmental activities this year was $7,781,878 (refer to the table above). The amount that our
taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through taxes was only $3,875,745 because the cost was paid mainly

$ 2629955 $ 2,360,366 $

269,589

by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position (continued)
In the table below, we have presented the net cost of each of the District’s functions. Net cost shows the financial

burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows our
citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits they believe are provided by that function.

Net Cost of Services

2017 2016

Instruction $ 2,667,350 - § 2,706,416
Instruction-related services 730,943 625,142
Pupil services 261,085 285,558
General administration 958,788 766,763
Plant services 776,384 830,526
Ancillary and community services 5,000 -
Debt service 734,853 695,721
Transfers to other agencies 587,154 387,138

Total Expenses $ 6,721,557 $ 6,297,264
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $4,861,746, which is greater than
last year’s ending fund balance of $4,126,406. The District’s General Fund had $12,085 more in operating revenues
than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2017. The District’s Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects
had $894,404 more in operating revenues than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2017. The District’s Debt
Service Fund had no change in operations for the year ended June 30, 2017.

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2016-17

During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval on
a monthly basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In
addition, the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim,
and Second Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current
budget based on State and local financial information.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

By the end of 2016-17 the District had invested $21,497,938 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Governmental Activities

2017 2016 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land $ 948,870 $ 948870 $ -

Construction in progress 229,922 81,943 147,979

Land improvements 2,270,855 2,270,855 -

Buildings & improvements 26,931,687 26,931,687 -

Furniture & equipment 601,861 595,732 6,129
Accumulated depreciation (9,485,257) (8,518,294) (966,963)
Total Capital Assets $ 21,497,938 $ 22,310,793 $ (812,855)
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the District had $24,479,137 in long-term debt, a decrease of 0.21% from last year — as shown in the table
below. (More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the financial

statements.)

Governmental Activities

2017 2016 Net Change
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total general obligation bonds $ 16,401,199 $ 16,546,197 $  (144,998)
Total certificates of participation 3,390,000 3,485,000 (95,000)

Capital leases 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Early retirement incentive 183,339 232,472 (49,133)
Compensated absences 11,031 66,048 (55,017)

Net OPEB obligation 53,991 53,231 760

Net pension liability 3,743,147 3,502,310 240,837

Less: current portion of long-term debt (303,570) (355,179) 51,609
Total Long-term Liabilities $ 24,479,137 $ 24,530,079 $ (50,942)
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances
that could affect its future financial health.

Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF). The District continues to analyze the impact of the LCFF on funding for our program
offerings and services. The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student achievement
to state funding levels. The LCFF provides a per pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is augmented by
supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English language learners
and foster youth. The State anticipates all school districts to reach the statewide targeted base funding levels by 2020-
21 but the annual amount funded to meet the target is uncertain.

Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring include: (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability measurements
to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California Longitudinal Pupil
Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit requirements.

State revenues are estimated to increase modestly in 2017-18 but there is uncertainty about the State’s long-term
economic growth. According to the Legislative Analyst's Office, there are concerns about a possible mild recession.
In addition, purchasing power has not been restored to pre-2007/08 levels for most school districts as added funding
is going to pay for increases in CalPERS and CalSTRS rates increases and rising health care costs.

The District participates in state employee pensions plans, PERS and STRS, and both are underfunded. The District’s
proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2017. The amount of
the liability is material to the financial position of the District. To address the underfunding issues, the pension plans
continue to raise employer rates in future years and the increased costs are significant.

Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-district
transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values. Losses in enrollment will cause a school district to lose

operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District Office, Sausalito
Marin City School District, 200 Phillips Drive, Marin City, California 94965.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 5,093,130
Accounts receivable 625,260
Capital assets, not depreciated 1,178,792
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 20,319,146
Total Assets 27,216,328
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 817,860
Deferred amount on refunding 1,241,273
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 2,059,133
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities 1,089,292
Long-term liabilities, current portion 303,570
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion 24,479,137
Total Liabilities 25,871,999
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 773,507
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 773,507
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,948,012
Restricted:
Capital projects 1,797,066
Debt service 1,088,846
Educational programs 279,892
Unrestricted (2,483,861)
Total Net Position $ 2,629,955

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finaxrcial[ sta'geﬁbegts.



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Instruction $ 3272346 % - 8 604,996 $ (2,667,350)
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 51,837 - 11,055 (40,782)
Instructional library, media, and technology 92,753 - 402 (92,351)
School site administration 649,269 - 51,459 (597,810)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 19,167 - 5478 (13,689)
Food services 131,956 679 69,525 (61,752)
All other pupil services 329,792 - 144,148 (185,644)
General administration
Centralized data processing 10,665 - - (10,665)
All other general administration 971,637 - 23,514 (948,123)
Plant services 776,384 - - (776,384)
Community services 5,000 - - (5,000)
Interest on long-term debt 734,853 - - (734,853)
Other Outgo 736,219 - 149,065 (587,154)
Total Governmental Activities $ 7,781,878 $ 679 $ 1,059,642 (6,721,557)

General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes
Interest and investment earnings
Interagency revenues
Miscellaneous
Subtotal, General Revenue
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fma,mlil s&_t)gt%ts.

3,214,193
661,552
1,341,529
15,497
1,657,563
100,812
6,991,146
269,589
2,360,366

$ 2,629,955



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2017
Special Reserve Non-Major Total
Fund for Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Outlay Projects Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,669,616 $ 1,740,654 $ 863,636 $ 819,224 $ 5,093,130
Accounts receivable 597,743 - - 27,517 625,260
Due from other funds 347,442 - - 35,534 382,976
Total Assets $ 2,614,801 $ 1,740,654 $ 863,636 $ 882,275 § 6,101,366
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 849,417 % - 8 - % 7227 $ 856,644
Due to other funds 35,534 303,270 - 44,172 382,976
Total Liabilities 884,951 303,270 - 51,399 1,239,620
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 1,000 - - 40 1,040
Restricted 279,832 1,437,384 863,636 817,540 3,398,392
Committed - - - 13,296 13,296
Assigned 174,010 - - - 174,010
Unassigned 1,275,008 - - - 1,275,008
Total Fund Balances 1,729,850 1,437,384 863,636 830,876 4,861,746
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 2,614,801 $ 1,740,654 $ 863,636 $ 882,275 § 6,101,366

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finafuiigl S(iglt%t&



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT
OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different from amounts reported in governmental
funds because:

Capital assets:
In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement
of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and
accumulated depreciation:
Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Deferred amount on refunding:
In governmental funds, the net effect of refunding bonds is recognized
when debt is issued, whereas this amount is deferred and amortized in the
government-wide financial statements:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until

the period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide
statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The
additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the period
was:

Long-term liabilities:

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the
statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are
reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist
of:

Total general obligation bonds

Total certificates of participation

Capital leases

Early retirement incentive

Compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation

Net pension liability

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating
to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods.
In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
relating to pensions are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ﬁn@ln,Tial ??tgtirg%lts‘

$

$

$

30,983,195
(9,485,257)

16,401,199
3,390,000
1,000,000

183,339
11,031
53,991

3,743,147

817,860
(773,507)

$

4,861,746

21,497,938

1,241,273

(232,648)

(24,782,707)

44,353

2,629,955



SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
Fund for Capital Gover tal Gover tal
General Fund Outlay Projects Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 4,480,095 $ - $ - % 16,750 $ 4,496,845
Federal sources 336,015 - - 65,109 401,124
Other statesources 350,998 - - 6,996 357,994
Other local sources 734,808 1,295,629 - 664,254 2,694,691
Total Revenues 5,901,916 1,295,629 - 753,109 7,950,654
EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction 2,405,565 - - - 2,405,565
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 47,055 - - - 47,055
Instructional library, media, and technology 92,753 - - - 92,753
School site administration 692,269 - - - 692,269
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 16,590 - - - 16,590
Food services - - - 132,107 132,107
All other pupil services 319,540 - - - 319,540
General administration
Centralized data processing 10,665 - - - 10,665
All other general administration 962,018 - - - 962,018
Plant services 602,157 1,500 - 101,746 705,403
Facilities acquisition and maintenance - 147,979 - - 147,979
Community services 5,000 - - - 5,000
Transfers to other agencies 736,219 - - - 736,219
Debt service
Principal - 95,000 - 130,000 225,000
Interest and other - 156,746 - 560,405 717,151
Total Expenditures 5,889,831 401,225 - 924,258 7215314
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 12,085 894,404 - (171,149) 735,340
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - 253,494 - 59,874 313,368
Transfers out {313,120) - - (248) (313,368)
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (313,120) 253,494 - 59,626 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (301,035) 1,147,898 - {111,523) 735,340
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,030,885 289,486 863,636 942,399 4,126,406
Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,729,850 $ 1,437,384 § 863,636 $ 830,876 $ 4,861,746

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finaxrcﬁl) s&t%ets.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 735,340

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:
In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures
in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs
of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation
expense for the period is:
Expenditures for capital outlay: $ 154,108
Depreciation expense: (966,963) (812,855)

Debt service:
In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as
expenditures. In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term
debt are reported as reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the
principal portion of long-term debt were: 225,000

Deferred amounts on refunding:
In governmental funds, deferred amounts on refunding are recognized in the
period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, the deferred
amounts on refunding are amortized over the life of the debt. The net effect of
the deferred amounts on refunding during the period was: (47,741)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period
that it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is
recognized in the period it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of
the period, less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the
prior period, was: 15,041

(continued on following page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmaﬂqaés&t%ats
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Compensated absences:
In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts
paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are
measured by the amount earned. The difference between compensated
absences paid and compensated absences earned, was: 55,017

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):
In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs
and actual employer contributions was: (760)

Pensions:
In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer
contributions are made, in the government-wide statement of activities,
pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference
between accrual-basis pension costs and employer contributions was: 36,416

Other liabilities not normally liquidated with current financial resources:
In the government-wide statements, expenses must be accrued in connection
with any liabilities incurred during the period that are not expected to be
liquidated with current financial resources. Examples include special
termination benefits such as retirement incentives financed over time, and
structured legal settlements. This year, expenses incurred for such obligations
were: 49,133

Amortization of debt issuance premium or discount:
In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the
premium or discount is recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other
Financing Use in the period it is incurred. In the government-wide statements,
the premium or discount is amortized over the life of the debt. Amortization of

premium or discount for the period is: 14,998
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 269,589

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finanefaf sitepmpts.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017
Agency Fund
Warrant/Pass-
through Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 74,459
Total Assets $ 74,459
LIABILITIES
Due to other agencies $ 74,459
Total Liabilities $ 74,459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finaz]\ef% titepspts:
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Sausalito Marin City School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with
the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA).

The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to
grades K-8 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The
primary government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate
from the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities.

B. Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The District is financially accountable for the Sausalito District Financing
Corporation (the ”Corporation”) and therefor the Corporation meets the reporting entity definition.
Accordingly, the financial activities of the Corporation have been included in the financial statements of the
District.

For Financial presentation purposed, the Corporation’s financial activity has been blended, or co. The financial
activity of the Corporation is included in the combined, with the financial data of the District. The financial
activity of the Corporation is included in the Corporation Debt Service Fund and to Corporation Acquisition
Fund, and the certificates of participation issued by the Corporation are reported as a liability in the Statement
of Net Position.

Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government (the District). These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue,
and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with
a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and
expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds and
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and fiduciary — are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities
are typically tax-supported and include education of pupils, operation of food service and child development
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all activities
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minimum number of
funds principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason
to account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund.

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects: This fund exists primarily to provide for the accumulation of
General Fund moneys for capital outlay purposes (Education Code Section 42840).

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used for the accumulation of resources for and the retirement of principal and
interest on general long-term debt.

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds:

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093). The Cafeteria Special
Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for
the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the
District’s contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-17587). In
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585
(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited in
this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this fund
to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582 and
17583).
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

County School Facilities Fund: This fund is established pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.43 to
receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 1A), the 2002 State School
Facilities Fund (Proposition 47), or the 2004 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 55) authorized by the
State Allocation Board for new school facility construction, modernization projects, and facility hardship
grants, as provided in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.).

Capital Projects Fund for Blended Component Units: This fund is used to account for capital projects
financed by Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts and similar entities that are considered blended
component units of the District under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The proceeds
from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the District. Any
premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the District's Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the county treasurer from taxes
levied by the county auditor-controller.

Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units: This fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Districts and similar entities that are considered blended component units of the District under generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between trust
and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of management
involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.

Warrant/Pass-Through Fund: This fund exists primarily to account separately for amounts collected from
employees for federal taxes, state taxes, transfers to credit unions, and other contributions.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
The net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on its use are either externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

Governmental Funds
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting,.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue s recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current period or
within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California school districts
and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursement grants and corrections
to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for school districts as
collectible within one year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

D. Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus (continued)

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria
for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet
and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also
recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also include cash
with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the
program sponsor.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
the individual inventory items are requisitioned. Inventories are valued at historical cost and consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition value as of the date received. The District
maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined in GASB
Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not capitalized. All reported capital assets, except
for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 14-36 years
Furniture and Equipment 10-40 years
Vehicles 5-20 years

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as "Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities
columns of the statement of net position.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental
funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events
such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with
expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the employees who
have accumulated leave are paid.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment probable;
however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when
the employee retires.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Premiums and Discounts

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method.

Deferred Qutflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then.

In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined
benefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form.
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets
held for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Fund Balance (continued)

Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must
be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent to
that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance, committed
fund balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original constraints are
removed or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the
Governing Board.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the
governing body, and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance. are not
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the assignment
need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to the issuance
of the financial statements.

Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or eliminating
amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

F. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to
the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. Interfund transfers are
eliminated in the governmental activities columns of the statement of activities.

G. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates,
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

H. Budgetary Data

I

J.

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year
to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at
the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major
object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes of the budget,
on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted
accounting principles.

Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County Auditor-Controller
bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard’s primary objective is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensio3ns. The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has not yet determined the impact on
the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 80 — In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain
Component Units — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This standard’s primary objective is to improve
financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units.
The Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The District has implemented GASB Statement
No. 80 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 82 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. This standard’s primary objective is to address issues regarding the
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, the selection of assumptions
and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution
requirements. The majority of this Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The District has
implemented GASB Statement No. 82 for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Funds
Investment in county treasury $ 4,228,428 $ 74,459
Cash with fiscal agent 863,662 -
Cash in revolving fund 1,040 -
Total cash and investments $ 5,093,130 % 74,459

B. Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage
obligations; and the County Investment Pool.

Investment in County Treasury — The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Marin County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed
by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function
of the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The
committee membership includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-Controller, Chief Administrative
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the
amortized cost basis.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

C. General Authorizations

Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table below
identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage of Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County
Treasury. The District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with a fair value of
approximately $4,305,100 and an amortized book value of $4,302,887. The average weighted maturity for this
pool is 231 days.

E. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The

investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2017, the pooled investments in
the County Treasury were required to be rated.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

F. Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires
that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30,
2017, the District’s bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

G. Fair Value

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the circumstances,
which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable available
information indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances specific
to the District are not available to other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Marin County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input
levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions

and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Uncategorized
Investment in county treasury $ 4,305,100
Total fair market value of investments $ 4,305,100
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2017 consisted of the following;:

Federal Government
Categorical aid

State Government
Apportionment
Lottery

Local Government
Other local sources

Total

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental

Non-Major
Governmental
General Fund Funds

287,123 % 25,659

43,305 589

6,452 -

260,863 1,269

597,743 $ 27,517

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings & improvements
Furniture & equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements
Buildings & improvements
Furniture & equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net

Balance Balance

July 01, 2016 Additions June 30,2017
$ 948,870 $ - 948,870
81,943 147,979 229,922
1,030,813 147,979 1,178,792
2,270,855 2,270,855
26,931,687 - 26,931,687
595,732 6,129 601,861
29,798,274 6,129 29,804,403
1,263,549 73,831 1,337,380
7,028,146 846,794 7,874,940
226,599 46,338 272,937
8,518,294 966,963 9,485,257
$ 22,310,793 $ (812,855) $ 21,497,938
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
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NOTE 4 —~ CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation Expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was allocated to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction

$

Instructional supervision and administration

School site administration
Home-to-school transportation
All other general administration

Plant services

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due From/Due To)

$

876,768
4,782
4,245
2,577

667
77,924

966,963

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Due From Other Funds
Non-Major
Governmental
Due To Other Funds General Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - % 35534 $ 35,534
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 303,270 - 303,270
Non-Major Governmental Funds 44172 - 44,172
Total Due From Other Funds $ 347,442 % 35534 % 382,976
General Fund due to the Cafeteria Fund for expenses. $ 2,791
General Fund due to the Deferred Maintenance Fund for LCFF transfer. 32,743
Cafeteria Fund due to the General Fund for expenses. 30,672
Deferred Maintenance Fund due to the General Fund for expenses. 13,500
General Fund due to the Special Reserve Fund for Capital OQutlay Projects for repayment of expenses. 303,270
Total $ 382,976
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

B. Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers In
Special Reserve Non-Major
Fund for Capital  Governmental
Interfund Transfers Out Outlay Projects Funds Total
General Fund $ 253,494 $ 59,626 $ 313,120
Non-Major Governmental Funds - 248 248
Total Intexrfund Transfers $ 253,494 $ 59,874 $ 313,368
General Fund transfer to the Cafeteria Fund for expenses. $ 59,626
Building Fund transfer to the Cafteria Fund for expenses. 248
General Fund transfer to the Special Resreve Fund for Capital Outlay for expenses. 253,494
Total 3 313,368

NOTE 6 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds District-Wide Activities
Payroll $ 65,331 % - % - % 65,331
Vendors payable 784,086 7,227 - 791,313
Unmatured interest - - 232,648 232,648
Total $ 849,417 % 7227 % 232,648 $ 1,089,292
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Balance Due
July 01, 2016 Additions Deductions June 30, 2017 In One Year
Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds $ 16,155,000 $ -8 130,000 $ 16,025,000 $ 150,000
Unamortized premium 391,197 - 14,998 376,199 14,998
Total general obligation bonds 16,546,197 - 144,998 16,401,199 164,998
Certificates of participation 3,485,000 - 95,000 3,390,000 95,000
Capital leases 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 -
Early retirement incentive 232,472 - 49,133 183,339 43572
Compensated absences 66,048 - 55,017 11,031 -
Net OPEB obligation 53,231 760 - 53,991 -
Net pension liability 3,502,310 240,837 - 3,743,147 -
Total $ 24,885,258 §$ 241,597 $ 344,148 § 24,782,707 $ 303,570

e Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.

e Payments on certificates of participation are made in the Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects.

¢ Payments for the early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund.

e Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major
Governmental Funds.

A. Compensated Absences

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2017 amounted to $11,031. This amountis included
as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

B. Certificates of Participation

On February 12, 2012, the Sausalito School District Financing Corporation issued Certificates of Participation
amounting to $3,675,000 payable in annual installments to provide financing for the MLK Jr. Academy Classroom
Construction Project. At June 30, 2017, the principal outstanding was $3,390,000.

The annual requirements to amortize the certificates of participation outstanding at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 95,000 $ 100,600 $ 195,600
2019 95,000 99,650 194,650
2020 95,000 98,510 193,510
2021 100,000 97,180 197,180
2022 100,000 95,480 195,480
2023 - 2027 530,000 441,578 971,578
2028 - 2032 610,000 362,465 972,465
2033 - 2037 725,000 258,025 983,025
2038 - 2042 850,000 124,170 974,170
2043 190,000 6,650 196,650
Total $ 3,390,000 $ 1,684,308 $ 5,074,308
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

C. General Obligation Bonds

In the November 2004 election, the citizens of the District approved the issuance and sale of general obligation
bonds to finance the construction, improvement, equipping and furnishing of various capital facilities of the
District. Under such voters’ authorization, there have been two bond issuances (Series 2006A and Series 2006B)
which have been refunded in 2015 with terms summarized as follows:

Bonds Bonds
Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Date Rate Issue July 01, 2016 Additions Deductions June 30, 2017
2015 Refunding Bonds ~ 1/27/2015  8/1/2042 2.00% - 5.00% $16,510,000 $ 16,155,000 $ - % 130,000 $ 16,025,000
$ 16,155,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 16,025,000

The annual requirements to amortize these bonds, as of June are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 150,000 $ 558,356 $ 708,356
2019 175,000 555,356 730,356
2020 200,000 551,856 751,856
2021 220,000 545,856 765,856
2022 250,000 539,256 789,256
2023 - 2027 1,735,000 2,521,481 4,256,481
2028 - 2032 2,770,000 2,036,881 4,806,881
2033 - 2037 3,935,000 1,483,919 5,418,919
2038 - 2042 5,325,000 771,356 6,096,356
2043 1,265,000 42,694 1,307,694
Total $ 16,025,000 $ 9,607,011 $ 25,632,011

Debt service payments are made from property tax levy authorized by the voters.

D. Capital Leases

On December 1, 2002 the District entered into a $1,000,000 lease agreement to finance the remodel of its existing
school facilities and update technology systems. The agreement requires the District make fifteen (15) annual
payments of $55,766 to a sinking fund maintained by US Bank. The sum of the annual payments plus interest
earned on the sinking fund balance are expected to be sufficient to make a single $1,000,000 lease payment on
December 19, 2017 and pay-off the entire lease balance at that time. The lease does not include a prepayment
option. The agreement provides for title to pass upon the expiration of the lease. As of June 30, 2017, the District
has one sinking fund payment in the amount of $55,766 remaining. At June 30, 2017, the Debt Service Fund has
a balance of $863,636.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

E. Early Retirement Incentives

The District offered an early retirement incentive to benefit to eligible employees through the Public Agency
Retirement System (PARS) in 2015-16. The inventive was offered to certificated non-management employees as
of March 8, 2016, who were at least age fifty-five (55) with five or more years of service with the District or at
least age fifty (50) with thirty (30) or more years of service with the District as of June 30, 2016. Participants
receive a monthly benefit over a specified number of years. Three employees accepted the early retirement
incentive offer in the fiscal year 2015-16.

The District is required to make five annual payments of $49,778. The liability reported is the present value of
future expected cash flows using a 3.33% discount rate. Future payments are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 43,572 % 6,206 $ 49,778
2019 45,047 4,731 49,778
2020 46,572 3,206 49,778
2021 48,148 1,630 49,778
Total $ 183,339 § 15,773 $ 199,112

F. Net Pension Liability

The District’s beginning net pension liability was $3,502,310 and increased by $240,837 during the year ended
June 30, 2017. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2017 was $3,743,147. See Note 10 for additional
information regarding the net pension liability.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 8 ~-FUND BALANCES

Fund balances were composed of the following elements at June 30, 2017:

Special Reserve Non-Major Total
Fund for Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Qutlay Projects Debt Service Fund Funds Funds
Non-spendable
Revolving cash $ 1,000 § - 8% - 3 40 % 1,040
Total non-spendable 1,000 - - 40 1,040
Restricted
Educational programs 279,832 - - - 279,832
Capital projects - 1,437,384 - 359,682 1,797,066
Debt service - - 863,636 457,858 1,321,494
Total restricted 279,832 1,437,384 863,636 817,540 3,398,392
Committed
Deferred maintenance - - - 13,296 13,296
Total committed - - - 13,296 13,296
Assigned
Special reserve for other than capital outlay 174,010 - - - 174,010
Total assigned 174,010 - - - 174,010
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties 303,324 - - - 303,324
Remaining unassigned 971,684 - - - 971,684
Total unassigned 1,275,008 - - - 1,275,008
Total $ 1,729,850 § 1,437,384 % 863,636 $ 830,876 $ 4,861,746

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District’s Minimum Fund
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less
than 5 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A. Plan Description and Contribution Information

The District provides medical, dental and vision benefits to retirees and their covered eligible dependents. The
District pays a portion of the medical costs for eligible retirees only. Retirees must pay the entire cost for dental,
vision, and dependent medical benefits. All active employees who retire directly from the District and meet the
eligibility criteria may participate. The District contributes up to the employee only rate towards retiree health
premiums up to the District’s annual cap, which was $10,191 at the time of valuation.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 33
Active plan members 3

Total* 36
Number of participating employers 1

*As of July 1,2016 actuarial study

B. Funding Policy

The District’s contribution is currently based on a project pay-as-you-go funding method, that is, benefits are
payable when due.

As of June 30, 2017, the District has not established a plan or equivalent that contains an irrevocable transfer of

assets dedicated to providing benefits to retirees in accordance with the terms of the plan and that are legally
protected from creditors.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 9 -POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) {(continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No.
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) (or funding excess) over a period not
to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the year,
the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution $ 54,715
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,129
Adjustment to annual required contribution (3,081)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 53,763
Contributions made (53,003)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 760
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 53,231
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $ 53,991

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation
for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the preceding two years were as follows:

Annual
OPEB Percentage Net OPEB
Year Ended June 30, Cost Contributed Obligation
2017 $ 53,763 99% $ 53,991
2016 $ 20,033 0% $ 53,231
2015 $ 20,397 0% $ 33,198
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of the most recent actuarial evaluation consists of the following:

Actuarial
Actuarial : Accrued Unfunded UAALasa
Valuation Actuarial Valuation Liability AAL Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
July 1,2016 3 - 8 329,953 $ 329,953 0% $ 2,093,163 16%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, investment returns, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is

increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date 7/1/2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age
Amortization Method Level-percentage of payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 30
Asset Valuation $ -
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return 4.0%

Discount rate 4.0%

Health care trend rate 5.0%-8.0%

Inflation rate 1.0%
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies of
the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of
resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows:

Deferred Deferred inflows
Net pension outflows related related to
liability to pensions pensions Pension expense
STRS Pension $ 2,335,077 $ 359,349 $ 544,901 $ 140,896
PERS Pension 1,408,070 458,511 228,606 124,567
Total $ 3,743,147 $ 817,860 $ 773,507 $ 265,463

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established
by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA
95826.

Benefits provided
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas:

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be creditable to
CalSTRS

CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be creditable to
CalSTRS

CalSTRS 2% at 60

CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a minimum of five years of credited
service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.
Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years
of credited service. The age factor for retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent
at age 63 or older. Members who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2
percent to the age factor, known as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of
final compensation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
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NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Benefits provided (continued)
CalSTRS 2% at 62

CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five years of credited
service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service.
An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter
year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

Contributions

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 10.25% and 9.205% of their salary for
fiscal year 2017, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers' Retirement Board.
The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2017 was 12.58% of annual payroll. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan from the District were
$173,712 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

On-Behalf Payments
The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12 education.
These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $136,406 to CalSTRS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected
a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 2,335,077
State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District 1,329,514
Total $ 3,664,591

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, and
rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2016. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the District’s proportion
was 0.003 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00057 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers” Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $140,896. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $237,216 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2017, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ 185,637 % -
Differences between expected and
actual experience - 56,962
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions - 487,939
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 173,712 -
$ 359,349 $ 544,901

The $173,712 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2018 $ 4,050 $ 95,212
2019 4,050 95,212
2020 107,912 95,212
2021 69,625 95,212
2022 - 95,212
2023 - 68,841

$ 185,637 $ 544,901
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NOTE 10 ~ PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers” Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2015, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2016 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 3.00%
Investment Yield* 7.60%
Wage Inflation 3.75%

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables
are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2006-June 30, 2010.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were developed using
capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting Alliance - PCA) as an
input to the process. Based on the model from CalSTRS consulting actuary’s (Milliman) investment practice, a best
estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is re-balanced annually and that annual returns are
lognormally distributed and independent from year to year to develop expected percentiles for the long-term
distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset allocation by PCA is based on board policy for target asset
allocation in effect on February 2, 2012, the date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best
estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class for the
year ended June 30, 2016 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset  Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 47% 6.30%
Private Equity 13% 9.30%
Real Estate 13% 5.20%
Inflation Sensitive 4% 3.80%
Fixed Income 12% 0.30%
Absolute Return 9% 2.90%
Cash/Liquidity 2% -1.00%
100%

*20-year geometric average
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NOTE 10 -~ PENSION PLANS (continued)

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at statutory
contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings
were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.60 percent) and assuming that
contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.60 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.60 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.60
percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.60%) (7.60%) {8.60%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 3,360,703 $ 2,335,077 $ 1,483,252

Pension plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS
financial report.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Emplovees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA
95811.

Benefits provided

The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and benefit
formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries. Members
become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.

Contributions

Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their
salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into the
plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 6.0% of their salary.
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from paying
any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution is specified
in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.

The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for fiscal year 2017 was 13.888% of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the District were
$128,167 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $1,408,070 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, and
rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2016. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the District’s proportion
was 0.007 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00082 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $124,567. At June 30, 2017, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following

sources:
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ 218,487 $ -
Differences between expected and
actual experience 60,561 -
Changes in assumptions - 42,304
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 51,296 186,302
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 128,167 -
$ 458,511 $ 228,606

The $128,167 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2018 $ 85,668 $ 105,972
2019 80,897 98,100
2020 106,757 24,534
2021 57,022 -
$ 330,344 $ 228,606
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Emplovees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2015, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2016 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Investment Yield* 7.65%
Wage Inflation Varies by Entry Age and Service

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom tables
are derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds. The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements
using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term expected rate of return,
both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows were
taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their
required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-
term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as
the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent
to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement Svstem (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial assumptions (continued)

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of
return are net of administrative expenses.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10* Years 11+%*
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 571%
Global Debt Securities 20% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Assets 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1% -0.55% -1.05%

100%

* An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
** An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. A projection of the expected benefit
payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the assets would
not run out. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool. The results of the crossover
testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.65 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.65
percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 2,100,848 $ 1,408,070 $ 831,196

Pension plan fiduciary net position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial report.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A,

B.

C.

Grants

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in
the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position
of the District at June 30, 2017.

Litigation

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all litigation pending is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2017.

Memorandum of Understanding — Willow Creek Academy

On November 30, 2015, the District’s Board of Trustees and the Willow Creek Academy, a Public Benefit
Corporation (WCA), executed a memorandum of understanding to address the legal requirements of the
business relationship between the District and WCA and to specify the obligations of the District and WCA to
the extent required by law. Certain provisions in the agreement stipulate that an equitable allocation of resources
between the parties in the regards to revenues, costs and facilities will be made. However, as of December 15,
2017, an estimated number has been calculated and accrued for by the District, but final calculations for the fiscal
year have not been completed.

Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2017, the District had no commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects.

NOTE 12 ~ PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES

The District participates in two joint ventures under joint powers authorities (JPAs), the Marin Schools Insurance
Authority (MSIA) for workers’ compensation and property and liability, and the Marin Pupils Transportation
Agency (MPTA). The relationships between the District and the JPAs are such that the JPAs are not component units
of the District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPAs have budgeting and financial reporting requirements independent of member units, and their financial
statements are not presented in these financial statements. However, fund transactions between the JPAs and the
District are included in these statements. The audited financial statements are generally available from the respective
entities.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District’s management has evaluated events or transactions that occurred for possible recognition or disclosure
in the financial statements from the balance sheet date through December 15, 2017, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or
transactions that require disclosure in or adjustment to the current year financial statements, except as noted below.

Investigations and Complaints

Subsequent to June 30, 2017, the District has been required to respond to various investigations and complaints. As
of the completion of the annual financial and compliance audit of the District, all of these matters remain unresolved.
Accordingly, there is no way to determine the results or effects of the investigations and complaints on the District.
However, it is anticipated that the legal fees to represent the District in these matters will be significant and will
adversely affect the financial position and results of operations of the District going forward.

NOTE 14 - CHARTER SCHOOL

In accordance with Education Code Section 47605, the District approved a charter school agreement with Willow
Creek Academy Charter School, which was renewed for additional five years for the period July 1, 2015 through June
30, 2019.

NOTE 15 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Refunded Debt

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the District recognized
deferred outflows of resources in the District-wide financial statements. The deferred outflow of resources pertains
to the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price (deferred amount on
refunding). Previous financial reporting standards require this to be presented as part of the District's long-term
debt. This deferred outflow of resources is recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational
manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the new debt, whichever is shorter. At June 30, 2017, the deferred
amount on refunding was $1,241,273.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND -~ BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts Actual* Variances -
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final to Actual
REVENUES
1L.CFF sources $ 4,333,346 $ 4,420,128 % 4,480,095 % 59,967
Federal sources 354,504 345,990 336,015 (9,975)
Other state sources 189,729 216,671 350,998 134,327
Other local sources 660,784 795,651 733,988 (61,663)
Total Revenues 5,538,363 5,778,440 5,901,096 122,656
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 1,527,237 1,658,467 1,672,295 (13,828)
Classified salaries 872,554 907,796 955,186 (47,390)
Employee benefits 861,867 906,175 964,982 (58,807)
Books and supplies 112,047 136,022 136,081 59
Services and other operating expenditures 1,350,290 1,793,779 1,418,939 374,840
Capital outlay - 6,129 6,129 -
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs 491,840 746,059 736,219 9,840
Total Expenditures 5,215,835 6,154,427 5,889,831 264,596
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 322,528 (375,987) 11,265 387,252
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (350,565) (304,829) (313,120) (8,291)
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (350,565) (304,829) (313,120) (8,291)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (28,037) (680,816) (301,855) 378,961
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,857,695 1,857,695 1,857,695 -
Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,829,658 $ 1,176,879 $ 1,555,840 % 378,961

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons:
¢ Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the
amounts reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the
amounts on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital
Outlay, in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAALasa
Valuation Actuarial Valuation Liability AAL Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
July 1, 2016 $ - § 329953 $ 329,953 0% $ 2,093,163 16%
July 1,2013 $ - % 107,144 $ 107,144 0% $ 1,145,431 9%

The District did not have an actuarial evaluation prior to July 1, 2013.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
- CALSTRS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.003% 0.003% 0.004%
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 2,335,077 % 2,330,126 % 2,162,169
State's proportionate share of the net pension

liability associated with the District 1,329,514 1,232,377 51,188

Total $ 3,664,591 § 3,562,503 % 2,213,357

District’s covered payroll $ 1,446,288 $ 1,606,441 $ 1,629,127
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 161.5% 145.0% 132.7%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 70.0% 74.0% 76.5%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
- CALPERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.007% 0.008% 0.007%
District’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 1,408,070 $ 1,172,184 $ 828,728
District’s covered payroll $ 922,874 $ 880,401 $ 763,206
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 152.6% 133.1% 108.6%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 73.9% 79.4% 83.4%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30,2015

Contractually required contribution $ 173,712 $ 152,515 $ 139,115
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution* (173,712) (152,515) (139,115)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - $ - $ -
District's covered payroll $ 1,446,288 $ 1,606,441 $ 1,629,127
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 12.01% 9.49% 8.54%

*Amounts do not include on behalf contributions

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 128,167 $ 101,073 $ 103,996
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (128,167) (101,073) (103,996)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - 3 -
District's covered payroll $ 922,874 $ 880,401 $ 763,206
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 13.89% 11.48% 13.63%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General
Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary comparison
schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period as well as (¢)
actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to report the
variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.

Schedule of Funding Progress
This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 45 for all sole and agent employers that provide other

postemployment benefits (OPEB). The schedule presents, for the most recent actuarial valuation and the two
preceding valuations, information about the funding progress of the plan, including, for each valuation, the actuarial
valuation date, the actuarial value of assets, the actuarial accrued liability, the total unfunded actuarial liability (or
funding excess), the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability (funded ratio), the
annual covered payroll, and the ratio of the total unfunded actuarial liability (or funding excess) to annual covered
payroll

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered payroll, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered payroll,
and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability.

Schedule of District Contributions

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District's statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the amount of
contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount
of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the District’s covered payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in
relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the District's covered
payroll.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual
major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code as follows:

Expenditures and Other Uses

Budget Actual Excess
General Fund
Certificated salaries $ 1,658,467 % 1,672,295 $ 13,828
Classified salaries $ 907,796 % 955,186 % 47,390
Employee benefits $ 906,175 $ 964,982 % 58,807
Books and supplies $ 136,022 % 136,081 $ 59
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2016-17
Minutes Actual Number

Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Status

Kindergarten 36,000 49,000 180 Complied
Grade 1 50,400 58,760 180 Complied
Grade2 50,400 58,760 180 Complied
Grade3 50,400 58,760 180 Complied
Grade4 54,000 58,760 180 Complied
Grade5 54,000 58,760 180 Complied
Grade 6 54,000 60,100 180 Complied
Grade7 54,000 60,100 180 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 60,100 180 Complied

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

2018 (Budget) 2017 2016 2015

General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues And Other Financing Sources $ 5,577,222 $ 5,901,096 $ 5,697,760 $ 5,657,200

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 6,084,921 6,202,951 5,527,347 5,800,452
Net change in Fund Balance $ (507,699) $ (301,855) % 170413 § (143,252)
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,048,141 $ 1,555,840 $ 2,030,885 $ 1,860,472
Available Reserves* $ 548977 % 1,275,008 $ 1,798,516 % 1,717,073
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Outgo 9.02% 20.55% 32.54% 29.60%
Long-term Debt $ 24,479,137 % 24,782,707 $ 24,885,258 $ 24,586,164
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 148 148 136 142

The General Fund balance has decreased by $304,632 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2017-18 budget projects
a further decrease of $507,699. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 5% of
General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2017-18 fiscal year. Total long term obligations have increased by $196,543 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has increased by 6 ADA over the past two years. No change in ADA is anticipated during
the 2017-18 fiscal year.

*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund.

**The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay, in accordance with
the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Special Reserve
Fund for Other
General Than Capital
Fund Outlay
June 30,2017, annual financial and budget report fund balance $ 1,555,840 % 174,010
Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increase (decrease) in total fund balances:
Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) 174,010 (174,010)
Net adjustments and reclassifications 174,010 (174,010)
June 30, 2017, audited financial statement fund balance $ 1,729,850 % -

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Included in
Charter School Status Audit Report
Willow Creek Academy Charter School Active No

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2017
Deferred Capital Projects Debt Service Fund Non-Major
Maintenance County School  Fund for Blended Bond Interest& for Blended Governmental
Cafeteria Fund Fund Facilities Fund  Comp t Units Redemp Fund Comp Units Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 830 $ 854 $ 359,660 $ 22 % 457,833 $ 25 8 819,224
Accounts receivable 27,517 - - - - - 27,517
Due from other funds 2.791 32,743 - - - - 35,534
Total Assets $ 31,138 $ 33,597 % 359,660 $ 22 % 457,833 § 25 § 882,275
LIABILITIES
Accrued labilities 3 426 $ 6801 $ -8 - § -8 - $ 7227
Due to other funds 30,672 13,500 - - - - 44,172
Total Liabilities 31,098 20,301 - - - - 51,399
FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable 40 - - - - - 40
Restricted - - 359,660 2 457,833 25 817,540
Committed - 13,296 - - - - 13,296
Total Fund Balances 40 13,296 359,660 22 457,833 25 830,876
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 31,138 $ 33597 3 359,660 $ 22 $ 457,833 $ 25 % 882,275

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Deferred Capital Projects DebtService Fund  Non-Major
Maintenance County School  Fund for Blended Bond Interest& for Blended Governmental
Cafeteria Fund Fund Building Fund  Facilities Fund  Comp t Units Redemption Fund Comp Units Funds
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ -8 16,750 $ -5 - % - 5 - $ -3 16,750
Federal sources 65,109 - - - - - 65,109
Other state sources 4416 - - - - 2,580 - 6,996
Cther local sources 620 1,746 1 1,694 - 660,193 - 664,254
Total Revenues 70,145 18,496 1 1,694 - 662,773 - 753,109
EXPENDITURES
Current
Pupil services
Food services 132,107 - - - - - 132,107
Plant services - 101,746 - - - - - 101,746
Debt service
Principal - - - - - 130,000 - 130,000
Interest and other - - - - 560,403 - 560,405
Total Expenditures 132,107 101,746 - - - 690,405 - 924,258
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 61,962) (83,250) 1 1,694 - (27,632) - (171,149}
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 59,874 - - - - - - 59,874
Transfers out - - (248) - - - - 248)
Net Financing Sources (Uses) 59,874 - {248) - - - - 59,626
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE £2.088) (83.250) 247) 1,694 - (27,632) - (111,523)
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,128 96,546 247 357,966 22 485,465 25 942,399
Fund Balance - Ending $ 40§ 13296 $ - 5 359,660 $ 22 8 457,833 § 25§ 830,876

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30, 2017

The Sausalito Marin City School District comprises and serves the City of Sausalito, Marin City, and several military
installations. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year. The District currently
operates one elementary school serving students in kindergarten through grade eight.

GOVERNING BOARD
Member Office Term Expires
Joshua Barrow President December 2018
Ida Green Vice President December 2018
Debra Turner Clerk December 2020
Caroline Van Alst Trustee December 2020
Thomas Newmeyer Trustee December 2018

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS

Will McCoy
Superintendent

Amy Prescott
Interim Chief Business Official

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1-PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at
various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the
District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended June 30,
2017, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2017, the District had not
yet met its target funding.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual
Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements.

Schedule of Charter Schools
This schedule lists all Charter Schools chartered by the District, and displays information for each Charter School on
whether or not the Charter School is included in the District audit.

Combining Statements — Non-Major Funds

These statements provide information on the District’s non-major funds.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure
This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the governing
board, and members of the administration.
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A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Sausalito Marin City School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Sausalito
Marin City School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 14, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sausalito
Marin City School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Sausalito Marin City School District's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sausalito Marin City School
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did
identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and
Questioned Costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. (Finding #2017-001 and # 2017-002)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sausalito Marin City School District's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Sausalito Marin City School District’s Response to Findings

Sausalito Marin City School District’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Sausalito Marin City School District’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

San Diego, California
December 14, 2017
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A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Sausalito Marin City School District
Sausalito, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Sausalito Marin City School District’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, issued by the California Education Audit
Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on each of Sausalito Marin City
School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, as identified below.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sausalito Marin City
School District's state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations,
section 19810. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state
programs noted below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the
requirements referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Sausalito Marin City School District complied, in all material respects, with

the types of compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state
programs noted in the table below for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items #2017-003, #2017-004, #2017-005. Our opinion on
state compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.

Sausalito Marin City School District’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. Sausalito Marin City
School District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Procedures Performed
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine.

Sausalito Marin City School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following
items:

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study No
Continuation Education Not Applicable
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Mental Health Expenditures Yes
Educator Effectiveness Yes
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
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PROCEDURES

PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
After School Education and Safety Program Yes
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Immunizations Yes
Attendance; for charter schools Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;

for charter schools Not Applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based; for

charter schools Not Applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable

We did not perform testing for Independent Study because the ADA was not material.

San Diego, California
December 14, 2017
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? Yes
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS

The District was not subject to Uniform Guidance Single Audit for the year ended
June 30, 2017 because federal award expenditures did not exceed $750,000.

STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? Yes
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control

FINDING #2017-001: BANK ACCOUNTS AND RECONCILIATIONS (30000)

Criteria: Internal controls over bank accounts and reconciliations are important to ensure that the District’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Ensuring that bank reconciliations are prepared timely is an effective
internal control for detecting accounting and banking errors and for identifying fraudulent transactions originating
from outside the local government.

Condition: During our testing of the District’s bank accounts and reconciliations, it was noted that the District’s Cash
with Fiscal Agent did not reconcile from the District’s general ledger to the supporting documentation. The amount
of the discrepancy was not material to the financial statements.

Questioned Cost: The total variance is $60,599.

Cause: Lack of oversight over District Cash with Fiscal Agent reconciliation.

Perspective/Context: During our audit we conduct substantive tests, which include verifying amounts to Bank
Statements, overall all District cash balances recoded in the general ledger.

Effect: Risk of material misstatement.

Recommendation: Sound internal controls and oversight should be put into place to review all activity related to the
District’s Cash with Fiscal Agent.

District Response: The District will properly reconcile the cash with a fiscal agent and balance to the approved

balance on a monthly basis. The District will also prepare written procedures to ensure that when District staff
changes, proper procedures for timely reconciliation continue.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2017-002: CASH DISBURSEMENTS - PURCHASE ORDERS (30000)

Criteria: Proper internal controls require adequate segregation of duties, prior approval of the expenditure and
sufficient supporting documentation such as a vendor invoice. Prior approval is necessary to ensure that
expenditures are appropriate uses of the fund and to ensure that expenses are being properly budgeted.

Condition: During the review of internal controls over cash disbursements, 4 of the 25 cash disbursements were not
properly approved. In addition, one of the disbursements not properly approved, in the amount of $108,421, was for
the demolition of the old District office. Public Contract Code (PCC) Section 20111(a) requires school district governing
boards to competitively bid and award any contracts involving an expenditure of more than $50,000, adjusted for
inflation, to the lowest responsible bidder.

Questioned Cost: None.

Prospective/Context: Review of cash disbursements including contracts to test for proper internal controls.

Effect: Without prior approval of the expenditures, it could lead to budgeting issues in the future and misuse of the
funds.

Cause: Controls over the Districts purchasing process are not properly implemented.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement procedures to ensure that all disbursements are
properly approved and comply with Public Contract Code.

District Response: Due to the circumstances of the fire and the need to mitigate the damage caused by the fire it was

understood that the situation met the requirements to be declared an emergency. Therefore, a non-competitive
contract was approved by the District, but not formalized by the board.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
10000 Attendance
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities Programs
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card

FINDING #2017-003: ADMINSTRATIVE TEACHER RATIO (40000)

Criteria: In accordance with Education Code Section 41402, the maximum ratio of administrative employees to each
100 teachers in an elementary school district shall be 9.

Condition: The District had an excess of 1.39 FTE for administrators in fiscal year 2016-17.
Cause: The District was not able to adjust their Administrative FTEs during the 2016-17 fiscal year.
Effect: The District did not comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 41402.

Perspective/Context: We reviewed the state provided admin teacher ratio, calculation and supporting documents.

Questioned Cost: The questioned costs are the estimated penalty of $49,309. The estimated penalty, in accordance
with Education Code Section 41404 was calculated using the California Department of Education Employee Ratio
Worksheet. The District’s Total State Revenue was divided by the District’s Total Revenue and Other Financing
Sources ($1,759,594 / $5,747,390 = 0.31) Total Annual Salaries of administrators was divided by the Administrator
FTE ($418,757 / 2.6 FTE = $161,060 average administrator salary). The average administrator salary was multiplied
by the State Funded Share of Administrator Salary ($161,060 x 0.31 = $49,309). Then the penalty was multiplied by
the rounded excess administrator FTE ($49,309 x 1 FTE = $49,309).

Recommendations: The District should review Administrative and Teacher FTEs to ensure they are in compliance
with the requirements of Education Code Section 41402.

District Response: It was anticipated that the District, in the current year 2016-2017, continued to exceed the
allowable maximum ratio of administrators to teachers. For the 2017-2018 school year, the District will review this
ratio and make the necessary adjustments in administrative staffing to be in compliance of Education Code 41402.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2017-004; AFTER SCHOOL EDUCATION AND SAFETY PROGRAM (40000)

Criteria: Per California Education Code Section 8483(a)(4), it is the intent of the legislature that that pupils in
elementary school participate in the full day of the program every day during which pupils participate to accomplish
program goals. In addition, every program shall establish a policy regarding reasonable early release of pupils to the
program.

Condition: Through site attendance testing performed at the ASES site, it was noted that early release forms are not
properly maintained at each respective site. While a specific early release policy is set in place by the District, it does
not appear that the ASES program is adequately monitoring and enforcing the policy.

Perspective/Context: We sampled and tested the After School Education and Safety Program at both school sites.
Ten (10) of twenty (20) students did not have an early release policy of file during December 5 to December 9.

Questioned Costs: None. The misstatements noted did not cause the District to fall below the 85% attendance
threshold and would therefore result in no questioned costs.

Cause: Sites are not completing early release forms due to change in supervisors and negligence in enforcing their
policy when students leave the program early.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with State requirements involving the ASES program.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District continue to provide oversight and training to staff in regard to
the importance of having a documented early release policy and ensuring that a signed copy is maintained for each
child in the program.

District Response: District recognizes that there is an issue with retaining the early release polices in the ASES
program. The District is working with the Site Administrators to resolve the issue and develop a written policy
and procedure that is intended to mitigate this problem. The District will be responsible for the ongoing monitoring
and supervision of the ASES program.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2017-005- UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000)

Criteria: Students classified as free or reduced price meal eligible (FRPM) (who are not directly certified) on the
CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List Report must have supporting documentation that
indicates the student was eligible for the determination. Auditors are required to verify compliance with Education
Code Section 42238.02(b)(3)}(b) in Section W of the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and
State Compliance Reporting.

Condition: 2 of 8 students tested from the CALPADS 1.18 FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List Report
who was classified as FRPM did not have proper supporting documentation to support their designation. A total of
8 students made up the entire population for the FRPM students who are not directly certified and non English
Language learners.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with State requirements.

Perspective/Context: We tested a 100% of FRPM students who are not directly certified students.

Cause: Clerical oversight.

Questioned Costs: The District received funding under the Basic Aid provision and did not receive either
supplemental or concentration grant funding in fiscal year 2016-17, therefore there is no fiscal impact.

cy

Unduplicated
Pupil Count
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. 130
NPS School Group 1
Certified Pupil Counts 131
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. (2)

NPS School Group -
Audit Adjustments {(2)
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. 128
NPS School Group 1
Audited Pupil Counts 129
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2017-005- UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT (40000)

Recommendation: We recommend that all household income documentation be reviewed and obtained for accurate
CALPADS reporting.

District Response: Student data which includes Free and Reduced Price Meal Status (FRPM) is reported to
CALPADS based on data as of the CBEDS date which occurs annually on the first Wednesday in October.
Verification of income as required by federal regulations must be completed annually by November 10. CALPADS
guidelines require students FRPM status to be changed for students selected to verify income, and who fail to meet
the deadline. Student data is compiled for all other student reporting as of the CBEDS date, except for FRPM
reporting which must be revised even though the students were legally receiving FRPM as of the CBEDS date. The
FRPM data base maintained by the Food Service Department must accurately reflect the date changes in status for
each student. Therefore, the data between the two systems will be different as of the CBEDS date.

In future reporting periods, the District will manually adjust the data uploaded to CALPADS for the December
certification to comply with CALPADS requirements for FRPM data.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-001: FINANCIAL REPORTING — UNAUDITED ACTUALS - 30000

Criteria:

Conditions:

Questioned Costs:

Context:

Effects:

1-2. Each year, school districts are responsible for preparing complete and accurate financial information, which is reported to the
California Department of Education in the form of the “Unaudited Actuals” Financial Report. Accordingly, school districts should
have an effective system of internal control over financial reporting that will ensure that the information contained in the report is
free of material misstatements.

1. A duplicate accounts payable accrual in the amount of $18,273 was incorrectly recorded in fiscal year 2015-16 and was not cancelled
until fiscal year 2016-17.
2. A payment in the amount of $33,250, related to pre-election costs associated with placing a bond measure on the November 20 ballot,
was incorrectly recorded in the Deferred Maintenance Fund, instead of the General Fund.
1-2. None. The financial statements have been adjusted to correct the misstatements as reflected on page 74.
1. The District’s internal control system detected the duplicate year-end accrual however, the District did not record a journal entry to

properly adjust the books prior to closing.

2. The payment was not consistent with the purpose of the Deferred Maintenance Fund.
1. Capital outlay expenditures were overstated in the Capital Projects — Special Reserve Fund in fiscal year 2015-16.

2. Contract services expenditures were understated in the General Fund and overstated in the Deferred Maintenance Fund, in fiscal
year 2015-16.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-001: FINANCIAL REPORTING ~ UNAUDITED ACTUALS — 30000 (continued)

Recommendations:
1. The District should develop a comprehensive financial reporting checklist, which can be used by staff during the year-end closing

process, to prevent material misstatements from occurring in the future. District personnel should receive in-service training to
understand the significance of year-end cut-off procedures.

2. The District should establish internal control procedures to ensure that account coding is properly reviewed by appropriate

supervisors.

District Responses: The District is still determining the reason for the findings noted in this section. The District will be establishing effective internal controls

and separation of duties. Regarding these specific findings:

1. The District will provide specific training and provide staff a checklist and written procedures for the year end closing process. This
will be in place for the close of the 2016-2017 fiscal year.

2. The District will provide specific training in two areas:
The District will develop written procedures for properly coding payments and will ensure that all payments processed are

reviewed and authorized by a secondary person.
b. The District will provide staff with an updated copy of the California School Accounting Manual and provide opportunities to

staff to attend trainings in the area of school accounting.

a.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-002: INFORMATION AND COMMUNITCATION -~ 30000

Criteria: An effective information and communication system is a key component of a strong internal control structure pursuant to the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations’ (COSQO) Internal Control Integrated Framework.

Condition: The District incurred substantial costs in fiscal year 2015-16 in an effort to place a bond measure on the November 2016 ballot, however the District
did not submit the required paperwork to the County Elections Office by the filing deadline. As a result, the bond measure was never placed on the ballot.

Questioned Costs: The District incurred at least $33,250 of pre-election costs in fiscal year 2015-16, which were funded by District reserves.

Context: The Governing Board, Management, employees, and the community spent considerable time and effort creating bond priority lists, in anticipation
of the bond measure, which were communicated to the District’s facilities consultants to incorporate into the District’s Master Plan with their associated costs.

Cause: There was a breakdown in communication within the District as to who was responsible for filing the required paperwork with the County Elections
Office by the deadline.

Effect: It is difficult to determine the total effect since it is unknown whether the bond measure would have passed had it been placed on the November 8,
2016 ballot. However, regardless of what the election results may have been, had the bond measure been successfully placed on the ballot, the District must

now determine the best means to provide the funding necessary to make needed upgrades to its aging facilities.

Recommendation: The District needs to promote better communication at all levels of the organization to enable the District to properly execute
organizational objectives.

District Response: The District’s Administrative team and Board of Trustees will develop a more effective manner in which to better communicate with its
employees to ensure that duties and tasks to be performed are clearly outlined. This improved communication will include all levels of all organization.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-003: PAYROLL — 30000

Criteria: Employee timesheets should be signed by employees and their immediate supervisor prior to processing timesheets for payment.
Condition: Employee timesheets were processed for payment prior to being signed by the employees’ supervisor.

Questioned Costs: None. We determined that the internal control deficiency did not result in any improper payments.

Context: The condition was noted when testing supplemental payroll for the month of April 2016.

Cause: The District did not implement the prior year recommendation.

Effect: It is difficult to determine the validity of the hours claimed for payment on the timesheets, when the timesheets are not signed by the employees’
supervisor.

Recommendation: The District should enforce procedures that require supervisors to sign employee timesheets prior to processing the timesheets for
payment.

District Response: The District will implement payroll procedures that will provide a sound internal control structure. Firm payroll submission deadlines
as well as what constitutes a complete employee timesheet submission will be established and employees will be notified in writing of these deadlines and
requirements. This is the second year of this finding and there is no evidence that this issue was addressed in 2015-2016. School districts are required to pay

employees timely. With that in mind, some timesheets in 2015-2016 were processed prior to the written approval of the appropriate supervisor.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-004: CASH RECEIPTS ~ 30000

Criteria: A strong system of internal control over financial reporting requires that deposits be supported by appropriate documentation, which identifies the
source of funds, the purpose of the deposit, and the deposit amount.

Condition: District deposits were not consistently supported by appropriate documentation, which identified the source of funds, the purpose of the deposit,
or the deposited amount.

Questioned Costs: None.

Context: The condition was noted throughout fiscal year 2015-16. The majority of checks deposited are for local donations, facilities rentals, health and
welfare payments, grants and reimbursements.

Cause: The District scans checks for deposit to the County Treasury using Cash Pro, which allows the user to print the scanned checks for a period of up to
three months. District personnel were unaware of the internal control weakness associated with deposits that are not supported by documentation, which
identifies the source of funds, the purpose of the deposit, and the deposit amount and as a result did not printout or maintain a copy of the scanned checks or
other supporting documentation.

Effect: There is no way to determine that deposits have been posted to the general ledger to the correct account, or at the correct amount, if appropriate
supporting documentation such as copies of checks or check remittances are not retained to support the deposit.

Recommendation: The District should establish appropriate procedures to ensure that all deposits are adequately supported by appropriate documentation,
which identifies the source of funds, the purpose of the deposit, and the deposit amount.

District Response: The District currently utilizes Cash Pro to deposit checks received by the District. In the prior year, deposits were processed without
complete documentation. The District now has put appropriate procedures in place for proper tracking of funds received by the District (via checks). The

District still needs to document these new procedures in writing.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-002: BANK ACCOUNTS—~AUTHORIZED SIGNORS - 30000

Criteria: A strong system of internal control over financial reporting requires that bank accounts should be reconciled on a monthly basis. In addition,
authorized signors on bank accounts should be maintained on a current basis.

Condition: The District did not receive bank statements for two commercial bank accounts in fiscal year 2015-16. The authorized signors on the bank accounts
have not been properly updated with the bank.

Questioned Costs: None.

Context: There has been no District initiated activity in the cafeteria and student body accounts for several years. Based on the most recent bank statements
available, the accounts do not have balances that are material to the financial statements.

Cause: The District has experience significant turnover in administrative and business positions in the last five years and as a result, the authorized signors
on the bank accounts have not been updated appropriately. Many of the authorized signors on the accounts no longer work for the District.

Effect: There is no way to determine the balances in the accounts or to correct bank errors if the bank refuses to release information because only authorized
signors can request the information.

Recommendation: The District should determine whether the accounts will be used in the future. If the accounts are no longer needed, the District should
close the account(s). If the account(s) will be used in the future, the District should update the authorized signors on the account(s) and ensure that the
appropriate employees receive monthly bank statements to properly perform reconciliations of the account balances.

District Response: The District will closely review all bank accounts held outside of the County of Marin Treasury. Currently, there are bank accounts that
are either underutilized or no longer needed. Also, these accounts do not have the current staff listed as signatures on the accounts. These issues will be
corrected during the 2016-2017 year. The District will also prepare written procedures to ensure that when District staff changes, proper procedures for

updating authorized signatures continue.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-006: REVOLVING ACCOUNT - 30000

Criteria: The check register balance of the revolving account should be reconciled to the bank statement balance on a monthly basis. The check register
balance of the revolving account should also be reconciled to the imprest balance each month.

Condition: During our review of the revolving account, we noted that the bank reconciliations were not performed on a monthly basis. In addition, the check
register balance was not reconciled to the $1,000 imprest balance.

Questioned Costs: None.
Context: The conditions existed throughout fiscal year 2015-16.

Cause: The District has not established procedures, which require the check register balance of the revolving account to be reconciled to the bank statement
balance and the imprest balance on a monthly basis.

Effect: The check register may not reflect the actual balance available in the revolving account. As a result, errors or irregularities may occur and not be
detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation: The District should establish procedures that require the check register balance of the revolving account to be reconciled to the bank
statement balance and the $1,000 imprest balance on a monthly basis.

District Response: The District will properly reconcile the revolving checking account and balance to the approved balance of $1,000 on a monthly basis.
The District will also prepare written procedures to ensure that when District staff changes, proper procedures for timely reconciliation continue.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-007: CLEARING ACCOUNTS RECONCILIATION- 30000

Criteria: An appropriate system of internal control over financial reporting requires that clearing accounts used to facilitate the payment of items such as
health and welfare benefits, taxes, and insurance, should be reconciled on a periodic basis, to ensure that all related liability and expenditure balances are
properly reported.

Condition: The health and welfare clearing accounts were not reconciled on a routine basis and were not reconciled as of June 30, 2016.

Questioned Costs: None.

Context: The balances in the health and welfare clearing accounts do not appear to be materially misstated as of June 30, 2016.

Cause: The District does not have adequate procedures in place to ensure that clearing accounts, used to facilitate the payment of health and welfare benefits,
are reconciled on a monthly basis.

Effect: The District does not have procedures in place to ensure that the health and welfare clearing accounts are functioning as intended, and to confirm that
the related liabilities and expenditure balances are properly reported.

Recommendation: The District should establish appropriate written procedures to ensure that clearing accounts, used to facilitate the payment of health and
welfare benefits, are reconciled on a monthly basis and that the reconciliations are retained for audit purposes. Errors detected during the reconciliation

process, should be investigated and resolved in a timely manner to ensure that the related liability and expenditure balances are properly reported.

District Response: The District currently does not have procedures in place to properly reconcile health and welfare clearing accounts. The District will
review and develop health and welfare reconciliation procedures specific to the District’s needs.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-008: CONFLICT OF INTERST FORMS ~ 30000

Criteria: A “Statement of Economic Interests” form is required to be submitted to the appropriate agency by April 1st of each year. For elected officials
assuming office or leaving office, forms should be submitted 30 days after assuming or leaving office, respectively.

Condition: A “Statement of Economic Interests” form (California Form 700) covering the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 205 was not available
for one Board member as of December 9, 2016.

Questioned Costs: None. This is an administrative comment only.

Context: All other Board members as of June 30, 2016 submitted the required annual California Form 700 for the period covering January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2015.

Cause: The District has not yet established procedures to ensure that all Board members complete annual “Statement of Economic Interests” forms.
Effect: There is no way to identify if potential conflicts of interest exist for the one Board member.

Recommendation: The Board member who did not have a recent form on file should be instructed to complete the “Statement of Economic Interests” Form
(California Form 700) as soon as possible. The District should establish procedures to ensure forms are completed by the required due dates.

District Response: The District will direct the Board member who does not have a current Statement of Economic Interests form to immediately complete
and submit the form to the District. The District will establish procedures and timelines that ensure these forms are submitted by all Board members each

year.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-009: RATIO OF ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES TO TEACHERS - 40000

Criteria: In accordance with Education Code Section 41402, the maximum ratio of administrative employees to each 100 teachers in an elementary school
district shall be 9.

Condition: The District had an actual excess of 0.87 FTE for administrators in fiscal year 2015-16, which rounds up to 1 FTE.

Questioned Costs: $37,708. The estimated penalty, in accordance with Education Code Section 41404, was calculated using the California Department of
Education’s Employee Ratio Worksheet. The District’s Total State Financing Sources ($1,410,141 / 2.4 FTE = $150,833 average administrator salary). The
average administrator salary was multiplied by the State Funded Share of Administrator Salary ($150,833 x 0.25 = $37,708). Then the penalty was multiplied
by the rounded excess administrator FTE ()$37,708 x 1 FTE = $37,708).

Context: The District received a grant in previous years, which paid for one administrator’s salary, however, when the grant ended, the District did not adjust
their administrative staffing levels accordingly.

Cause: The District was not able to adjust their Administrative FTEs to ensure they are in compliance with the requirements of Education Code Section 41402.
Effect: The District did not comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 41402.

Recommendation: The District should review Administrative and Teacher FTEs to ensure they are in compliance with the requirements of Education Code
Section 41402.

District Response: It is anticipated that the District, in the current year 2016-2017, continues to exceed the allowable maximum ratio of administrators to
teachers. For the 2017-2018 school year, the District will review this ratio and make the necessary adjustments in administrative staffing to be in compliance

of Education Code 41402.

Current Status: Not implemented, see finding #2017-004.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-010: ATTENDANCE ~ 10000

Criteria: In accordance with Education Code Section 46000, attendance in all schools and classes shall be recorded and kept according to regulations prescribed
by the State Board of Educatior.

Condition: The weekly “Classroom Attendance Report” was not carefully reviewed by the classroom teacher before certifying the report and returning it to
the school office.

Questioned Costs: None. The apportionment adjustment due to this error was only 2 apportionment days, which did not result in material misstatement of
average daily attendance (ADA) in either the P-2 or Annual attendance period. (0.02 ADA for P-2 and 0.01 ADA for Annual)

Context: One student listed on the weekly “Classroom Attendance Report”, who generated 2 days of apportionment, was listed with no name, but the teacher
did not catch the omission or investigate the matter with the school office.

Cause: The District did not implement the prior year recommendation.
Effect: The District overstated ADA reported on the P-2 and Annual Attendance Reports.

Recommendation: The District should emphasize the importance of reporting accurate attendance information to school personnel and continue to provide
in-service training on proper attendance procedures.

District Response: It will be required that all teachers take daily attendance and ensure that clerical site staff retain and maintain records to substantiate
excused student absences in accordance with AR 5113. The District will provide immediate training for site staff regarding their roles and responsibilities in

providing accurate student attendance recordkeeping and close monitoring,.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-011: TEACHER MISASSIGNMENT - 71000

Criteria: Any teacher who is assigned to teach a class in which more than 20 percent of the pupils were English learners should be authorized to instruct
limited-English-proficient pupils pursuant to the provisions of Education Code Sections 44253.3, 44253.4 or 44253.10.

Condition: One teacher was assigned to teach a class made up of more than 20 percent English learners, but was not authorized to instruct limited-English-
proficient pupils pursuant to the provisions of Education Code Sections 44253.3, 44253.4 or 44253.10.

Questioned Costs: None. The teacher held a valid certification document.

Context: One teacher sampled appeared to be misassigned to a class with more than 20 percent of pupils classified as English Learners during the 2015-16
fiscal year. The Marin County Office of Education issued a Temporary County Certificate effective May 23, 2016 to bridge the date of the application for an
Emergency CLAD.

Cause: The District was unaware the teacher’s class had more than 20 percent of pupils classified as English Learners.

Effect: The District did not comply with the requirements of Education Code Sections 44253.3, 44253.4 or 44253.10.

Recommendation: The District should report this as a teacher misassignment in the school’s School Accountability Report Card. In the future, the District
should establish procedures to ensure that all teachers, assigned to teach a class in which more than 20 percent of the pupils are English learners, are authorized
to instruct limited-English-proficient pupils pursuant to the provisions of Education Code Sections 44253.3, 44253.4 or 44253.10.

District Response: The District will report a teacher misassignment for 2015-2016 on the School Accountability Report Card due to a teacher assigned to a
class made up of more than 20 percent of English Learners. The District will establish procedures to ensure all teachers are properly assigned in accordance

of Education Code Sections 44253.3, 44253.4 or 44253.10.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-012: AFTER SCHOOL EDUCATION AND SAFETY PROGRAM - 40000

Criteria:

1-2. In accordance with Education Code Section 8482.3(f)(10). After School Education and Safety Program grantees to provide program
attendance of participating pupils to the department. Grantees are required to report the days of operation and the students served
for each school for the 1+ and 27 Half of each fiscal year. Ongoing program funding is based on grantees meeting specific attendance
goals, therefore grantees should develop and maintain accurate attendance records to support attendance reported to the California
Department of Education.

Conditions: The following conditions were noted during our testing at Bayside Martin Luther Kind Jr. Academy:

1. The number of 3 hour students served that was reported to California Department of Education (CDE) for the 1st Half After School
Base attendance report did not agree to the summary worksheets from the contractor who operated the program on behalf of the
District.

2. The total 3 hour student days served summarized by the contractor on the summary worksheets did not agree to the supporting sign-
in/sign-out sheets on a consistent basis. We traced the monthly totals on the summary worksheets, prepared by the contractor, to the
supporting sign-in/sign-out sheets for 22 students in the month of October 2015 and 8 students in the month of March 2016 and noted

the following:
» The attendance for 5 students was correctly summarized
»> The attendance for 5 students was overstated by 1 day on the summary worksheet
» The attendance for 8 students was understated by 1 day on the summary worksheet
> The attendance for 10 students was understated by 2 days on the summary worksheet

v

The attendance for 2 students was understated by 3 days on the summary worksheet

Questioned Costs:
1. The number of 3 hour students served for the 15t Half After School Base attendance report was understated by 570.

2. For the 30 students tested, we noted accumulation errors for 25 students that resulted in a net understatement of 29 days served. There
is no way to reasonably determine the effect of these errors to the remaining population.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-012: AFTER SCHOOL EDUCATION AND SAFETY PROGRAM - 40000 (continued)

Context:
1. The condition appears to be limited to the 1st Half After School Base attendance report.
2. The condition was noted in October 2015 and March 2016. We performed limited test counts in January 2016 and February 2016 but
did not observe similar accumulation errors.
Causes:

1. The District mistakenly excluded all 216 days generated by students in the month of August 2015 and the contractor revised the totals
for December 2015, resulting in an additional 354 days, but the revised total was not included in the 1st Half After School Base
attendance report.

2. The contractor did not properly summarize the days reported on the summary worksheets and the District did not have procedures
in place to audit or verify the totals reported by the contractor.

Effects:

1-2. The District does not appear to have appropriate procedures in place to ensure compliance with the relevant sections of Education

Code Sections 8482.3.
Recommendations:

1. The District should establish appropriate procedures to ensure that information submitted to the California Department of Education
for the ASES program reconciles to supporting site records which are retained for audit purposes.

2. The District should establish appropriate procedures to review the attendance records that are prepared and maintained by contractor
to ensure that the program is operated in accordance with state laws.

District Response:
1-2. The District currently does not have procedures in place to review attendance reporting for the After School Education and Safety
Program. The District will develop written procedures for the vendor hired to run the ASES program to ensure accurately track
student attendance. The District will develop a procedure that requires the vendor to properly train its staff on attendance data

collection. The District itself needs to develop procedures for regular auditing of the data prepared by the vendor.

Current Status: Implemented.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-013: UNDUPLICATED LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA PUPIL COUNTS - 40000

Criteria:

Conditions: 1.

1-3. Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(2) commencing with the 2013-14 fiscal year requires a school district or charter school to annually

submit its enrolled free and reduced-price meal eligibility, foster youth, and English learner pupil-level records for enrolled pupils to the
Superintendent using the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS). Education Code Section 42238.02(b)(3)(B)
states that the Controller shall include instructions necessary to enforce paragraph (2) in the audit required by Education Code Section
14502.1 and that the instructions shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, procedures for determining if the English learner, foster
youth, and free or reduced-price meal eligible pupil counts are consistent with the school district’s or charter school’s English learner,
foster youth, and free or reduced-price meal eligible pupil records.

The District did not have appropriate documentation to support the English Learner (EL) eligibility status assigned to one student reported
on the CALPADS “1.18 — FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List” report as only EL Eligible under the “ELAS Designation”
column.

The District did not have appropriate documentation to support the English Learner eligibility status assigned to two students on the
CALPADS “1.18 — FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth — Student List” report, who had a “No” under the “Direct Certification” column,
and were reported eligible in both the “NSLP Program” column and the “ELAS Designation” column. One of two students did have
appropriate documentation to support their FRPM eligibility status.

The District did not have appropriate documentation to support the free or reduced price meal eligibility status assigned to fourteen (14)
students on the CALPADS “1.18 — FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth ~ Student List” report, who had a “No” under the “Direct
Certification” column, and were reported eligible in both the “NSLP Program” column and the “ELAS Designation” column. These 14
students did have appropriate documentation to support their EL eligibility status.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-013: UNDUPLICATED LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA PUPIL COUNTS — 40000 (continued)

Questioned Costs:
1-3. A summary of certified enrollment, unduplicated pupil counts, pupil count adjustments, and audited unduplicated pupil counts is

presented for the District’s schools as follows:

Unduplicated

Eligible EL Unduplicated
Total Free/Reduced Funding FRPM/EL
Enrollment Meal Counts Eligible Eligible Count

Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. 140 94 50 110
NPS School Group 4 0 o 0

Certified Pupil Counts 144 94 50 110
Bayside Martin Luther King Jr. (14) 3) @)
NPS School Group

Audit Adjustments 0 (14) 3) @)
Bayside Martin Luther King jr. 140 80 47 108
NPS School Group 4 0 0 0

Audited Pupil Counts 144 80 47 108

1-3. The District received funding under the Basic Aid provision and did not receive either supplemental or concentration grant funding
in fiscal year 2015-16, there fore there is no fiscal impact.

Context:
We reviewed 100% of the student population where the exceptions were noted.

Causes:
1-2. The students were not on the District’s master English Learner list. Two students had been reclassified, RFEP in fiscal year 2014-15

and one student was entered into the system incorrectly as an English Learner.

3. The District was unable to provide appropriate documentation to support the students’ classification as FRPM eligible.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-013: UNDUPLICATED LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA PUPIL COUNTS ~ 40000 (continued)

Effect:
1-3. The District overstated the unduplicated pupil counts reported to the California Department of Education for fiscal year 2015-16
based on the District’s supporting documentation.

Recommendations:
1-3. The District should establish procedures to ensure that all pupils, who are reported as FRPM and/or EL eligible on the CALPADS
“1.18 — FRPM/English Learner/Foster Youth ~ Student List” report and who are not directly certified, have appropriate
documentation to support their eligibility status.

District Response:
1-3. The District will develop trainings and written procedures to ensure that staff collecting the unduplicated count data understands

the importance and necessary steps to accurately collect this data.

Current Status: Not implemented, see finding #2017-006.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-014: CAFETERIA OPERATIONS - 40000/50000

Criteria:

Condition:

Questioned Costs:

1.

. Districts are required to submit the monthly claims for reimbursement to the state by the applicable submission deadline date specified

on the California Department of Education website. Claims submitted after the submission deadline, are not paid unless the District
meets certain criteria, circumstances, or conditions that allow the claim to be considered for payment.

. Districts should establish appropriate procedures to ensure that all revenue transactions are properly recorded on the general ledger.

. All revenue from the sale of nonprogram foods are required to accrue to the nonprofit school food service account in accordance with

Section 206 of the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010.

. The August 2015 claim for reimbursement was not transmitted to the California Department of Education prior to the specified

submission deadline.

. The District did not receive a state reimbursement check from the California Department of Education for the month of October 2015

and as a result, the corresponding revenue was not recorded on the District’s general ledger.

. The District did not maintain records of the number of meals served to District employees and other non-student individuals in fiscal

year 2015-16. In addition, the District did not collect any funds from District employees and other non-student individuals for any meals
served in fiscal year 2015-16.

$1,411. (The amount of funding the District was eligible to receive based on the meal counts for August 2015.)

. $632. (The October 2015 state reimbursement check that was not received.

. Since there is no record of the number of meals or ala carte items served to District employees and other non-student individuals, there

is no way to quantify the amount of nonprogram revenue that should have accrued to the school food service account in fiscal year
2015-16.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-014: CAFETERIA OPERATIONS — 40000/50000 (continued)

Context:

Causes:

Effects:

1. The condition appears to be limited to the August 2015 claim for reimbursement.
2. The condition appears to be limited to the October 2015 state reimbursement.
3. The District partners with a contractor to prepare and serve meals in the food service program. We did not observe program costs and
nonprogram costs split out on the contractor’s invoices.
1. District Office personnel were dealing with the aftermath from a fire on September 6, 2015, which destroyed the District Office.
2. The District has not established procedures to ensure that all child nutrition reimbursements are received.
3. The District has not established procedures to track meals or ala carte items served to anyone other than a student registered at the District and

has not established procedures to collect funds from those individuals. All meals served are provided free of charged to students in the District.
The District makes annual contributions to the cafeteria program to defray cost overruns incurred by the program from General Fund reserves.

1. The District incurred cost to provide meals to students of the District during August 2015, but failed to receive reimbursement from the California
Department of Education due to the claim being submitted after the specified submission deadline.

2. The check was not received by the District and could have potentially resulted in loss of funding to the District had the audit not identified the
missing reimbursement.

3. The District was not in compliance with Section 206 of the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010.
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SAUSALITO MARIN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

FINDING #2016-014: CAFETERIA OPERATIONS -~ 40000/50000 (continued)

Recommendations:

District Response:

1. The District should review the criteria, circumstances, or conditions, specified on the California Department of Education website,

that allow the claim to be considered for payment, and determine if the District may still qualify to receive payment for the late claim.

. The District should establish appropriate procedures to ensure that child nutrition reimbursements are received and recorded

appropriately on the general ledger. Reimbursements that are not received in a timely manner should be investigated by District
personnel.

3. The District should keep track all the number of meals served, ala carte made, and any catered meals provided to individuals, other

than students of the District, in order to properly track the nonprogram foods served during the year. The District should also
establish procedures to enable them to properly collect funds from the sale of nonprogram foods and beverages. The District should
complete the USDA’s nonprogram food revenue tool or its equivalent to ensure the nonprogram food revenues are at least covering
the nonprogram food costs.

1. The District will develop a process for timely requesting reimbursements due from the National School Lunch Program so that dollars

owed are not lost due to late filings.

. The District did not properly review the receipt of all funds distributed by the National School Lunch Program, therefore it was

unknow that the District did not receive all funds due to this. The District will develop monthly or bimonthly procedures to ensure
that the Cafeteria program is receiving all anticipated funding.

. Currently, adults are served meals through the Cafeteria and pay for these meals directly to the vendor that provides meals to the

students. The District will work with the vendor to develop a method of tracking the cost of adult meals so that the vendor can invoice
the district separately for the adult meals. The District will also have established a mechanism for the adults to pay the District directly
for meals purchases.

Current Status: Implemented.
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Agenda ltem: 11.05 Date: January 9, 2018

Correspondence ] Consent Agenda
Reports

General Functions

Pupil Services

Personnel Services

Financial & Business Procedures

Curriculum and Instruction

Policy Development

Public Hearings

OO0DDOOXO

ltem Requires Board Action: Item is for Information Only: []

ltem: Appointment of Trustee Representatives to Work with the District Team as Part of the CSBA Policy
Workshop — 1/22-24/2018

Background:

In order to effectively conduct the review and update of the Board policies and procedures, trustee
representatives are encouraged to participate in the process. Once the updates are drafted and prepared, the
entire set of policies and procedures will be brought before the Board for consideration/discussion/approval.

Recommendation:

Attachment:
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy

BP 0410 PROPOSED
Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in education.
District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful discrimination, including
discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry, nationality, national
origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or parental status, physical or
mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, or genetic
information; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or
group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)

(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) -

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) ‘

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

District programs and activities shall also be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory
school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames.

Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall review district programs and activities to ensure
the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may
unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from
accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to remove
any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and
recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)

All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated -
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and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint
Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify students,
parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and employment,
and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on nondiscrimination and related
complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, catalog,
handbook, application form, or other materials distributed to these groups and, as applicable, to the
public. As appropriate, such notification shall be posted in district schools and offices, including
staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, and other prominent locations and shall be
posted on the district's web site and, when available, district-supported social media.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a
format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's
students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated
into that other language.

Access for Individuals with Disabilities

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations.
When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with
disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee
shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes.

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids
and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate
in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may include, but
are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, assistive
technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web sites,
notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials. Individuals with
disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires special
assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-sponsored
function, program, or meeting.
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(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee
responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and
federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall
receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and
shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services,
activities, or facilities.

Superintendent

200 Phillips Drive, Sausalito, CA 94965
415-332-3190

wmcecoy@smesd.ore

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

51007 Legislative intent: state policy

GOVERNMENT CODE

11000 Definitions

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state
11138 Rules and regulations

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

54953.2 Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act
PENAL CODE

422.55 Definition of hate crime

422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act
1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX
2301-2415 Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act
6311 State plans

6312 Local education agency plans

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2000h-6 Title IX

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
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CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9 Dissemination of policy

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against
Sex Discrimination, July 2016

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and
Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS
California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999

Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010

Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov

Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org

Pacific ADA Center: http://www.adapacific.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:
http://www.ada.gov

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: http://www.eeoc.gov

World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http://www.w3.org/wai
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Sausalito Marin City SD
Board Policy

Comprehensive Local Plan For Special Education

BP 0430 PROPOSED (Substantially Unchanged)
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board desires to provide a free appropriate public education to all individuals with
disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district, including children who have been
suspended or expelled or placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school.

Students shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of
the regular education program have been considered, and where appropriate, utilized. (Education
Code 56303)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)

(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

The special education local plan area (SELPA) shall administer a local plan and administer the
allocation of funds. (Education Code 56195)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities)
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff)

OPTION 1: (Districts that participate in a multidistrict SELPA) PROPOSED

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities and employ staff with adequate expertise
for this purpose, the district participates as a member of the SELPA.

The Superintendent or designee shall extend the district's full cooperation to the SELPA. The
policies and procedures of the SELPA shall be applied as policies and regulations of this district,
with the exception of those that apply to complaints, unless the SELPA plan specifically authorizes
the district to operate under its own policies and regulations.

OPTION 2: (Single-district SELPA)
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In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities and employ staff with adequate expertise
for this purpose, the district shall serve as a SELPA.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a local plan for the education of individuals with
disabilities residing in the district. The plan shall be approved by the Board.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

56000-56001 Education for individuals with exceptional needs
56020-56035 Definitions

56040-56046 General provisions

56048-56050 Surrogate parents

56055 Foster parents

56060-56063 Substitute teachers

56170-56177 Children enrolled in private schools

56190-56194 Community advisory committees

56195-56195.10 Local plans

56205-56208 Local plan requirements

56213 Special education local plan areas with small or sparse populations
56240-56245 Staff development

56300-56385 Identification and referral, assessment, instructional planning
56440-56447.1 Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five years
56500-56508 Procedural safeguards; including due process rights
56520-56524 Behavioral interventions '
56600-56606 Evaluation, audits and information

56836-56836.05 Administration of local plan

GOVERNMENT CODE

7579.5 Surrogate parent, appointment, qualifications, liability
95000-95029 California Early Intervention Services Act

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

361 Limitations on parental control

726 Limitations on parental control

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3000-3089 Regulations governing special education

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.10-99.22 Inspection, review and procedures for amending education records
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

300.1-300.818 Assistance to states for the education of children with disabilities, including:
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300.500-300.520 Due process procedures for parents and children
303.1-303.654 Early intervention program for infants and toddlers with disabilities

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

California Department of Education, Special Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs:
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep

(2/98 7/03) 11/06
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 1312.3 PROPOSED
Community Relations

Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, these
uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints
specified in BP 1312.3.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Compliance Officers

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil
rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 51453 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints regarding
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying). The
individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure district
compliance with law. ' '

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Superintendent

200 Phillips Drive, Sausalito, CA 94965
415-332-3190

wmecoy@smesd.org

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the
complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias or
conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the
complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed with
the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve
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complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the
complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees shall cover current
state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable processes for
investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable standards for reaching decisions
on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures. Assigned employees may have access to
legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether
interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If interim
measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult
with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to
implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain in place until the
compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the district issues its final
written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and
offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's UCP,
including information regarding unlawful student fees, local control and accountability plan
(LCAP) requirements, and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, homeless
students, and former juvenile court school students to students, employees, parents/guardians, the
district advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or
representatives, and other interested parties. (Education Code 262.3, 48853, 48853.5, 49013,
49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and

information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted on
the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if available.
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(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the
UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985.
In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information
for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

The notice shall:
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints
2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under

state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable

3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the complainant's
right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue
remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, such as the U.S. Department of Education's
Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying).

4, Include statements that;

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations governing educational programs.

b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt
of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.

c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later than six months from the date it
occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the
alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the
Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth
the reasons for the extension.

d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is
unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to conditions such as a disability or
illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any allegation that is
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subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to investigate and address the
allegations, in a manner appropriate to the particular circumstances.

If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation confirms that discrimination has
occurred, the district will take steps to prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its
discriminatory effects on the complainant, and on others, if appropriate.

f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her
participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's
educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

g The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that includes
meaningful engagement of parénts/guardians, students, and other stakeholders in the development
and/or review of the LCAP.

h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to his/her
educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well as the responsibilities of
the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and facilitate these requirements and to assist the
student in ensuring proper transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers
between schools or between the district and another district.

i. A foster youth, homeless student, or former juvenile court school student who transfers
into a district high school or between district high schools as applicable shall be notified of the
district's responsibility to:

¢y Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has satisfactorily
completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or
agency, and to issue full or partial credit for the coursework completed

(2)  Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course which he/she has
satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency

(3)  Ifthe student has completed his/her second year of high school before the transfer, provide
the student information about district-adopted coursework and Board-imposed graduation
requirements from which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1

J- The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by filing a written
appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.

In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right to file an appeal with the CDE in
the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is dissatisfied with the district's decision.

k. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the districtand a
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copy of the district's decision.
L Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge.
District Responsibilities

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the
district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the
timeline. (5 CCR 4631)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant agrees to an extension
of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint.

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions,
including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5
CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the
integrity of the process. (5 CCR 4630, 4964) :

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints
received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable
to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall
assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:

1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations
governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education,
career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development
programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs may be filed by any
individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against
requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the
LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to
evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the

216 of 256



prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the
school or with the Superintendent or designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later
than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5
CCR 4630)

3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally
suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific
class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six
months from the date when the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from the
date when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or
designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the
extension. (5 CCR 4630)

4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an
investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the
information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.

5. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the complainant, requests
confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the district's
ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for
confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and
resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be
offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation
shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or
where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. If
the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall ensure that
all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information. The
compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance
officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the
complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is
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successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed to
through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with
subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the
complainant and/or his’her representative with the opportunity to present the information
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, or
information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence or
information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and
review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional
evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the investigation. He/she
shall individually interview all available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint,
and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the relevant actions are alleged to have
taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance officer shall inform both parties of the status
of the investigation.

To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimiration (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s),
any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a confidential
manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence
related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or
engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the
complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, a respondent's refusal
to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in
the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in any other
obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on evidence collected, that a
violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR
4631)

In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and other
information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct the
investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result in a
finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy
in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining the
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veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is more
likely to be true than not.

Report of Findings
OPTION 1:

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare
and send to the complainant, and respondent if there is one, a written report, as described in the
section "Final Written Decision" below, within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the
complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

OPTION 2: PROPOSED

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 calendar
days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant a
written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If the complainant is
dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five business days, file
his/her complaint in writing with the Board.

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting
convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered.
When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session. The Board may decide
not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the
time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's decision and, in the same
manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Board if dissatisfied with the decision.

Final Written Decision

The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be sent to
the complainant and respondent. (5 CCR 4631)

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may be
communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be involved in
implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is
protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the alleged victim shall include
information about any sanction to be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the
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alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the student
involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single primary
language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that language. In all
other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information for
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

For all complaints, the decision shall include: (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual determination,
the following factors may be taken into account:

a. Statements made by any witnesses

b. The relative credibility of the individuals involved

c. How the complaining individual reacted to the incident

d. Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct
€. Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders

f. Past false allegétions made by the complainant

2. The conclusion(s) of law “

3. Disposition of the complaint

4. Rationale for such disposition

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a determination for each
allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has occurred.

The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of the
following:

a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct

C. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s)

d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed
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e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred

f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals

5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to address
the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a remedy

that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include:

a. The corrective actions imposed on the respondent

b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person who was the
subject of the complaint, but this information should not be shared with the respondent.

c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent
recurrence
6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to the

CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for
reporting any subsequent problems.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the complainant
that:

1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint
procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest
attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with the CDE. (Education Code 262.3)

2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state
courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)

3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender,
disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights
at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Corrective Actions
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school

or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies;
training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

221 of 256



For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim but
not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Counseling

2. Academic support

3. Health services

4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus

5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does

not penalize the victim

7. Restorative justice
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation
9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were

related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law

2. Parent/guardian conference

3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others

4. Positive behavior support

5. Referral to a student success team

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges as
permitted by law

7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate
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disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and collective
bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to
ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), that the
district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other
charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or any
requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all
affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by regulation of the State
Board of Education. (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all affected
students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the
filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)

Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision may file an appeal in
writing with the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision. (Education
Code 222, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 52075; 5 CCR
4632)

When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision,
he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with the CDE.

The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether
the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a
copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision. (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's
decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5
CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint

2. A copy of the written decision

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if not
covered by the decision

4, A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and
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documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator
5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures

7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

(/16 9/16) 5/17
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures

AR 1312.4 PROPOSED
Community Relations
Types of Complaints

The district shall use the procedures described in this administrative regulation only to investigate
and resolve the following: (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680-4683)

1. _ Complaints regarding the insufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials, including
any complaint alleging that:

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or
instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required instructional
materials to use in class.

b. A student does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or
after school. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each student.

C. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages,
or are unreadable due to damage.

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or
instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials.

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

2. Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment, including any complaint alleging
that:

a. A semester begins and a teacher vacancy exists.

b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a

class with more than 20 percent English learners in the class.
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners)

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter
competency.

Teacher vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been

assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester
course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the
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beginning of the semester for an entire semester. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all the students
enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee assigned for the duration of
the class, but not later than 20 working days after the first day students attend classes for that
semester. (5 CCR 4600)

Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position
for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the
placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not
otherwise authorized by statute to hold. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4600)

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)
(cf. 4113 - Assignment)

3. Complaints regarding the condition of school facilities, including any complaint alleging
that:

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students
or staff.

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a threat
to the health and safety of students or staff while at school, including, but not limited to, gas leaks;
nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-conditioning systems; electrical power
failure; major sewer line stoppage; major pest or vermin infestation; broken windows or exterior
doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk; abatement of hazardous materials
previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to students or staff; structural damage
creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition; or any other condition deemed appropriate.
(Education Code 17592.72)

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance
with Education Code 35292.5.

Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or
maintained regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap,
or paper towels or functional hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5)

Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours
when students are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school
hours when students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the
restroom is necessary for student safety or to make repairs. (Education Code 35292.5)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)
Filing of Complaint

226 of 256



A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified in the section "Types of Complaints" above shall
be filed with the principal or designee at the school in which the complaint arises. The principal
or designee shall forward a complaint about problems beyond his/her authority to the
Superintendent or designee in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days. (Education
Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

Investigation and Response

The principal or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within
his/her authority. He/she shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to
exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. (Education Code 35186; 5
CCR 4685)

Complaints may be filed anonymously. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form
that he/she would like a response to the complaint, the principal or designee shall report the
resolution of the complaint to him/her at the mailing address indicated on the complaint form
within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint. At the same time, the principal or
designee shall report the same information to the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4680, 4685)

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the
response shall be written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed.
(Education Code 35186)

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of a complaint, he/she has the right to describe
the complaint to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled meeting. (Education Code 35186;
5 CCR 4686)

For any complaint concerning a facilities condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the
health or safety of students or staff as described in item #3a in the section "Types of Complaints"
above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the principal or
Superintendent or designee may file an appeal to the Superintendent of Public Instruction within
15 days of receiving the district's response. The complainant shall comply with the appeal
requirements specified in 5§ CCR 4632. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4687)

All complaints and written responses shall be public records. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR
4686)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

Reports

On a quarterly basis, the Superintendent or designee shall report, to the Board at a regularly
scheduled public Board meeting and to the County Superintendent of Schools, summarized data
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on the nature and resolution of all complaints. The report shall include the number of complaints
by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. (Education Code
35186; 5 CCR 4686)

Forms and Notices

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a Williams complaint form is available at each school.
However, complainants need not use the district's complaint form in order to file a complaint.
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's complaint form contains a space to
indicate whether the complainant desires a response to his/her complaint and specifies the location
for filing a complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he/she
wishes. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 4680)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a notice is posted in each classroom in each
school containing the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 35186)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

234.1 Prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties

17592.72  Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card

35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures.

35292.5 Restrooms, maintenance and cleanliness

48985 Notice to parents in language other than English

60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures

4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams case: http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc

State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: hitp://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov

(11/07 11/10) 8/14
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy
Use Of School Facilities

BP 1330 PROPOSED
Community Relations

The Governing Board believes that school facilities and grounds are a vital community resource which should be
used to foster community involvement and development. Therefore, the Board authorizes the use of school
facilities by district residents and community groups for purposes specified in the Civic Center Act, to the extent
that such use does not interfere with school activities or other school-related uses.

(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

The Superintendent or designee shall give priority to school-related activities in the use of school facilities and
grounds. Other uses authorized under the Civic Center Act shall be on a first-come, first-served basis.

For the effective management and control of school facilities and grounds, the Superintendent or designee shall
maintain procedures and regulations that: (Education Code 38133)

1. Aid, encourage, and assist groups desiring to use school facilities for approved activities

2. Preserve order in school facilities and on school grounds and protect school facilities, designating a person
to supervise this task, if necessary

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive School Safety Plan)
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

3. Ensure that the use of school facilities or grounds is not inconsistent with their use for school purposes and
does not interfere with the regular conduct of school work

Subject to prior approval by the Board, the Superintendent or designee may grant the use of school facilities or
grounds on those days on which district schools are closed. (Education Code 37220)

(cf. 6115 - Ceremonies and Observances)

There shall be no advertising on school facilities and grounds except as allowed by district policy specified in BP
1325 - Advertising and Promotion.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

As necessary to ensure efficient use of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee may, with the Board's
approval, enter into an agreement for the joint use of any school facilities or grounds. The Board shall approve
any such agreement only if it determines that it is in the best interest of the district and the community.

(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Fees

The Board shall adopt a comprehensive schedule of fees to be charged for community use of school facilities and

grounds, including, but not limited to, the multipurpose rofom(s), playing or athletic field(s), track and field
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venue(s), tennis court(s), and outdoor basketball court(s). The schedule of fees shall be prepared in accordance
with 5 CCR 14037-14041. (5 CCR 14041)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
OPTION I: (Amount not exceeding direct costs to all community groups)

The Board believes that the use of school facilities or grounds should not result in costs to the district. The
Superintendent or designee shall charge all groups granted the use of school facilities or grounds under the Civic
Center Act an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in accordance with 5 CCR 14037-14041.
(Education Code 38134)

OPTION 2: (No charge to nonprofit youth and school-oriented organizations)

The Board authorizes the use of school facilities or grounds without charge by nonprofit organizations, clubs, or
associations organized to promote youth and school activities. As specified in Education Code 38134(a), these
groups include, but are not limited to, Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, Camp Fire USA, YMCA, parent-teacher
associations, and school-community advisory councils. Other groups that request the use of school facilities
under the Civic Center Act, including nonprofit groups not organized to promote youth and school activities and
for-profit groups, shall be charged an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in accordance with 5 CCR
14037-14041. (Education Code 38134)

OPTION 3: (No charge to school-related organizations) PROPOSED

The Board shall grant the use of school facilities or grounds without charge to school-related organizations whose
activities are directly related to or for the benefit of district schools. All other groups requesting the use of school
facilities under the Civic Center Act shall be charged an amount not exceeding direct costs determined in
accordance with 5 CCR 14037-14041. ‘

Additionally, when any use of school facilities or grounds is for religious services, the district shall charge an
amount at Jeast equal to the district's direct costs. (Education Code 38134)

In determining direct costs to be charged for community use of each, or each type of, school facility or grounds,
the Superintendent or designee shall calculate, in accordance with 5 CCR 14038, the community's proportionate
share of the following costs: (Education Code 38134; 5 CCR 14038-14041)

1. Capital direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14039, including the estimated costs of
maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of non-classroom space school facilities or grounds

However, capital direct costs shall not be charged to organizations retained by the district or school to
provide instruction or instructional activities to students during school hours or for classroom-based programs
that operate after school hours, including, but not limited to, after-school, tutoring, and child care programs. (5
CCR 14037)

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

2. Operational direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14040, including estimated costs of
supplies, utilities, janitorial services, other services of district employees and/or contracted workers, and salaries
and benefits paid to district employees directly associated with the administration of the Civic Center Act to
operate and maintain school facilities and grounds
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Direct cost fees shall not be discounted to any group or organization except when the discount is specifically
authorized in the adopted fee schedule. (5 CCR 14041)

Groups shall be charged fair rental value when using school facilities or grounds for entertainment or meetings
where admission is charged or contributions solicited and net receipts are not to be expended for charitable
purposes or for the welfare of the district's students. (Education Code 38134)

Expending Funds Collected as Capital Direct Costs

Any funds collected as capital direct costs shall be deposifed into a special fund to be used only for capital
maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of school facilities and grounds. (5 CCR 14042)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

10900-10914.5 Community recreation programs

32282 School safety plan

37220 School holidays

38130-38138 Civic Center Act, use of school property for public purposes
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

25608 Alcoholic beverage on school premises

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

MILITARY AND VETERANS CODE

1800 Definitions

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

14037-14042 Proportionate direct costs for use of school facilities and grounds
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 ‘
7905 Equal access to public school facilities

COURT DECISIONS

Good News Club v. Milford Central School, (2001) 533 U.S. 98

Lamb's Chapel v. Center Moriches Union Free School District, (1993) 508 U.S. 384
Cole v. Richardson, (1972) 405 U.S. 676

Connell v. Higgenbotham, (1971) 403 U.S. 207

ACLU v. Board of Education of Los Angeles, (1961) 55 Cal .2d 167

Ellis v. Board of Education, (1945) 27 Cal.2d 322

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 90 (1999)

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 248 (1996)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity Through Joint Use of Facilities, Policy Brief, February 2010
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

(11/06 4/13) 8/14
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Federal Grant Funds

AR 3230 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Allowable Costs

Prior to obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a
proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure of federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR 200.400-200.475 and
the terms and conditions of the federal grant award. He/she shall also determine whether the expense is a direct
or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.413 and 200.414 and, if the purchase will benefit other programs not
included in the grant award, the appropriate share to be allocated to the federal grant.

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)

The Superintendent or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal grant funds and shall
ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California School Accounting Manual.

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

Period of Performance

All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the grant project and
shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period, unless specifically authorized by the grant
award to be carried over beyond the initial term of the grant. (2 CFR 200.77, 200.308, 200.309, 200.343)

Procurement

On or before July 1, 2017, or such later date as may be approved in the Uniform Guidance, the Superintendent or
designee shall comply with the standards specified in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 and Appendix II of Part 200 when
procuring goods and services needed to carry out a federal grant as well as any more restrictive state laws and
district policies concerning the procurement of goods and services.

As appropriate to encourage greater economy and efficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall avoid
acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items, give consideration to consolidating or breaking out procurements,
analyze lease versus purchase alternatives, consider entering into an interagency agreement for procurement of
common or shared goods and services, and/or use federal excess or surplus property. (2 CFR 200.318)

The procurement of goods or services with federal funds shall be conducted in a manner that provides full and
open competition in accordance with state laws and district regulations and the following requirements:

1. Any purchase of supplies or services that does not exceed the "micro-purchase" threshold specified in 48
CFR 2.101 may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotes, provided that the district considers the price to
be reasonable and maintains written evidence of this reasonableness in the record of all micro-purchases. (2 CFR
200.67, 200.320)

2. For any purchase that exceeds the micro-purchase threshold but is less than the bid limit required by
Public Contract Code 20111, the Superintendent or designee shall utilize "small-purchase" procedures that

include obtaining price or rate quotes from an adequate number of qualified sources. (2 CFR 200.320)
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3. Contracts for goods or services over the bid limits required by Public Contract Code 20111 shall be
awarded pursuant to California law and AR 3311 - Bids, unless exempt from bidding under the law.

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

4. If a purchase is exempt from bidding and the district's solicitation is by a request for proposals, the award
may be made by either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract awarded to the entity whose proposal is
most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered. (2 CFR 200.320)

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the item is available
from a single source, the need or emergency will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation, the
awarding agency expressly authorizes sole sourcing in response to the district's request, and/or competition is
determined inadequate after solicitation of a number of sources. (2 CFR 200.320)

6. Time and materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no other contract is suitable
and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and materials type
contract means a contract whose cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct labor hours charged at
fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit. (200.328)

For any purchase of $25,000 or more, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that any vendor which is used to
procure goods or services is not excluded or disqualified by the federal government. (2 CFR 180.220, 200.213)

All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material,
product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements, contain features

. which unduly restrict competition. The description shall avoid detailed product specifications to the extent
possible, but may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service to be procured
and, when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must
conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. When it is impractical or not economical to make a clear and accurate
description of the technical requirements, a brand name or equivalent description may be used to define the
performance or other salient requirements of procurement, clearly stating the specific features of the named brand
which must be met by offers. In addition, every solicitation shall identify all requirements which the offer must
fulfill and any other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. (2 CFR 200.319)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the procurement, including, but not
limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of the contract type, contractor selection or
rejection, and the basis for the contract price. (2 CFR 200.318)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal grant funds contain the
applicable contract provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 - Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity
Contracts Under Federal Awards. (2 CFR 200.326)

Capital Expenditures

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency before using federal
funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, facilities, equipment, and intellectual
property and expenditures to make additions, improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements,
reinstallations, renovations, or alterations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life. (2
CFR 200.12, 200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89, 200.313, 200.439)
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Conflict of Interest

No Governing Board member, district employee, or district representative shall participate in the selection,
award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she has a real or apparent conflict of
interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate family, his/her partner, or an organization which
employs or is about to employ any of them has a financial interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm
considered for a contract. Such persons are prohibited from soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything
of monetary value from contractors or subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. (2
CFR 200.318)

Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply with BB 9270 -
Conflict of Interest.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
Cash Management

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the district's compliance with 2 CFR 200.305 pertaining to payments
and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods and procedures that minimize the time
elapsing between the transfer of funds to the district and the district's disbursement of funds. (2 CFR 200.305)

When authorized by law, the district may receive advance payments of federal grant funds, limited to the
minimum amounts needed and timed in accordance with the actual immediate cash requirements of the district for
carrying out the purpose of the program or project. Except under specified conditions, the district shall maintain
the advance payments in an interest-bearing account. The district shall remit interest earned on the advanced
payment to the awarding agency on an annual basis, but may retain interest amounts specified in 2 CFR 200.305
for administrative expenses. (2 CFR 200.305)

When required by the awarding agency, the district shall instead submit a request for reimbursement of actual
expenses incurred. The district may also request reimbursement as an alternative to receiving advance
payments. (2 CFR 200.305)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the expenditure of federal funds,
such as invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, or other appropriate documentation.

Personnel

All district employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including employees whose salary is paid
with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind contribution to a federal program, shall
document the amount of time they spend on grant activities. (2 CFR 200.430)

Records

Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or district policy requires a longer retention
period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other district records related to a
federal award shall be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure
report or, for a federal award that is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the
quarterly or annual financial report. (2 CFR 200.333)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)
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Audits

Whenever the district expends $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year, it shall arrange for
either a single audit or a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200.507 or 200.514. (2 CFR 200.501)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the audit meets the requirements specified in 2 CFR
200.500-200.521.

Specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by the district shall be transmitted to the
clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget and shall be made available for public
inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 days after receipt of the auditor's report or within nine
months after the end of the audit period, whichever is sooner, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the
federal agency or a different period is specified in a program-specific audit guide. (2 CFR 200.512)

In the event that the audit identifies any deficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly act to either
correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, or demonstrate that the audit finding is
invalid or does not warrant action. (2 CFR 200.26, 200.508, 200.511)

9/16
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy
Bids

BP 3311 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Governing Board is committed to promoting public accountability and ensuring prudent use of public funds.
When leasing, purchasing, or contracting for equipment, materials, supplies, or services for the district, including
when contracting for public projects involving district facilities, the Board shall explore lawful opportunities to
obtain the greatest possible value for its expenditure of public funds. When required by law, or if the Board
determines that it is in the best interest of the district, such contracts shall be made using competitive bidding.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the
purpose of evading legal requirements for competitive bidding. (Public Contract Code 20116)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish comprehensive bidding procedures for the district in accordance
with law. The procedures shall include a process for advertising bids, instructions and timelines for subrmttmg
and opening bids, and other relevant requirements.

For award of contracts which, by law or Board policy, require prequalification, the procedures shall identify a
uniform system for rating bidders on the basis of a completed questionnaire and financial statements.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

When calling for bids, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the bid specifications clearly describe in
appropriate detail the quality, delivery, and service required and include all information which the district knows,
or has in its possession, that is relevant to the work to be performed or that may impact the cost of performing the
work.

Except as authorized by law, contracts shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder who shall give such security as
the Board requires, or else all bids shall be rejected. (Public Contract Code 20111)

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the district, the district may piggyback onto the
contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase any personal property to the extent
authorized by law. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act
17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts

17406 Lease-leaseback contracts
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17595 Purchase of supplies through Department of General Services

17602 Purchase of surplus property from federal agencies

38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonable commodities

38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

39802 Transportation services

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

7056 General engineering contractor

7057 General building contractor

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

446 Verification of pleadings

GOVERNMENT CODE

4217.10-4217.18 Energy conservation contracts

4330-4334 Preference for California-made materials

6252 Definition of public record

53060 Special services and advice

54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

1102 Emergencies

1103 Definition, responsible bidder

2000-2002 Responsive bidders

3000-3010 Roofing projects

3400 Bids, specifications by brand or trade name not permitted

3410 United States produce and processed foods

4113 Prime contractor; subcontractor

6610 Bid visits

12200 Definitions, recycled goods, materials and supplies

20101-20103.7 Public construction projects, requlrements for bidding

20103.8 Award of contracts

20110-20118.4 Local Agency Public Construction Act; school dlstrlcts

20189 Bidder's security, earthquake relief

22000-22045 Alternative procedures for public projects (UPCCAA)

22152 Recycled product procurement ’

COURT DECISIONS

Los Angeles Unified School District v. Great American Insurance Co., (2010) 49 Cal:4th 739
Great West Contractors Inc. v. Irvine Unified School District, (2010) 187 Cal. App.4th 1425
Marshall v. Pasadena Unified School District, (2004) 119 Cal. App.4th 1241

Konica Business Machines v. Regents of the University of California, (1988) 206 Cal.App.3d 449
City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior Court, (1972) 7 Cal.3d 861
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Department of General Services: https://www.dgs.ca.gov

(8/13 5/16) 12/16
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Administrative Regulation
Bids

AR 3311 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Advertised/Competitive Bids
The district shall advertise for any of the following: (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. A public project contract that involves an expenditure of $15,000 or more, including a contract for
construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, or
repair work involving a district owned, leased, or operated facility

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)
(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

2. A contract that exceeds the amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, for any of the following:

a. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the district

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)
(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

b. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting, financial, legal,
or administrative matters

c. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a district facility
operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended purpose for which it was designed,
improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical,
plumbing, glazing, and other craft work designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other
operations on machinery and other permanently attached equipment. Maintenance does not include painting,
repainting, or decorating other than touchup, or among other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and
protection provided by security forces. (Public Contract Code 20115)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local
newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper
of general circulation that is circulated in the county. The Superintendent or designee also may post the notice on
the district's web site or through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or
supplies to be furnished and the time and place and web site where bids will be opened. (Public Contract Code
20112) :

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
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The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site visit, or meeting and
details regarding when and where project documents, including the final plan and specifications, are available.
Any such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial
notice. (Public Contract Code 6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify in writing the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer materials in
products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold. (Public Contract Code 22152)

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)

2. All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover. The district may accept a bid that has
been submitted electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code 20111, 20112)

The bid shall be accompanied by a form of bidder's security, including either cash, a cashier's check
payable to the district, a certified check made payable to the district, or a bidder's bond executed by an admitted
surety insurer and made payable to the district. The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a
reasonable period of time, but in no event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code
20111, 20112)

3. When a standardized proposal form is provided by the district, bids not presented on the standard form
shall be disregarded. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

4, Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the bids are actually
opened at that time. (Public Contract Code 20112)

. 5. When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Governing Board may determine by
lot which bid shall be accepted. (Public Contract Code 20117)

6. If the district requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or deducted from the scope
of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of the following methods will be used to
determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a specification, only the method provided in item #6a below
shall be used. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without consideration of the
prices on the additive or deductive items.

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used for the purpose of
determining the lowest bid price.

c. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those additive or
deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those items in the solicitation, and
added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal to a funding amount publicly disclosed by the
district before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify any of the
bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district before the ranking of all
bidders from lowest to highest has been determined. (Public Contract Code 20103.8)

7. In determining the lowest bid, the district shalBgogsidgsonly responsive bids that conform to bid



specifications and are submitted by responsible bidders who have demonstrated trustworthiness, quality, fitness,
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily perform the public works contract.

" a. When a bid is determined to be nonresponsive, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the bidder and
give him/her an opportunity to respond to the determination.

b. When the lowest bidder is determined to be nonresponsible, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the bidder of his/her right to present evidence of his/her responsibility at a hearing before the Board.

8. After being opened, all submitted bids become public records pursuant to Government Code 6252 and
shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and administrative regulation.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating
bidders on the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of
contracts on which each bidder is qualified to bid. For this purpose, the Superintendent or designee shall furnish
prospective bidders a standardized prequalification questionnaire and financial record which, when completed,
shall indicate a bidder's statement of financial ability and experience in performing public works. The bidder's
information shall be verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings are verified. The
questionnaires and financial statements shall not be public records and shall not be open to public inspection.
(Code of Civil Procedure 446; Public Contract Code 20111.5, 20111.6)

When any public project involves an expenditure of $1,000,000 or more and is funded or reimbursed wholly or
partly by the School Facilities Program funds or other future state school bond, the district shall prequalify
prospective bidders either quarterly or annually. The prequalification shall be valid for one year and the following
requirements shall apply: (Public Contract Code 20111.6)

1. Prospective bidders, including, but not limited to, prime, general engineering, and general building
contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors, as defined in Public Contract Code 4113 or
Business and Professions Code 7056 or 7057, as applicable, shall submit a standardized questionnaire and
financial statement 10 or more business days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public
opening of sealed bids.

2. Prospective bidders shall be prequalified by the district five or more business days, as determined by the
district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

If the project includes electrical, mechanical, or plumbing components that will be performed by
electrical, mechanical, or plumbing contractors, the Superintendent or designee shall make available to all bidders
a list of prequalified general contractors and electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors five or more
business days, as determined by the district, before the date fixed for the public opening of sealed bids.

For all other contracts requiring competitive bidding, the district may establish a procedure for prequalifying
bidders on a quarterly basis and may authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar
year following the date of the initial prequalification. Prospective bidders for such contracts shall submit the
questionnaire and financial statement at least five days before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids and
shall be prequalified by the district at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code
20111.5)
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Award of Contract
The district shall award each contract to the lowest responsible bidder, except in the following circumstances:

1. When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data processing systems and
supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one of the three lowest responsible bidders
(Public Contract Code 20118.1)

2. When the contract is for any transportation service which involves an expenditure of more than $10,000
and which will be made with any person or corporation other than a common carrier, municipally owned transit
system, or a parent/guardian of a student who is to be transported, in which case the Board may contract with other
than the lowest bidder (Education Code 39802)

3. When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements relating to
participation of disabled veteran or small business enterprises in accordance with Public Contract Code
2000-2002, in which case the Board may contract with the lowest responsible bidder who submits a responsive
bid and complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the goals and requirements (Public Contract Code
2000-2002)

4, When procuring a lease-leaseback contract, in which case the Board shall award the contract based on
objective criteria for determining the best combination of price and qualifications in accordance with Education
Code 17400 and 17406

(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

5. When procuring a design-build contract for a public works project in excess of $1,000,000 in accordance
with Education Code 17250.20, in which case the Board may award the contract to either the low bid or the best
value to the district, taking into consideration, at a minimum, price, technical design and construction expertise,

and life-cycle costs (Education Code 17250.20, 17250.25)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)
Protests by Bidders

A bidder may protest a bid award if he/she believes that the award is not in compliance with law, Board policy, or
the bid specification. A protest must be filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee within five working

days after receipt of notification of the contract award and shall include all documents supporting or justifying the
protest. A bidder's failure to file the protest documents in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of his/her right
to protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's claims and render a
decision in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent or designee may also convene a meeting with
the bidder in order to attempt to resolve the problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent or designee's decision to the Board. The Superintendent or designee
shall provide notice to the bidder of the date and time for Board consideration of the protest at least three business
days before the Board meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

Limitation on Use of Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that the bid specification: (Public Contract £pde 3002, 3400)



1. Does not directly or indirectly limit bidding to any one specific concern

2. Does not call for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade name, unless
the specification is followed by the words "or equal," so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product,
thing, or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the award of the
contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting the designated material,
product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the contractor may submit the data within 35 days
after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal" to that
designated if it is equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the intended function equally
well; and conforms substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid specification.

However, the Superintendent or designee may designate a specific material, product, thing, or service by brand or
trade name (sole sourcing) if the Board has made a finding, described in the invitation for bids or request for
proposals (RFP), that a particular material, product, thing, or service is designated for any of the following
purposes: (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is in the course of
completion

3. “To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4. 4To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, ag long as the deciaration has been approved by

four-fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)
Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may
authorize another public corporation or agency, by contract, lease, requisition, or purchase order, to lease
data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies, equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and other
personal property for the district in the manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to make
the leases or purchases from a vendor ("piggyback"). Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an
existing contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of personal property, the district may authorize the lease
or purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and make payments under the same terms that are
available to the public corporation or agency under the contract. (Public Contract Code 20118)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related facility ground
lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in the best interest of the district and meet the
cost effectiveness requirements specified in Government Code 4217.12. The Board's determination shall be made
at a regularly scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and
shall be based on cost and savings comparison findipgs)sgeeifigd in Government Code 4217.12. (Government



Code 4217.12)

(cf. 3511 - Energy and Water Management)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audiovisual materials, test materials, workbooks,
instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any amount without taking
estimates or advertising for bids. (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of cafeterias may be purchased through
bid or on the open market. (Education Code 38083)

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)

Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code 20114. Day labor
shall include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or temporary basis. (Public Contract
Code 20114)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is necessary to permit
the continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or property, the Board may, by unanimous
vote and with the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies
without advertising for or inviting bids or may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency
purpose. (Public Contract Code 1102, 20113)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

The district may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its agencies in any quantity
needed for the operation of its schools without taking estimates or advertising for bids. (Education Code 17602)

(10/15 5/16) 12/16
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Sausalite Marin City School District

Board Policy

Contracts

BP 3312 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on behalf of the district for the
acquisition of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary for the achievement of district goals.
In exercising this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the district's interest is protected
and that the terms of the contract conform to applicable legal standards, including the bidding requirements in
Public Contract Code 20111.

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract)

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures)
(cf. 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts)

(cf. 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts)

(cf. 3311.4 - Procurement of Technological Equipment)

(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)

(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee the authority to enter into contracts
on behalf of the district. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all such
contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the Board.

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

Every contract entered into on behalf of the district shall be made available for public inspection, except when the
law prohibits disclosure. No contract shall prohibit a district employee from disparaging the goods or services of
any contracting party.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Contracts for Non-nutritious Foods or Beverages

The district shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods or beverages that do not meet applicable
nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431-49431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7
CFR 210.11 or 220.12, unless the contract specifies that such sale will occur off campus or outside the time
restriction specified in the applicable law.

(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

Before the district enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods as defined in law, the Board shall ensure
that the district has sufficient internal controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that
funds raised as a result of the contract benefit public education. (Education Code 35182.5)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures to protect the integrity of
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public funds. Such internal controls may include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same time, safeguard the assets,
financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property. Control systems
shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities of management.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site. The contract shall
specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a check, for district
proceeds directly to the control office.

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:

1. The Superintendent or designee may invite parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community
members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds will
be spent in a manner that benefits public education.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific programs and activities that will be
funded by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision and goals.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the Superintendent or designee
the number of food items or beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by the sales. The
Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4, The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the ability of student and
parent organizations to plan and operate fundraising activities.

(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students)

Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall
be entered into on a competitive bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a
Request for Proposal. (Education Code 35182.5)

OPTION 1: The Board shall hold an annual public hearing to review and discuss all existing and potential
contracts for the sale of foods and beverages on campus, including those sold as full meals or through competitive
sales, fundraisers, or vending machines. The Board shall hold a public hearing for any contract not discussed at
the annual public hearing. (Education Code 35182.5)

OPTION 2: PROPOSED

The Board shall not enter into or renew any contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of
carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and
members of the public have had an opportunity to copungpbegthe contract at a public hearing held during a



regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public,
identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting. (Education Code 35182.5.)

(cf. 9322 - Agendas/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the nutritional value of foods and beverages
sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and snacks, including
locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar, and additives in the foods and beverages discussed;
and barriers to student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a confidentiality clause that would prevent the
district or a district school from making any part of the contract public. (Education Code 35182.5)

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the dissemination of
advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral component of the
education of students.

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service unless it
contracts to permit dissemination of advertising to students.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides written notice that
the advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be exposed to the
program that contains the advertising. A request shall be honored for the school year in which it is submitted, or
longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts for Digital Storage and Maintenance of Student Records

The district may enter into or renew a contract with a third party for the purpose of providing services, including
cloud-based services, for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to provide
digital educational software that authorizes a third-party provider of digital educational software to access, store,
and use student records. For these purposes, student records include any information maintained by the district
that is directly related to a student and any information acquired directly from the student through the use of
instructional software or applications assigned to the4g1d¢13% a teacher or other district employee, and do not



include de-identified information. (Education Code 49073.1)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Any such contract shall contain all of the following: (Education Code 49073.1)

1. A statement that student records continue to be the property of and under the control of the district

2. If applicable, a description of the means by which students may retain possession and control of their own
student-generated content, as defined in Education Code 49073.1, including options by which a student may

transfer student-generated content to a personal account

3. A prohibition against the third party using any information in the student record for any purpose other than
those required or specifically permitted by the contract

4. A description of the procedures by which a parent/guardian or a student age 18 years or older may review
personally identifiable information in the student's records and correct erroneous information

5. A description of the actions the third party will take, including the designation and training of responsible
individuals, to ensure the security and confidentiality of student records

6. A description of the procedures for notifying the affected parent/guardian, or the affected student if age 18
years or older, in the event of an unauthorized disclosure of the student's records

7. A certification that a student's records shall not be retained or available to the third party upon completion of the
terms of the contract and a description of how that certification will be enforced, except that these requirements
shall not apply to student-generated content if the student chooses to establish or maintain an account with the
third party for the purpose of storing that content

8. A description of how the district and the third party will jointly ensure compliance with the federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 USC 1232g

9. A prohibition against the third party using personally identifiable information in student records to engage in
targeted advertising

Contracts for Personal Services

In order to achieve cost savings, the district may enter into or renew a contract for any personal service that is
currently or customarily performed by classified employees, if the contract does not displace school district
employees and meets other conditions specified in Education Code 45103.1. To enter into or renew such a
contract, the Board shall ensure that the district meets the numerous conditions specified in Education Code
45103.1.

(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel)

In addition, the district may enter into or renew any contract for personal service without meeting the conditions
described above, if any of the following conditions exists: (Education Code 45103.1)

1. The contract is for new district functions and the Legislature has specifically mandated or authorized the
performance of the work by independent contractors.

2. The services contracted are not available within thedistricssgannot be performed satisfactorily by district



employees, or are of such a highly specialized or technical nature that the necessary expert knowledge,
experience, and ability are not available through the district.

3. The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property, including, but not
be limited to, agreements to service or maintain office equipment or computers that are leased or rented.

4. The district's policy, administrative, or legal goals and purposes cannot be accomplished through the utilization
of persons selected pursuant to the regular or ordinary district hiring process.

5. The nature of the work is such that the criteria for emergency appointments, as defined in Education Code
45103.1, apply.

6. The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not feasibly be
provided by the district in the location where the services are to be performed.

7. The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay that would result from using
the district's regular or ordinary hiring process would frustrate their very purpose.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex

14505 Provisions required in contracts for audits

17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts

17595-17606 Contracts

35182.5 Contract prohibitions

45103.1 Personal services contracts

45103.5 Contracts for management consulting service related to food service
49073.1 Contract requirements for digital storage, maintenance and retrieval of student records
49431-49431.7 Nutritional standards

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

685.010 Rate of interest

GOVERNMENT CODE

12990 Nondiscrimination and compliance employment programs

53260 Contract provision re maximum cash settlement

53262 Ratification of contracts with administrative officers

LABOR CODE

1775 Penalties for violations

1810-1813 Working hours

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

4100-4114 Subletting and subcontracting fair practices

7104 Contracts for excavations; discovery of hazardous waste

7106 Noncollusion affidavit

20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20104.50 Construction Progress Payments

22300 Performance retentions

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

15500 Food sales by student organizations

15501 Sales in high schools and junior high schools

15575-15578 Food and beverage requirements outside of the federal school meal programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 248 of 256



1681-1688 Title IX, discrimination

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
210.1-210.31 National School Lunch Program
220.1-220.21 National School Breakfast Program

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2005
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org

(11/03 11/05) 4/15
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Sausalito Marin City School District

Board Policy

Debt Issuance And Management

BP 3470 PROPOSED
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Governing Board is committed to long-term capital and financial planning and recognizes that the issuance of
debt is a key source for funding the improvement and maintenance of school facilities and managing cash flow.
Any debt issued by the district shall be consistent with law and this policy.

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)

The district shall not enter into indebtedness or liability that in any year exceeds the income and revenue provided
for such year, unless two-thirds of the voters approve the obligation or one of the exceptions specified in law
applies. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18)

When the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may issue debt or order an
election to issue debt. The Superintendent or designee shall make recommendations to the Board regarding
appropriate financing methods for capital projects or other projects that are authorized purposes for debt issuance.
When approved by the Board and/or the voters as applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall administer and
coordinate the district's debt issuance program and activities, including the timing of issuance, sizing of issuance,
method of sale, structuring of the issue, and marketing strategies.

The Superintendent or designee shall retain a financial advisor, municipal advisor, investment advisor, and other
financial services professionals as needed to assist with the structuring of the debt issuance and to provide general
advice on the district's debt management program, financing options, investments, and compliance with legal
requirements. Contracts for services provided by such advisors may be for a single transaction or for multiple
transactions, consistent with the contracting requirements in Education Code 17596. In the event that the district
issues debt through a negotiated sale, underwriters may be selected for multiple transactions if multiple issuances
are planned for the same project. In addition, the district shall select a legal team on an as-needed basis to assist
with debt issuances or special projects.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)
(cf. 3600 - Consultants)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Goals

The district's debt issuance activities and procedures shall be aligned with the district's vision and goals for
providing adequate facilities and programs that support student learning and well-being. When issuing debt, the
district shall ensure that it:

1. Maintains accountability for the fiscal health of the district, including prudent management and
transparency of the district's financing programs

2. Attains the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in order to reduce interest costs, within the
context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting capital funding requirements
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3. Takes all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any financial decision that will negatively
impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues

4. Maintains effective communication with rating agencies and, as appropriate, credit enhancers such as
bond insurers or other providers of credit or liquidity instruments in order to enhance the creditworthiness,
liquidity, or marketability of the debt

5. Monitors the district's statutory debt limit in relation to assessed valuation within the district and the tax
burden needed to meet long-term debt service requirements

6. When determining the timing of debt issuance, considers market conditions, cash flows associated with
repayment, and the district's ability to expend the obtained funds in a timely, efficient, and economical manner
consistent with federal tax laws

7. Determines the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit best within the overall debt structure of the
district at the time the new debt is issued

8. Considers the useful lives of assets funded by the debt issue, as well as repair and replacement costs of
those assets to be incurred in the future

9. Preserves the availability of the district's general fund for operating purposes and other purposes that
cannot be funded by the issuance of voter-approved debt

10.  Meets the ongoing obligations and accountability requirements associated with the issuance and
management of debt under state and federal tax and securities laws

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf. 7000 - Concepts and Roles)

Authorized Purposes for the Issuance of Debt
The district may issue debt for any of the following purposes:

1. To pay for the cost of capital improvements, including acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
rehabilitating, replacing, improving, extending, enlarging, and/or equipping district facilities

2. To refund existing debt
3. To provide for cash flow needs

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

Pursuant to Government Code 53854, general operating costs, including, but not limited to, items normally
funded in the district's annual operating budget, shall not be financed from debt payable later than 15 months from
the date of issuance. The district may deem it desirable to finance cash flow requirements under certain conditions
so that available resources better match expenditures within a given fiscal year. To satisfy both state constitutional
and statutory constraints, such cash flow borrowing shall be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts,
and other moneys attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued.
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The Superintendent or designee shall recommend to the Board potential financing method(s) that result in the
highest benefit to the district, with the cost of staff and consultants considered. Potential financing sources may
include:

1. Short-Term Debt

a. Short-term debt, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANs), when necessary to allow the district
to meet its cash flow requirements (Government Code 53850-53858)

b. Bond anticipation notes (BANs) to provide interim financing for capital bond projects that will ultimately
be paid from general obligation bonds (Education Code 15150)

c. Grant anticipation notes (GANs) to provide interim financing pending the receipt of grants and/or loans
from the state or federal government that have been appropriated and committed to the district (Government Code
53859-53859.08)

2. Long-Term Debt

a. General obligation bonds for projects approved by voters (California Constitution, Article 13A, Section 1;
Education Code 15100-15262, 15264-15276; Government Code 53506-53509.5)

(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

b. Special tax bonds issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (Government
Code 53311-53368.3)

(cf. 7212 - Mello-Roos Districts)
3. Lease financing, including certificates of participation (COPs)

a. Lease financing to fund the highest priority capital equipment purchases when pay-as-you-go financing is
not feasible (Education Code 17450-17453.1)

b. Lease financing to fund facilities projects when there is insufficient time to obtain voter approval or in
instances where obtaining voter approval is either not feasible or unavailable (Education Code 17400-17429)

4, Special financing programs or structures offered by the federal or state government, such as Qualified
Zone Academy Bonds or other tax credit obligations or obligations that provide subsidized interest payments,
when the use of such programs or structures is determined to result in sufficiently lower financing costs compared
to traditional tax-exempt bonds and/or COPs

5. Temporary borrowing from other sources such as the County Treasurer

COPs, TRANS, revenue bonds, or any other non-voter approved debt instrument shall not be issued by the district
in any fiscal year in which the district has a qualified or negative certification, unless the County Superintendent
of Schools determines, pursuant to criteria established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, that the
district's repayment of that indebtedness is probable. (Education Code 42133)

Relationship of Debt to District Facilities Program and Budget

Decisions regarding the issuance of debt for the pur@&2 of fihincing capital improvement shall be aligned with



current needs for acquisition, development, and/or improvement of district property and facilities as identified in
the district's facilities master plan or other applicable needs assessment, the projected costs of those needs,
schedules for the projects, and the expected resources.

The cost of debt issued for major capital repairs or replacements shall be evaluated against the potential cost of
delaying such repairs and/or replacing such facilities.

When considering a debt issuance, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate both the
short-term and long-term implications of the debt issuance and additional operating costs associated with the new
projects involved. Such evaluation may include, but is not limited to, the projected ratio of annual debt service to
the tax burden on the district's taxpayers and the ratio of annual debt service secured by the general fund to general
fund expenditures.

The district may enter into credit enhancement agreements such as municipal bond insurance, surety bonds, letters
of credit, and lines of credit with commercial banks, municipal bond insurance companies, or other financial
entities when their use is judged to lower borrowing costs, eliminate restrictive covenants, or have a net economic
benefit to the financing.

Structure of Debt Issues
The district shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt burden of the financing when
determining the duration of the debt issue.

The district shall design the financing schedule and repayment of debt so as to take best advantage of market
conditions, ensure cost effectiveness, provide flexibility, and, as practical, recapture or maximize its debt capacity
for future use. Principal amortization will be structured to meet debt repayment, tax rate, and flexibility goals.

For new money debt issuances for capital improvements, the district shall size the debt issuance with the aim of
funding capital projects as deemed appropriate by the Board, as long as the issuance is consistent with the overall
financing plan, does not exceed the amount authorized by voters, and, unless a waiver is sought and received from
the state, will not cause the district to exceed the limitation on debt issuances specified in the California
Constitution or Education Code 15106.

To the extent practicable, the district shall also consider credit issues, market factors, and tax law when sizing the
district's bond issuance. The sizing of refunding bonds shall be determined by the amount of money that will be
required to cover the principal of, any accrued interest on, and any redemption premium for the debt to be paid on
the call date and to cover appropriate financing costs.

Any general obligation bond issued by the district shall mature within 40 years of the issuance date or as
otherwise required by law. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18; Government Code 53508.6)

The final maturity of equipment or real property lease obligations will be limited to the useful life of the assets to
be financed but, with respect to a lease purchase of equipment, no longer than a period of 10 years. (Education
Code 17452)

Method of Sale
For the sale of any district-issued debt, the Superintendent or designee shall recommend the method of sale with
the potential to achieve the lowest financing cost and/or to generate other benefits to the district. Potential

methods of sale include:

1. A competitive bidding process through which the award is based on, among other factors, the lowest
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2. Negotiated sale, subject to approval by the district to ensure that interest costs are in accordance with
comparable market interest rates

3. Private placement sale, when the financing can or must be structured for a single or limited number of
purchasers or where the terms of the private placement are more beneficial to the district than either a negotiated
or competitive sale :

Investment of Proceeds

The district shall actively manage the proceeds of debt issued for public purposes in a manner that is consistent
with state law governing the investment of public funds and with the permitted securities covenants of related
financing documents executed by the district. Where applicable, the district's official investment policy and legal
documents for a particular debt issuance shall govern specific methods of investment of bond-related proceeds.
Preservation of principal shall be the primary goal of any investment strategy, followed by the availability of
funds and then by return on investment.

(cf. 3430 - Investing)

With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the county treasury
pool as required by law. (Education Code 15146)

The management of public funds shall enable the district to respond to changes in markets or changes in payment
or construction schedules so as to ensure liquidity and minimize risk.

Refunding/Restructuring

The district may consider refunding or restructuring outstanding debt if it will be financially advantageous or
beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility. When doing so, the district shall consider the
maximization of the district's expected net savings over the life of the debt issuance and, when using a general
obligation bond to refund an existing bond, shall ensure that the final maturity of the refunding bond is no longer
than the final maturity of the existing bond.

Internal Controls

The Superintendent or designee shall establish internal control procedures to ensure that the proceeds of any debt
issuance are directed to the intended use. Such procedures shall assist the district in maintaining the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, properly expending funds, reliably reporting debt incurred by the district and the use
of the proceeds, complying with all laws and regulations, preventing fraud, and avoiding conflict of interest.

(cf. 3314 - Payments for Goods and Services)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

The district shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the time such debt
was incurred as defined in the text of the voter-approved bond measure. (Government Code 53410)

When feasible, the district shall issue debt with a defined revenue source in order to preserve the use of the general
fund for general operating purposes.

The district shall annually conduct a due diligence review to ensure its compliance with all ongoing obligations
applicable to issuers of debt. Such a review may be conducted by general legal counsel or bond counsel. Any
district personnel involved in conducting such reviews shall receive periodic training regarding their
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In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district completes, as applicable, all performance
and financial audits that may be required for any debt issued by the district, including disclosure requirements
applicable to a particular transaction.

Records/Reports

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report of the
proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC). Such report shall
include a self-certification that the district has adopted a policy concerning the use of debt that complies with law
and that the contemplated debt issuance is consistent with that policy. (Government Code 8855)

On or before January 31 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a report to the CDIAC
regarding the debt authorized, the debt outstanding, and the use of proceeds of the issued debt for the period from
July 1 to June 30. (Government Code 8855)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide initial and any annual or ongoing disclosures required by 17 CFR
240.10b-5 and 240.15¢2-12 to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, investors, and other persons or
entities entitled to disclosure, and shall ensure that the district's disclosure filings are updated as needed.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain transaction records of decisions made in connection with each debt
issuance, including the selection of members of the financing team, the structuring of the financing, selection of
credit enhancement products and providers, and selection of investment products. Each transaction file shall
include the official transcript for the financing, interest rates and cost of issuance on the day when the debt was
sold ("final number runs"), and a post-pricing summary of the debt issue. In addition, documentation evidencing
the expenditure of proceeds, the use of debt-financed property by public and private entities, all sources of
payment or security for the debt, and investment of proceeds shall be kept for as long as the debt is outstanding,
plus the period ending three years after the financial payment date of the debt or the final payment date of any
obligations or series of bonds issued to refund directly or indirectly all of any portion of the debt, whichever is
later.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding debts issued by the district, including
information on actual and projected tax rates, an analysis of bonding capacity, ratings on the district's bonds,
market update and refunding opportunities, new development for California bond financings, and the district's
compliance with post-issuance requirements.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

5300-5441 Conduct of elections

15100-15262 Bonds for school districts and community college districts
15264-15276 Strict accountability in local school construction bonds
15278-15288 Citizen's oversight committees

15300-15425 School Facilities Improvement Districts

17150 Public disclosure of non-voter-approved debt

17400-17429 Leasing of district property

17450-17453.1 Leasing of equipment

17456 Sale or lease of district property

17596 Duration of contracts

42130-42134 Financial reports and certifications

ELECTIONS CODE

1000 Established election dates

GOVERNMENT CODE

8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Conrhisdidh6



53311-53368.3 Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
53410-53411 Bond reporting

53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds
53550-53569 Refunding bonds of local agencies
53580-53595.55 Bonds

53850-53858 Tax and revenue anticipation notes
53859-53859.08 Grant anticipation notes
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15

780-4 Registration of municipal securities dealers
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26

54E Qualified Zone Academy Bonds

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit
240.15¢2-12 Municipal securities disclosure
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 26
1.6001-1 Records

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEBT AND INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS
California Debt Issuance Primer

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS

An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 2nd Ed., 2016

Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice, September 2015
Investment of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, September 2014

Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, October 2012

Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds, Best Practice, February 2011

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PUBLICATIONS

Tax Exempt Bond FAQs Regarding Record Retention Requirements

Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds, Publication 4079, rev. 2016

U.S. GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE PUBLICATIONS

Internal Control System Checklist

WEB SITES

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac
Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org

Internal Revenue Service: http://www.irs.gov

Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA):
http://www.emma.msrb.org

U.S. Government Accountability Office: http://www.gao.gov

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission: http://www.sec.gov
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